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VISION

RAEEHFRNEEFINESERER

To be an Asian originated world-class outdoor communication enterprise

fsEan
MISSION

SEPRERENFIESHE  LENRSESWmEER
S{EIEES

To provide optimal Out-Of-Home (OOH) communication solutions with
highest Return-On-Investment (ROI) and effectiveness

BEEETRER & ERRTRERTT

To promote professional excellence in outdoor advertising media

IRENE - B3 - BFEHEXK

To nurture our workforce info a harmonious, efficient and effective team

BITHERIE - FAEHBEE

To be a community conscious enterprise

ZIMEE
CORE VALUES

ME - HARHE  BiEE

Integrity : Being honest and truthful towards people

B . HEREFEZSHX  FHiEs

Excellence : Continuous improvement and the pursuit of excellence
ZZ . HMSHLUTE D » CIEE5E341 8

Benevolence : Taking social responsibilities and caring for the community
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IESERE7)
CORPORATE OVERVIEW

HHHBREEBEFRELT(HEBH MR : 1993) E—EEFTHEIIMNEELS] - K
BNVERBGEMBESEESRY - HfiE AP EERBSESHEHEREM  EESH
BIBERE=N - BfIERASEEREGNMEIRESERBESNRIIMEEAS— -
BEEAPEMEISBFERHINEAFEERES BBBRATZENN=EEERE
HENZmBELEMERESERRHEFZS MEISMPIMNEEEL R » BISIE(bHHRE
EEFEIREE o

R ARSI E

st : ZHER W REEMEEEAS 2MEFHIERRERBRIETLEENKEE - HEREHERKBATS ;
3)FR20135F 12 A3 HEEE20135F 12 H31 HIEFE -

Asiaray Media Group Limited (HKSE Stock Code: 1993) is a leading out-of-home media company with a
strategic focus on airport and metro line advertising. We were ranked first in Greater China's airport advertising
market and third in metro advertising market*. With an extensive nationwide network of media resources
covering 33 cities in Greater China, we leverage the well-developed space management approach to deliver
integrated, creative out-of-home media solutions to renowned brands and diverse advertiser customers and also

enhance ambience and enrich passengers’ journeys.

*Source: Frost & Sullivan Report

Notes: This ranking: 1) Includes only privately-owned media companies; 2) In terms of revenue and number of airports and metro lines
with exclusive concession rights to mainstream media resources; 3) As at 31 December 2013 or for the year ended 31 December 2013.
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BILLBOARD AND BUILDING SOLUTION
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OUR PHILOSOPHY

BAECH=ENEES
B WA SERL WEDREGSEBATH

REGREGA - SMERRRERS  RAEREE
BEEF - BILESNEENR  RAERSNE
RE - KABEHERS - BE - RELAKE - ZEEBRE - ZEIKE

We view ourselves as the managers of the space, which distinguishes us from the traditional

“Buy Wholesale, Sell Retail” approach.

Our well-developed space management approach enables us to create value for our advertiser customers,
media resources owners and passengers.

Media resource owner — enhance the overall ambience and optimize the commercial value
Advertiser customer — enhance the overall impact of the advertisement
Passenger — extend beyond the visual to stimulate sense of smell, touch, hearing and taste



ARERIEES
BUILDING SOLUTION

@ ARERIRES
BUILDING SOLUTION

FHREREI
/) MOBILE APP
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MILESTONES

1993

T EESREREEMIL

Asiaray Advertising Media was established in

Hong Kong.

EMNSEENAERRNIETESNEIERERE
RNBERCEE -

We obtained the exclusive rights to operate mainstream
media resources for four urban lines by Hong Kong Kowloon
Canton Railway.

HMEEEHRERADNGREZEESRA
ESMENEERIEERNBREEE -

We obtained from the MTR Corporation Limited the exclusive
rights to operate mainstream media resources in a number
of shopping malls and premises.

oA 25T R A RN S R S IR B IR A BB
YEELSTIREEEMLE  LBREEEMN
I IS A T EIRASEIR

We established a joint venture, Henan Airport Asiaray, with
Henan Zhengzhou Xinzheng Airport Management Company
Limited, to exclusively operate mainstream media resources
in Zhengzhou Xinzheng International Airport.

{2007

HOEEEEEERRAG  2014F8H 12

2008

HMWBEEm= BRI ENS1% R E
@ HERLERERRKEBREERE
AEREELEMSHEEREER

We purchased 51% equity interest in Yunnan
Airport Asiaray, which exclusively operates the
mainstream media resources in Kunming Changshui
International Airport and seven other airports in
Yunnan Province.

BAMESRYERETEREE
RHBREESHE -

We obtained the exclusive rights to operate
mainstream media resources in Shenzhen
Line No. 4.

{2010



2012

HMRLRE 5).%9I~ SRR M
—ERERERES

We developed our first building solution,
a building wrap along the facade of

One Peking in Hong Kong.

FMERY RS (5 BR A S AL
SEXBRYIRS LS - DUBRE
BRI S R E RIS 3 SRAR IS 1R A E
RIREER -

We formed a joint venture company,
Shenzhen Airport Asiaray, with Shenzhen
Airport Co., Ltd. to exclusively operate
mainstream media resources in Terminal 3 of
the Shenzhen Bao'an Infernational Airport.

{2013

2014

HMEISER - 5 REM I EEE
FRREEFNEREERE -

We obtained the exclusive rights to operate
the media resources in metro lines in Ningbo,
Wuxi, and Zhengzhou.

I HEEREEBRRAS (ARMITHEK
IR EREEFEHRSRBMAR
REIEWRER -

Asiaray Media Group Limited (Stock
Code:1993) was successfully listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

{2015

Asiaray Media Group Limited

2014 Annual Report
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITION

&8
QUALIFICATIONS

PE—-BESERE (REREE) (LEidiE)

First-class Advertising Agency of China (Media Service) (Shanghai Asiaray)

EishERER (LiBi{Li)

Famous Trademark in Shanghai (Shanghai Asiaray)

GB/T9001-2008/1509001:2008:2:5:5E (_LiEit(ti)
GB/T9001—2008/1SO09001:2008 International Certificate of Registration (Shanghai Asiaray)

GROUP RECOGNITIONS

2014 FtEROIER EFER (IR
2014 The 7th ROI Festival — Best Media of the Year

20135 FE RN EROER EFER (TR
2013 The 6th ROI Festival — Best Media of the Year

2013 FPRHFREFZENNFIMNEREIR
2013 China Most Influential OOH Media Resources

2013 PE+ AR mhEiREs
2013 Top 10 Renowned Media in China

HOEEEEEEBRAT 201458/ 14



e R
CAMPAIGN AWARDS

H&M » HEEPEARBEEDRIEES

H&M, LED Animated Building Wrap, Hong Kong
FtETRE — RRASMEFIMNER — 88
The 7th ROI Festival — Out Of Home Category — Gold Award

The Spark Awards for Media Excellence 2014 — BEYMEREEE — Fi2
The Spark Awards for Media Excellence 2014 — Out of Home Category — Gold Award

BEETEXE  HEEFIIESARE

Hong Kong Disneyland, Outdoor Billboard, Hong Kong

FtETRE — FKRASMEPINGR — &8

The 7th ROI Festival — Out Of Home Category — Gold Award

FhETEASEEREREAE — REER/NESE — 18

The 5th China Creative Communication International Awards — Service Category & Small Budget Category — Gold Award

EPEERESESPEESRRE — FME — i

The 20th China Advertising Great-wall Awards — Out Of Home Category — Bronze Award

BEHBTELE  HEEBERRE

Hong Kong Disneyland, MTR Lines, Hong Kong

FNEFEEHERERAR — EXERAES - BEEEE — 258

The 4th Tiger Roar China Classical Communication Awards — Corporate Image and Events Promotion Category — Gold Award

RS > BELRE—RAEREES

Ermenegildo Zegna, Building Wrap, Hong Kong

2012PEFINEEFEAR — SERIRE — 58

2012 China Advertising Outdoor Annual Awards — Skyscraper Category — Gold Award

RICKE - MMEILERREES

Hyundai, Hangzhou Xiaoshan International Airport

FhEFTEERSHEETERMERSEFENAE — 02PEERREEERENER

The 9th China Advertising Forum — Winner of 2012 China Most Influential Creative Advertising Award

Asiaray Media Group Limited 2014 Annual Report
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

((H?I)En:ﬁ?:s; 1 1872-9

REEIWA
COMBINED REVENUE 1,35.]V.

sEsEHA

Group's Consolidated Revenue

BHEATIWA

Associates Companies’ Revenue

@t 1l

Total

2013 2014

(BHEET)
(HKD millions)

ZiS/NSiEZ TSNS

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY

(IR L) (A&t L)

(Include listing-related expenses) (Exclude listing-related expenses)

(e
1,320.7
1,221.3
B TE R EI BOA -

REVENUE BREAKDOWN BY BUSINESS SEGMENT 17

we Wl emen I 344.1

Airport Metro Lines

BEMEARERIEES |

Billboards and Building Solutions

Eifth @zt W

Others Total

693.5

2013 2014

HOEEEEEERRAG 20148/ 16
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MEE - 545%

HITEE  TEREEHTE

MEE A ([MEAE]) R 2014F5 520 A%
FEAARRES  WR2014F6 A128%
AR ABRARRITEEREE  ARRER
SEERNTE - MEEBERBBIPEA -
1993 FHRIETARNGES AEAEEN
BERBRBIRERE -

I

MEER1993F8 AR BN LA HES
HEERAR  WHAPE GESKSER
BENBRIFTKEEE HE HRIZHE
BERR BBPBERESZ EKS Kb
BREESHEERNFITEER ML —
HIEERMESERAOBRELEE YR
EFREIKFIEL EARTR ©

MAELER1984F3 ARXENBEAE - ER
RRBEBT BN - HIRN1987F4 AR
N3 R T R R AR IR B R 2L o MR
ERTRITEEBTASREEESCERS
(UNSW Hong Kong Foundation Board) 2
BHREE - HH2014F7 AR ARMEETAD

NREEREE -

FHEX 435

HITEEREEEER
SRNXEE(SEE]R2014F5 4208 %
FEAARAES  WR2014F6 A128%
AR ABRRARNITES - FEEALEEN
BELER - ®N20084F7 AMAKRER -
BEASEFREMENEEHEEEREE

BRENI995FE 1998 F T AR F
IR (I E A E R M B AR IR I AR B
H% PN 1998 F Z= 2003 F T2 ML ES
EE(—RHESEREEAR)MPKE - BF
MERENERMNLIE B EEE T ELIE o
1 7R 2003 F £ 2007 FIEEFT B MR EEE
EERAA (—MEHREREHEEAR) MTTK
B MIMAREEA] - EHR 2008 FEL1H
EREEEMCER) BRAT (—HE R E
R EEEEANT)EELELE -

DEEM1994F 6 AR ERNNERNTARE
EREXZELTEMN - FE2014F7 ABKAE
BmESgmme -

ECTOR'S PROFILE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Lam Tak Hing alias Vincent Lam, aged 54

Executive Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Lam Tak Hing, alias Vincent Lam ("Mr. Lam") was appointed
as our Director on 20 May 2014 and designated as our
executive Director and Chairman on 12 June 2014 and serves
as the Chief Executive Officer of our Group. Mr. Lam is the
founder of our Company, and has been the Director of our
Company since 1993 and is responsible for the overall strategic
planning and development of the Group.

Mr. Lam established Asiaray Advertising Media Limited in Hong
Kong in August 1993 and obtained exclusive concession rights
to airport television advertising in Shanghai in the PRC.
Subsequently, he set up various joint venture companies and
obtained concession rights of advertising media resources in
various airports and metro lines in the PRC and Hong Kong.
Mr. Lam has guided the development and implementation of
our business strategies, and has contributed significantly to our
success throughout the years.

Mr. Lam graduated from the University of Sydney with a
Bachelor of Science Honours degree in March 1984 and
subsequently obtained a Master’'s degree in Commerce from
the University of New South Wales ("UNSW") in Australia in
April 1987. Mr. Lam is also member and Director of the UNSW
Hong Kong Foundation Board. He has been a fellow of the
CPA Australia since July 2014.

Yung Chung Man, aged 43

Executive Director and Chief Operations Officer

Mr. Yung Chung Man (“Mr. Yung") was appointed as our
Director on 20 May 2014 and designated as our executive
Director on 12 June 2014. Mr. Yung is the Chief Operations
Officer of our Group. He joined our Group in July 2008 and is
responsible for our Group’s overall sales management and
operations in the PRC.

Mr. Yung worked for SILA Media Group (HK), a media
company, as the manager and media director in the eastern
region in China from 1995 to 1998. He then worked as the
manager, business director and general manager of MPI Group
(HK), an advertising and media company in its Chengdu,
Shanghai and Wuhan offices, from 1998 to 2003. He was the
chief executive officer of Key Media Group (HK), an associated
media company in the PRC from 2003 to 2007. Prior to joining
our Group, he acted as the chief operations officer of NCN
Media Services Ltd., an advertising media company in the PRC
in 2008.

Mr. Yung graduated from the York University in Canada with a
Bachelor of Arts degree in June 1994. He has been a member

of the Chartered Institute of Marketing since July 2014.

Asiaray Media Group Limited 2014 Annual Report 17
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BEX > 4583

ey b fof Tk e T N S Ry 2
HITEEF  BREIBEERLAWE

BRSO ([BREAE D R 20145 520 &
ZAEARRRES  WR2014F6 4128
AR ABRRARNITES - BREENAEAEE
BREMEEMATIWE - HA2011FE3IAM
AREEH BEASENVBHER - B -
NAME R AIPEEIEETE o

BRI AN 1992 FE FE 2000 F RN E LRI KEE
TSP (—REER S5 SEAT) WE S
MEERIZBRESAARBGEE £
R 2000 F £ 2004 F AR AL ERR(—HE
PSRBT SR E ) BB TS ARE - IMIIAERSE
B A BREAN2004FE E2011TFRRES
BIREBEROAR AR (—HEPRHEMLE
BNEETEREMNEEAR) EETSHE
HAE o

BROTAEMI1996F 1 AR AR BT AEK
8 2002528 E2005F12 A BEBFA
REHNMAEERSE - R EMEEIBIB18
FEFRMBLR - BHEEN1992F10AE
¥REBEIZER(BHBAEBBEIAE) -
EEFEERT B LB WH2003F 11 A%
ERRBABERIBEREL S -

ESBWAY

HITEERERBTEE
MRELRAER2014F5 20 BEZ T AEAR
RIEE WHN2014F 6 A12BETHAARR
BHITES - MRELANABAEEEFET
EE © FR2007 F12 AMAKREE - BFEX
SEEEEMNBELERASENTISER -

MERBE LA LRI1996F E1998F 5 —H&E
BEEEE([HKAAS]) FF R EERIE A A
Euro RSCG Partnership Ltd #& {F /= 4% % 58 5%
6 - EH 1% 7 1999 4F %= 2002 F A& Motivator
(—HHK4As g EMEERIBAR]) EEHE
EERIEEEAIE o 5 2003 F £ 2004 F &
Zenith(—AHK4ASsE ENEERIEAF])
HYIRARACIE o MIIAREERT  MRBALER
2004 % % 2007 4E & OMD (— B A HK4As & B
HEEREAR]) WEKBE -

MEBERER1996F 4 AEENFEHR K

B EERFAIREEREIRERS L
B (EEMBHER) -

HOEEEEERRAT  2014F®H 18

So Chi Man, aged 45

Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and

Company Secretary

Mr. So Chi Man (“Mr. So”) was appointed as our Director on 20
May 2014 and designated as our executive Director on 12 June
2014. Mr. So is also the Chief Financial Officer and the
Company Secretary of the Group. He joined the Group in
March 2011 and is responsible for financial management,
treasury, company secretarial and internal control matters of
the Group.

Mr. So worked for PricewaterhouseCoopers, an international
accounting firm, as a manager in the audit and business
advisory service in its Hong Kong office from 1992 to 2000. He
then worked for Hong Kong Economic Times, a local financial
newspaper in Hong Kong, as a financial controller from 2000 to
2004. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. So acted as the senior
vice president of BOE Optoelectronics Company Limited, a
state-owned company specialising in high-tech electronics
display products in the PRC, from 2004 to 2011.

Mr. So has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since January 1996 and was a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants from February 2002 to December 2005. Mr. So
has over 18 years of accounting and finance experience. Mr. So
graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic (later retitled as the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University) with a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Accountancy in October 1992. He subsequently
obtained a Master of Business Administration degree from the
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in November 2003.

Lam Ka Po, aged 41

Executive Director and Chief Marketing Officer

Mr. Lam Ka Po (“Mr. K. P. Lam") was appointed as our Director
on 20 May 2014 and designated as our executive Director
on 12 June 2014. Mr. K. P. Lam is also the Chief Marketing
Officer of the Group. He joined the Group in December 2007
and is responsible for the overall operations in Hong Kong and
marketing management of the Group.

Mr. K. P. Lam worked for Euro RSCG Partnership Ltd, an
advertising agency under the Association of Accredited
Advertising Agencies of Hong Kong (“HK4As"), as the senior
media planner from 1996 to 1998. He then worked as the
media supervisor and media manager of Motivator, a HK4As
advertising agency, from 1999 to 2002. He was the media
manager of Zenith, a HK4As advertising agency from 2003 to
2004. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. K. P. Lam acted as the
associate business director of OMD, a HK4As advertising
agency from 2004 to 2007.

Mr. K. P. Lam graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
with a Bachelor of Business Administration degree in Integrated
BBA (Marketing concentration) in April 1996.
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BHERETB30FKER -

B 1966 FIE R BUK B A R BUA 26t
MG HEBEB LB - FERER1970F4 5
BAEENERB T HT et AgEZEnsg
B WHIIFIAREAEREE - B
1973F 2 AEEB G AEEMNATE -
WH1978F2ARAEFREE - HEHER—
BHETZEES LT ARRBILIENITES -
®N 20048 A E2013FE 11 A g MR %
TRBER A A (RO 73 BASERE
35 ACHL) : 7A200449 A £20144F 12
ARt R @R (5R) AR A A (AR D RS
925) ¢ N PA2002F 18 £2014F 98 U &
200544 AZE2015F 1 ARZUT & jiIEE
RAal (RS 812) IEEL B IEHITE
$ °

% JRF 2004 F 9 A B T M & Bh & B (3 %)
BRAR(IRM AR 662) : 1K 2005F 9 A
R NEBBRERAR (RMHARSR: 43) B
2006 F 12 AR EHE HIERER A F (R
AR5 - 836) ¢ KR 2007 4 8 A N A F R
TAERAB (MRS - 1111) EEBLIERH
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung, aged 73

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung (“Mr. A. Ma") was appointed as
our Director on 20 May 2014 and designated as our
independent non-executive Director on 12 June 2014.

Mr. A. Ma is a founder and former director of AMA CPA Limited
(formerly known as Andrew Ma DFK (CPA) Limited) in Hong
Kong. He is presently a Director of Mayee Management
Limited, a management consultancy service company in Hong
Kong. Mr. A. Ma has more than 30 years of experience in the
fields of accounting, auditing and finance.

He received his Bachelor’'s degree in Economics from the
London School of Economics and Political Science (University
of London) in England in 1966. Mr. A. Ma was admitted to
membership in April 1970 and has been a fellow member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
since January 1979. He was admitted as a member in February
1973 and has been a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since February 1978. He was
and has been an independent non-executive Director of several
other listed companies in Hong Kong. He was the independent
non-executive Director of Asian Citrus Holdings Limited (stock
code: 73; London AIM: ACHL) from August 2004 to November
2013; Beijing Properties (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 925)
from September 2004 to December 2014; and Tanrich Financial
Holdings Limited (stock code: 812) from January 2002 to
September 2014 and from April 2005 to January 2015.

He has also been the independent non-executive Director of
Asia Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 662) since
September 2004; C. P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. (stock code: 43)
since September 2005; China Resources Power Holdings
Company Limited (stock code: 836) since December 2006; and
Chong Hing Bank Ltd. (stock code: 1111) since August 2007.

Asiaray Media Group Limited 2014 Annual Report 19
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Ma Ho Fai SBS JP, aged 63

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Ma Ho Fai (“Mr. Ma") was appointed as our Director on 20
May 2014 and designated as our independent non-executive
Director on 12 June 2014.

Mr. Ma is a senior partner of Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo, a local law
firm in Hong Kong, and was admitted as a solicitor in Hong
Kong in 1984, and in England and Wales in 1987, as a solicitor
and barrister in Australian Capital Territory in 1988 and as a
solicitor and advocate in the Republic of Singapore in 1990. He
has also been a China-Appointed Attesting Officer in Hong
Kong since 2000 and a civil celebrant of marriages in Hong
Kong since 2006. In addition, he is a Deputy to the 11th and
12th National People’s Congress of China and a member of the
9th, 10th and 11th Yunnan Provincial Committee of the Chinese
People Political Consultative Conference. In recognition of his
distinguished public and community service, Mr. Ma was
appointed as a Non-Official Justice of the Peace in 2005 by the
Hong Kong SAR Government and was awarded the Silver
Bauhinia Star in 2007. He has been the independent non-
executive Director of Goldbond Group Holdings Limited (stock
code: 172) since February 2003.

Mr. Ma completed the course for solicitors qualification
examination at the College of Law in Chester, England with
courses leading to solicitors qualification examination.

Chan Chi Fai Andrew, SBS JP, aged 61

Independent non-executive Director

Professor Chan Chi Fai Andrew (”Professor Andrew Chan”) was
appointed as our Director on 20 May 2014 and designated as
our independent non-executive Director on 12 June 2014.

Professor Andrew Chan graduated with a Master's degree of
Business Administration from the University of California,
Berkeley, the U.S. in December 1979, a Bachelor degree of
Business Administration and a Doctorate degree of Philosophy
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong (“CUHK") in
November 1977 and December 1993 respectively. Professor
Andrew Chan has been teaching in the Department of
Marketing of the CUHK and has been the Director of the EMBA
Program of the CUHK since July 1986 and 2003 respectively.
He was awarded the Vice-Chancellor’'s Exemplary Teaching
Award in the CUHK in 2001 and 2009. Professor Andrew Chan
has been the Chairman of the Process Review Committee of
the Hong Kong Monetary Authority since December 2010 and
the Chinese Medicine Council since September 2011. He has
also been an advisor to the Governing Council of the Quality
Tourism Services Association of Hong Kong from 2007 and a
member of the Quality Tourism Services Sub-Committee of the
Hong Kong Tourism Board since April 2013. Professor Andrew
Chan has approximately 28 years of experience in the
education industry. In recognition of his distinguished public
and community service, he was appointed as a Justice of Peace
in 2005 by the Hong Kong SAR Government and was awarded
the Silver Bauhinia Star in 2007. He has been the independent
non-executive Director of Tao Heung Holdings Limited (stock
code: 573) since March 2007 and Bamboos Health Care
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8216) since June 2014.
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A NEW PHASE OF GROWTH

It is my great pleasure to present to you the first annual report
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
since we are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong by
way of global offering on 15 January 2015.

2014 was a crucial year to the business development of the
Group. We had spared no effort and taken numerous initiatives
in ensuring our IPO a success while we strived for further
growth and development of our business against the backdrop
of economic slowdown in China in the second half year.
Leveraging our exclusivity over all the mainstream media
resources and taking advantage of our Space Management
Approach, the Group ended last year with a remarkable growth
of 34.7% in terms of combined revenue. The combined revenue
of the Group, which actually reflects the consolidated revenue
of the Group and the total revenue of all associated companies
of the Group engaged in media business, is believed to best
reflect our business scale, totaled HKD1,872.9 million in 2014.
Craving out the one-off IPO expenses, net profit attributable to
the owners of the Company recorded a significant increase of
34.4% from HKD129.3 million in 2013 to HKD173.7 million in
2014. That compares with the annual growth rate of
approximately 12% of China’s advertising industry during the
12th Five-Year Plan period (2011-2015) according to the
Twelfth Five-Year Plan for the Development of Advertising
Industry and China’s GDP growth rate of 7.4% in 2014, the
Group has outperformed the overall market.

To share the fruits of the growth with our shareholders, we are

pleased to propose a final dividend of HK6.5 cents per share
for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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FAVOURABLE MARKET WITH RIGHT STRATEGIC
MOVE

China’s advertising market has grown into the world’s second-
largest after years of rapid expansion. Among others, airport
and metro line advertising markets, which are our strategic
focuses, have been showing high growth potential in recent
years thanks to the ongoing construction of new airports and
metro lines nationwide. According to the official data quoted in
the Frost and Sullivan Report, the number of airports in Greater
China will increase from 195 in 2013 to 278 in 2018, and the
number of metro lines in Greater China will increase from 81 in
2013 to 176 by the end of 2018. China’s infrastructure boom in
recent years has created an environment well suited for the
development and further expansion of our market share, and
such magnitude of growth echoed our view that our
opportunity is once-in-a-life time.

Compared with other media, airport and metro advertising is
considered to be one of the most effective means in delivering
advertising messages and other marketing communication for
the advertiser customers. With people spend more time out of
their home and also in commuting, we being an out-of-home
media in transportation focus become a more desirable
advertising media. As long as people walk pass our
advertisements shown in airports and metro lines, they have no
choice but are naturally exposed to them. The “push” nature of
our out-of-home media easily distinguishes us from the other
traditional media that the audience actually has an option to
see it or not to see it. Given such a favourable market trend
and the infrastructure boom in the airport and metro sectors,
our recent IPO did put us in an excellent position to capture
this once-in-a-lifetime opportunity to further grow our business.

Indeed, as an innovative out-of-home media company with a
strategic focus on airport and metro line advertising, our
significant growth in terms of revenue and net profit is evidence
that we have the right strategy, extensive industry knowledge
of and experience in space management to deliver integrated
and creative out-of-home media solutions that keep us moving
forward with unparalleled edges.

INNOVATIVE SPACE MANAGEMENT

At Asiaray, we view ourselves as the managers of the space.
Our state-of-the-art space management approach makes us
unique in the industry. We believe that creating special
experience to audiences is a way to create value for our
advertiser customers and media resources owners. Our
sophisticated techniques and solid experience in space
management allows us to develop creative and innovative
media solutions for our advertiser customers, convey their
messages in novel and thought-provoking ways, and thus
connect with the audiences.
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Different from the “buy wholesale, sell retail” approach that a
traditional media company may adopt, our space management
approach allows us to extend media solutions beyond existing
advertising formats. We take every airport or metro line as a
whole and creatively use all available space involved, including
traditionally less valuable advertising spaces, rather than just
the already defined media fixtures such as light boxes,
billboards or digital panels for an advertising campaign. To
extend the experience beyond the visual to stimulate
audiences’ senses of smell, touch, hearing and taste, we also
integrate digital media, and different technology and solutions
such as 3D pop up, mobile application, 3D visual illusion,
electroluminescent light (a light source as thin as a piece of
paper), scent for a stronger impact on audiences. Numerous
media solutions we provided in recent years have received
encouraging feedback, for instance, the advertising campaign
we did for Old Town White Coffee in the MTR Kowloon Tong
Station. We have even extended our space management into
building solutions. Remarkable landmark advertisements such
as the “Mystic Point” at Hong Kong Disneyland could be
spotted on an outdoor carpark near the major interchange for
the Cross Harbour Tunnel. Other successful showcase includes
H&M, its message “"H&M Loves Hong Kong” on the facade of
CITIC Tower has immediately made this prestigious commercial
building become an icon along the Victoria Harbour. We also
kicked off a new animated TV commercial in CITIC Tower for
the world-renowned brand NIKE during the FIFA World Cup
time, as well as a mega-sized advertisement for Zegna on One
Peking.

In fact, our philosophy and practices in space management has
brought us many prizes in 2014, among them, we have won the
ROI Festival — Best Media of the Year Award for 2 consecutive
years in 2013 and 2014. The ROI Festival Award is one of the
largest and most influential awards in the field of professional
advertising and marketing in the Greater China region. We will
strive to uphold our strong reputation for innovative space
management, and will always endeavor to ensure each
customer is satisfied with our solutions.

EXCLUSIVE CONCESSION RIGHTS

Given our exclusivity over all the mainstream media resources
in these airports and metro lines, our advertiser customers can
have more choices and flexibility in locations for placing their
advertisements. To further strengthen our market position, we
secured our media resources not only on an exclusive basis but
also in a longer term. We find our competitiveness in our long-
term contracts with the media resources owners in China which
generally range from 10 to 15 years. During the year under
review, we successfully renewed our exclusive concession rights
to the advertising spaces in a few airports in Yunnan Province.
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In 2014, our media resources consist of advertising spaces in
airports, metro lines, alongside expressways and on commercial
buildings in 33 major cities throughout the Greater China
region, such as Shanghai, Yunnan, Shenzhen, Hangzhou,
Zhengzhou, Guangzhou, Chengdu etc. All of these media
resources are located in metropolitan areas with dense
populations. As at 31 December 2014, our media resources
included, among others, the following: (i) 25 airports where we
have exclusive concession rights to mainstream media
resources; and (ii) 10 metro lines where we have exclusive
concession rights to mainstream media resources. According to
Frost & Sullivan research report, for Greater China including
Hong Kong and Macau, we ranked first among privately-owned
media companies in terms of revenue and number of airports
with exclusive concession rights to mainstream media
resources, and ranked third among privately-owned media
companies in terms of revenue and number of metro lines with
exclusive rights to mainstream media resources in 2014. Due to
the change in competition landscape, our market position in
metro lines advanced further to rank second in 2015. The
Group has also obtained the exclusive rights to mainstream
media resources in Wuxi Metro Line No. 2, Ningbo Metro Line
No. 1 and the metro lines in Zhengzhou, marking another
milestone of the Group’s metro line advertising business as
these were the new metro lines we won in 2014.

During the year under review, there were a few projects in their
ramp up stage, among those, the ramp up of Shenzhen airport
and Wuxi metro lines proved to be shorter and better than
expected. This will certainly have positive impact on their
performances in 2015.

OUTLOOK

Our outlook for 2015 is going to be cautiously promising. With
the stepped-up implementation of the “New Normal” policy by
the Central Government of China, the general economic
growth of China will inevitably be slowing down in the
foreseeable future including 2015. However, the new policy is
also meant to constantly improve and upgrade the economic
structure of China and that will open new opportunities for a
faster growth in domestic consumption and domestic
transportation sectors in China, which will definitely benefit out-
of-home advertising, airport and metro advertising in particular,
in the long-run though it will take some time to have such effect
fully materialized.

China’s advertising market is expected to increase from
USD75.9 billion in 2013 to USD127.7 billion by 2018, according
to Frost and Sullivan Report. More airports and metro lines are
constructed to accommodate increasing levels of passenger
traffic and urbanization, which can provide us more
opportunities to capture additional market share.
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We believe that in China’s advertising market today, out-of-
home advertising market occupies an important position that
we should not lose sight of it. We all are spending more time
out of home than we used to be, traveling more and
commuting more around towns and cities. Advertising
opportunities in airports and metro lines will definitely increase.
By the on-going efforts of our experienced management team,
coupled with our well-developed space management
capabilities and creative media solutions, we are confident that
we will be able to secure more new contracts with those new
airports and metro lines.

More importantly, the airport concessions are currently run by
the airports themselves. For airports, according to the Frost &
Sullivan Report, in 14 out of the top 30 busiest airports in
China, their media businesses are exclusively run by third-party
professional operators, of which 9 airports are run by Asiaray.
While the other 16 airports are still run by the airport authorities
themselves, which does not align with the global trend, such
State Owned Enterprise reform will certainly provide a
tremendous opportunity for Asiaray, and that we will secure our
first rank title among privately-owned media companies in
terms of revenue from, and number of, airports with exclusive
concession rights to mainstream media resources. For metro
lines, even better growth potential is envisaged as metro
companies in China are bound to partner with third-party
professional operators in their media business and thus ample
opportunities arise that shall by all means benefit Asiaray.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my sincere gratitude to all customers, shareholders, as
well as members of the Board, staff and those who have
supported the Group for their dedication and contributions for
the last 22 years, and we will work hard to make another
successful year for Asiaray.

Lam Tak Hing, alias Vincent Lam
Chairman
Hong Kong, 31 March 2015
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Driven by the growth in China’s economy, increased income
levels and higher standards of living, as well as growth in the
travel by airplanes, metro lines and other modes of
transportation as urbanization progresses, out-of-home
advertising in China has experienced steady growth in recent
years. China’s out-of-home advertising market, according to
the research of Frost & Sullivan, is forecasted to grow at a
compound annual growth rate of approximately 18.4% from
2013 to 2018, making it one of the fastest growing out-of-home
advertising markets in the world.

Airport and metro line advertising markets have long been our
strategic focus. As new infrastructure is constructed, new metro
lines have been built throughout China and existing airports
have been expanded, improved and renovated, the
transportation media advertising has seen the fastest growth in
market size, the Group thus has benefited from this momentum
and recorded an encouraging results in 2014.

It is also worth-mentioning that, our year-on-year business
growth not only rides on the growth of the industry in general
as well as the additions and successful renewal of media
projects in our business portfolio, but also the movements of
individual projects along the business life cycle which is broadly
classified into three phases, namely “Ramp-up”, “Stable
Growth” and “Scale-up”. Ramp-up occurs from when we
acquire the concession rights to the media resources from
airport or metro line and begin operations to when our
operations for that particular airport or metro line become
profitable. Generally, the ramp-up period is one to two years.
After ramp-up, our operations reach a phase of stable growth,
at which point our customer base and operations are well-
established for the relevant airport or metro line. This phase of
our operations has generally been characterised by a steady
increase in revenue. During 2014, most of our projects were in
stable growth phase with the exceptions of a few “Ramp-up”
projects including Shenzhen Bao’an International Airport which
commenced the operations of Terminal 3 in November 2013
and two new metro line media resources in Ningbo and Wuxi
which commenced operations in May 2014 and July 2014
respectively.

To give a better view of the total business scale of the Group,
we would also like to report on the combined revenues, which
included the consolidated revenue of the Group and the total
revenue of all associate companies of the Group, which
presently are all engaged in airport media advertising business.
For the year ended 31 December 2014, the combined revenues
achieved a remarkable growth of 34.7%, increased from
HKD1,390.4 million to HKD1,872.9 million. To secure long-term
and exclusive concession rights to media resources in airports
and metro lines, the Group has formed joint ventures with the
media resources owners and for all non-controlling joint-
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venture companies are reported as associate companies in our
financial statements. As at 31 December 2014, the Group
operated joint ventures for 21 out of the 25 airports where we
had exclusive concession rights, among which ¢ airports are
operated by associate companies.

OUTLOOK

Our outlook for 2015 is going to be cautiously promising. With
the stepped-up implementation of the “New Normal” policy by
the Central Government of China, the general economic
growth of China will inevitably be slowing down in the
foreseeable future including 2015. However, the new policy is
also meant to constantly improve and upgrade the economic
structure of China and that will open new opportunities for a
faster growth in domestic consumption and domestic
transportation sectors in China, which will definitely benefit out-
of-home advertising, airport and metro advertising in particular,
though it will take some time to have such effect fully
materialized.

China’s advertising market is expected to increase from
USD75.9 billion in 2013 to USD127.7 billion by 2018, according
to Frost and Sullivan Report. More airports and metro lines are
constructed to accommodate increasing levels of passenger
traffic and urbanization, which can provide us more
opportunities to capture additional market share.

We believe that in China’s advertising market today, out-of-
home advertising market occupies an important position that
we should not lose sight of it. We all are spending more time
out of home than we used to be, traveling more and
commuting more around towns and cities. Advertising
opportunities in airports and metro lines will definitely increase.
By the on-going efforts of our experienced management team,
coupled with our well-developed space management
capabilities and creative media solutions, we are confident that
we will be able to secure more new contracts with those new
airports and metro lines.

More importantly, the airport concessions are currently run by
the airports themselves. For airports, according to the Frost &
Sullivan Report, in 14 out of the top 30 busiest airports in
China, their media businesses are exclusively run by third-party
professional operators, of which 9 airports are run by our
Group. While the other 16 airports are still run by the airport
authorities themselves, which does not align with the global
trend, such State Owned Enterprise reform will certainly
provide a tremendous opportunity for us, and that we will
secure our first rank title among privately-owned media
companies in terms of revenue from, and number of, airports
with exclusive concession rights to mainstream media
resources. For metro lines, even better growth potential is
envisaged as metro companies in China are bound to partner
with third-party professional operators in their media business
and thus ample opportunities arise that shall by all means
benefit our Group.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

As forming joint ventures with media resource owners is one of
our key business models in securing long-term and exclusive
operations rights, and in one circumstance or the other we do
not hold controlling shareholding in the joint venture
(accounted for as associate companies of the Group) and as a
result we are not consolidating those revenue according to the
accounting standards. Therefore, combined revenues, which
included the consolidated revenue of the Group and the total
revenue of all associate companies of the Group, which
presently are all engaged in airport media advertising business
is considered giving a better view of the Group's total business
scale. For the year ended 31 December 2014, our combined
revenues achieved a remarkable growth of 34.7%, increased
from HKD1,390.4 million to HKD1,872.9 million, representing a
sizable growth of business scale during the year.

The consolidated revenue of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2014 increased from approximately
HKD1,211.3 million to approximately HKD1,320.7 million,
representing an increase of 9.0%. It is noteworthy that the
increase was partly off-set by the transfer of media business and
hence revenue of Shenzhen Bao’an International Airport from
the Group to the joint venture company owned as to 51% by
Shenzhen Airport Co. Ltd. and 49% by the Group effective from
November 2013. Excluding the effect of the aforesaid transfer of
business, the increase in revenue is approximately 16.0% for
better comparison. The increase in consolidated revenue was
mainly attributable to the general increase in revenue from
media resources carried over from 2013, in particular the
improved performance of the two metro line media businesses
in Shenzhen and the metro line media business in Hong Kong.
Besides, we have additional revenue generated from two new
metro line media resources in Ningbo and Wuxi which
commenced operations in May 2014 and July 2014 respectively.

Combined revenue from airport media resources increased by
35.7% to HKD1,245.7 million whereas consolidated revenue
from airport media resources, due to the above-mentioned
transfer of business which resulted a decrease of consolidated
revenue by approximately HKD71.7 million and the termination
of non-exclusive concession rights to media resources in
Chengdu and Beijing at the Group's discretions, decreased
from approximately HKD738.8 million in 2013 to approximately
HKD693.5 million in 2014, decreased by approximately
HKD45.3 million or 6.1%. The decrease was on the other hand
partially offset by increases in revenue from our media
resources in our exclusive airports, in particular Hangzhou
Xiaoshan International Airport and Zhengzhou Xinzheng
International Airport.
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Our revenue from metro line media resources for the year
ended 31 December 2014 increased by approximately
HKDé8.8 million or 25.0%, from approximately HKD275.3 million
in 2013 to approximately HKD344.1 million in 2014, which was
primarily attributable to increases in revenue from our metro line
media businesses in Hong Kong and Shenzhen. We also
commenced operations at the metro line in Ningbo and
operations at metro lines in Wuxi during the year ended
31 December 2014.

Our revenue from billboards and building solutions increased
by approximately HKD18.6 million or 11.9%, from
approximately HKD155.5 million in 2013 to approximately
HKD174.1 million in 2014, which was primarily attributable to
increased advertising income from building solutions in Hong
Kong.

Other revenue increased by HKD67.2 million or 161.0%, from
approximately HKD41.7 million in 2013 to approximately
HKD108.9 million in 2014 which was primarily attributable to
the increase in our media agency business in respect of sales of
advertising spaces in media resources operated by certain
associate companies, in particular the Shenzhen Bao’an
International Airport which commenced the operations of
Terminal 3 in November 2013.

Cost of Revenue

Our cost of revenue increased by approximately
HKD28.5 million, or 3.4%, from HKD846.8 million for year
ended 31 December 2013 to HKD875.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2014. The increase was primarily due to
an increase of our concession fee charges for advertising space,
especially in our metro lines segment, by HKD46.2 million, net-
off by a decrease of HKD17.8 million business tax and related
surcharges due to a change in PRC tax policy.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014
increased 22.2% from approximately HKD364.5 million to
approximately HKD445.4 million due to: (1) the airports where
we have exclusive rights to mainstream media resources have
all been showing good momentum of stable growth; (2) the
concession fees remained relatively stable thanks to the
straight-line basis calculation of concession fees over the terms
of the concession rights contracts; and (3) the improvement in
gross profit margin in billboard and building solutions segment
of Hong Kong. The Group's gross profit margin as a result
increased from 30.1% for 2013 to 33.7% for 2014.
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Selling and Marketing Expenses

Our selling and marketing expenses increased by
approximately HKD7.2 million, or 9.7%, from HKD75.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2013 to HKD82.2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2014. This increase was primarily
attributable to increased employee benefit expenses as a result
of the growth of our business operations and employee
headcount.

Administrative Expenses

Our administrative expenses increased by approximately
HKD50.2 million, or 52.7%, from HKD95.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2013 to HKD145.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2014. This increase was primarily
attributable to the incurrence of listing-related expenses of
HKD31.1 million during the year and an increase in employee
benefit expenses due to the growth of our business operations
and employee headcount. Excluding the one-off listing-related
expenses, our administrative expenses increased by 20.0% over
that of 2013.

Finance Costs — net

Our net finance costs increased by approximately
HKD6.6 million, or 283.4%, from HKD2.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2013 to HKD8.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2014. This increase was primarily
attributable to a one-off discounting effect of interest-free loans
to an associated company, Fujian Zhaoxiang Advertising.

Share of Result of Investments in Associates

Our share of results of investments in associates decreased by
approximately HKD3.9 million, from profits of HKD3.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2013 to loss of HKDO0.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2014. This decrease was
primarily attributable to the decrease in share of profit of Fujian
Zhaoxiang Advertising during the year.

Income Tax Expense

Our income tax expense decreased by approximately
HKD10.3 million, or 27.2%, from HKD37.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2013 to HKD27.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2014. This decrease was primarily
attributable to the utilisation of prior year tax losses that were
not recognised as deferred tax assets and reversal of temporary
differences not recognised in prior years.
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Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

Given the context that the Group was in pre-IPO stage,
necessary resources and capital were allocated to achieve this
goal. A listing-related expense of approximately HKD31.1
million was recorded for the year ended 31 December 2014. As
a result, profit attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HKD142.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2014, increased by 10.3% from approximately
HKD129.3 million for 2013. After excluding the listing-related
expenses, profit attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HKD173.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2014, representing a remarkable year-on-year
increase of 34.4%.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND TREASURY POLICY
The Group adopts a prudent approach for cash management
and investment on funds. The net proceeds from the Listing
have mainly been placed on short-term deposits with reputable
banks in Hong Kong.

As the Group has offices and operations located in the PRC
and Hong Kong, most of our receipts and payments were
denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. The
directors of the Company consider the Group's exposure to
foreign exchange risk is insignificant. The Group will closely
monitors foreign exchange exposure and consider hedging
significant exposure should the need arise.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents, short-term deposits
and restricted cash was approximately HKD410.7 million as at
31 December 2014, an increase of approximately
HKD79.6 million compared with that as at 31 December 2013.
As at 31 December 2014, the financial ratios of the Group were
as follows:

mENE RO Current ratio®
BEARBELERO

o mBLLENFETABERBEER AR A

f&

@ ARBRELEENFAED ARG FAERAEE
&Ko

Gearing ratio?

R2014F #2013 F
12A31H 12H31H

As at As at

31 December 31 December
2014 2013

1.01 1.01

FEE FIRE

Net cash Net cash

Notes:

m Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current
liabilities.

@ Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing net debt by total equity.
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Net Current Assets

We had net current assets of HKD4.0 million as at 31 December 2014,
which represented a decrease of HKD4.2 million from net
current assets of HKD8.2 million as at 31 December 2013. This
was primarily due to an increase in dividend payable to then
shareholder of HKD148.2 million, which have been fully settled
in mid of January 2015; partially offset by an increase of
HKD47.9 million in trade and other receivables and increase of
HKD79.6 million in cash and cash equivalents, short-term
deposits and restricted cash.

Borrowings

The Group had bank borrowings as at 31 December 2014 in
the sum of approximately HKD120.2 million. Out of the total
borrowings, HKD111.6 million was repayable within one year,
while approximately HKD8.6 million was repayable after one
year. The carrying amounts of bank borrowings are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. No financial
instruments were used for hedging purposes, nor were there
any foreign currency net investments hedged by current
borrowings and/or other hedging instruments. The weighted
average interest rate (per annum) was 7.86% for non-current
borrowings and 5.51% for current borrowings as at
31 December 2014.

Exposure to Interest Rate Risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from interest-bearing short-
term deposits and bank borrowings. Short-term deposits and
bank borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk. Bank borrowings at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

Other than interest-bearing short-term deposits, the Group has
no other significant interest-bearing assets. The directors of the
Company do not anticipate there is any significant impact to
interest-bearing assets resulted from the changes in interest
rates, because the interest rates of short-term deposit are not
expected to change significantly.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2014, the Group pledged its buildings, land
use rights, investment properties, other non-current assets and
bank deposits with carrying amount of HKD32.0 million (2013:
HKD32.7 million) to secure borrowings of the Group. The
total secured borrowings as at 31 December 2014 amounted to
HKD120.2 million (2013: HKD123.1 million).
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Use of Proceeds

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 15 January 2015
and raised gross proceeds from the Listing of HKD660.0 million.
The proceeds from the listing were utilised for the following
purposes:

—  To expand our media resources at airports, including:

. approximately 34.6% of our net proceeds, for media
resources for the new airport terminal at Hangzhou
Xiaoshan International Airport;

e approximately 7.7% of our net proceeds, for
additional investments in Henan Airport Asiaray and
additional media resources in the new terminal
planned for Zhengzhou Xinzheng International
Airport;

—  To expand our media resources for metro lines, including:

. approximately 13.2% of our net proceeds, for
concession fees for metro line media resources in
Wuxi;

e approximately 7.9% of our net proceeds, for
additional investments in our joint venture to be
formed for our metro line operations in Zhengzhou;

° approximately 13.2% of our net proceeds, for
concession fees for metro line media resources for
Ningbo Metro Line No.1,;

o approximately 3.9% of our net proceeds, for
concession fees for metro line media resources for
Shenzhen Metro Line No.4;

— approximately 9.5% of our net proceeds, for media
resources for our billboards and building solutions; and

—  approximately 10.0% of our net proceeds, to be used for
working capital and other general corporate purposes.

During the period between the listing date and 31 March 2015,
HKD133.7 million of the net proceeds from the listing were
utilised. The unused proceeds were deposited in reputable
banks in Hong Kong.

Capital Expenditures

Our capital expenditures primarily comprise cash expenditures
for property, plant and equipment, such as advertising facilities
and furniture and office equipment. Our capital expenditures
for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 were
HKD29.6 million and HKD36.8 million, respectively.
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Commitments
(1) As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group did not
have any material capital commitments.

(2) Operating leases commitments

The Group leases certain office buildings and certain
media resources under non-cancellable operating lease
agreements. The lease terms for office buildings are
negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 10 years, and
those for media resources are negotiated for terms
ranging from 1 to 10 years, and majority of lease
agreements are renewable at the end of the lease period
at market rate.

The Group's future aggregate minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
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Contingent liabilities
As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group did not have
any material contingent liabilities.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

We offer competitive remuneration package, including
trainings, medical, insurance coverage and retirement benefits,
to all employees in Hong Kong and in the PRC. As at 31
December 2014, the Group has 769 permanent and temporary
employees. The total salaries and related costs for the year
ended 31 December 2014 amounted to approximately
HKD120.9 million (2013: HKD102.4 million).

The Group adopted a Share Option Scheme on é December
2014 for the purpose of recognition of employees’ contribution.
As at 31 December 2014, no share option has been granted by
the Company.
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Audit Committee Remuneration Committee

FETIE FETIE
Major Works Major Works
NREREZIE =T EEDEE
Internal Control issues Develop remuneration Policy
BIRGES - EREFoES
Financi Review remuneration package
SNIEEER S - olFTERENHIE
External audit matters REZBS® Formulate reward system
Hith Nomination Committee
Others BT
Major Works

ERNEEREERTE

Review new appointments and

succession plan

WREFSHEFEERTT

Ensure the Board with

appropriate skill, knowledge and

experiences

HHREFIXNEZ TR

Review the Board Diversity Policy

Bt Notes:
HE=HTEER ED= Executive Director
BIUIFRE = BULFRTES INED= Independent Non-Executive Director
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REB LB INTERNAL CORPORATE STRUCTURE
A EESZEEAZIEIE A. Allocation of tasks within the Board Committee
ExerET
Board Committee
EiHEES REZRS FMESS
Audit Nomination Remuneration
Name of Director Committee Committee Committee
IR E Lam Tak Hing, alias Vincent Lam C M
FSRRAE Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung C M
F5 512 SBS JP Ma Ho Fai SBS JP M M C
PR EIESBS JP Chan Chi Fai Andrew SBS JP M M
Bt Notes:
C HREEEZEEXR C Chairman of the relevant Board Committees
M HREEELEENE M Member of the relevant Board Committees
B. EBEHE B. Board Members
Bifu B AT, 5
Position Current Function/Experience
BITES
Executive Directors
MR E TEREFERTE > BEAEERBERBEHREINER
Lam Tak Hing, Chairman » responsible for overall strategic planning and
alias Vincent Lam Chief Executive Officer development of the Group
SHEX BEELER > BEASENTEERBHEEEREE
Yung Chung Man Chief Operations Officer > responsible for overall sales management and
operations in the PRC of the Group
FRE X BERMBEARME > BEASEMBER - B AEWERABEE
So Chi Man Chief Financial Officer/ > responsible for financial management, treasury,
Company Secretary company secretarial and internal control of the
Group
MKE BRETHKE > BEASENBEZERBRLERLHER
Lam Ka Po Chief Marketing Officer > responsible for overall operations in Hong Kong
and marketing management of the Group
5 B B
Name Independence’ Experience
BYFHTES
Independent Non-Executive Directors
SR > 't BEIREE
Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung v » Accounting, auditing and finance
F5 52 SBS JP > AR
Ma Ho Fai SBS JP v » Legal
BREHE SBS JP > IHER
Chan Chi Fai Andrew SBS JP 4 » Business Administration
BT RSB ESRITE  AEE T AE (] Note 1: none of the independent non-executive Director has engaged in

any business or has any relationship that can materially interfere
their independent judgement.
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The Board is committed to uphold good corporate governance
practices in the Company such that of the Company’s business
can be conducted in accordance with all applicable laws and
regulations, and the interests of the Company’s shareholders
can be safeguarded.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the principles of the code
provisions prescribed in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the "CG Code") set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules. As the shares of the Company were not yet listed on the
Stock Exchange until 15 January 2015 (the “Listing Date”), the
CG Report were not applicable to the Company in the period
under review.

Throughout the period since the Listing Date and up to the
date of this report, the Company has complied with all code
provisions of the CG Code except for deviations from code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code as summarized below:

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the role of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive
officer should be clearly established.

Mr. Lam Tak Hing, alias Vincent Lam currently assumes the role
of both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQ") of
the Company. The Board considers that this structure could
enhance efficiency in formulation and implementation of the
Company'’s strategies. The Board will review the need of
appointing suitable candidate to assume the role of CEO when
necessary.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules since its listing on
Main Board of Stock Exchange. The Model Code applies to all
Directors and all employees of the Company who have been
informed that they are subject to its provisions. As the shares of
the Company were not yet listed on the Stock Exchange until
the Listing Date, the Model Code was not applicable to the
Company in the period under review. The Company has made
specific enquiry of all Directors and that all the Directors
confirmed their compliance with the required standard set out
in the Model Code since the Listing Date and up to the date of
this report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report, the Board comprised four
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Tak Hing, alias Vincent Lam,
Mr. Yung Chung Man, Mr. So Chi Man and Mr. Lam Ka Po and
three independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung, Mr. Ma Ho Fai SBS JP and
Professor Chan Chi Fai Andrew SBS JP. There is no relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship(s)) among the Directors. The Board has established
three Board committees, being the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
(each a "Board Committee” and collectively the “Board
Committees”), to oversee different areas of the Company's
affairs.

The Directors come from diverse background with varied
expertise in finance, legal and business field. Biographical
details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Director’s Profile” on pages 17 to 20 of this annual report.

The Board is mainly responsible for formulating of the Group's
long term strategy and development plan, deciding major
financial and capital project and reviewing internal control and
risks.

The Board delegates aspects of its management and
administration functions to the management for implementing
day-to-day operation. It has given clear directions to the
management as to its powers, in particular, with respect to
different circumstances. While allowing management to enjoy
substantial autonomy to run and develop the Company’s
business, the Board also plays a key role in structuring and
monitoring the reporting systems and internal controls. The
composition and functions of each Board committee and their
major roles and functions are described below. The final
decision still rests with the Board unless otherwise provide for
in the terms of reference of the relevant committees.

The Directors including independent non-executive Directors
may seek legal advices at the Company’s expenses to
discharge their duties.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Company adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) on 6 December 2014 which set out its
approach to achieve diversity on the Board with a view to
achieving a sustainable and balanced development of the
Company.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills knowledge and length of service.
The Company will also take into account factors based on its
own business model and specific needs from time to time. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
All non-executive Directors including Independent non-
executive Directors were appointed for a term of three years.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, representing more than one-third of the Board. One
of the independent non-executive Directors has the appropriate
professional qualifications in accounting or related financial
management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Directors consider that the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. So Chi Man, the executive Director, chief financial officer
and company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”), is a full time employee of the Group and has day-
to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The Company
Secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring that Board
procedures are followed and that Board activities are carried
out efficiently and effectively. The Company Secretary also
advises the Board on the compliance of different laws and
regulations.

The Company Secretary attends all Board and Board
Committees meetings and ensures good information flows
within the Board and its committees and between management
and non-executive Directors.

The Board is fully involved in and responsible for the
appointment and removal of the Company Secretary.

The Company Secretary has complied with all qualifications,
experience and the training requirement as required by the
Listing Rules.

ACCESS TO INFORMATION

The Company will update all Directors the major changes of
the Group's business as well as in relevant rules and regulations
from time to time. They have the right to access the advices
and services of the Company Secretary who are responsible to
provide them the Board papers and related materials. In
addition, the Chairman holds regular meetings with non-
executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) without the presence of executive Directors annually.

A monthly update which gives a balanced and concise
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and
prospects in sufficient details is provided to all Directors to
enable the Board as a whole to discharge their duties.
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Directors

BITES

Executive Directors
iR

Lam Tak Hing,

alias Vincent Lam

FEX
Yung Chung Man

BRES L
So Chi Man

MKE
Lam Ka Po

BYFHITES

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung

558 SBS JP
Ma Ho Fai SBS JP

PR EHESBS JP
Chan Chi Fai Andrew SBS JP
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The Directors are also provided with names and contact details
of the Company’s senior management and the Company
Secretary to facilitate direct access to senior management and
the Company Secretary.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions
against the Directors and officers arising from corporate
activities.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

A comprehensive, formal and tailored induction training will be
given to every newly appointed Director. Directors will be
provided with materials relevant to the Company’s business
and director’s duties and responsibilities. In addition, in order
to allow the Directors to understand the latest development of
regulatory and compliance issues, they are also provided with
market news and regulatory updates. A summary of their
records of continuous development training (“CPD") is as

follows:

BERRIEIIER
Types of CPD

MBS

In-house Training

MBS

In-house Training

MBS

In-house Training

MBS

In-house Training

MBS

In-house Training

MBS

In-house Training

MBS

In-house Training

BERREIEE
Subject of CPD

EHRARESEFM

Guides for Directors of Listed Companies

EHRARESEFM

Guides for Directors of Listed Companies

EHRARESEFM

Guides for Directors of Listed Companies

EHRARESEFM

Guides for Directors of Listed Companies

EHMRARESEFM

Guides for Directors of Listed Companies

EHMRARESEFM

Guides for Directors of Listed Companies

EHMRARESEFM

Guides for Directors of Listed Companies
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BOARD MEETINGS AND BOARD PROCEEDINGS

The Board scheduled to meet at least four (4) times in the
beginning of the year under review, and the Board would also
meet on a particular matter when a board-level decision is
required. All Directors are invited to participate in these
meetings in person. For those Directors who are not able to
attend these meeting in persons, they are given the
opportunities to participate by telephone conferencing.

Throughout the year, the Directors participated in the approval
of routine and operation matters of the Company by way of
written resolutions or physical Board meeting together with
supporting documentation.

For regular meetings, Board members are given at least 14
days prior notice. The Company Secretary has throughout the
year assisted the Chairman in preparing the agenda for the
meeting. Directors may propose to the Chairman or the
Company Secretary to include matters in the agenda for regular
board meetings. The Directors have received the agenda with
supporting Board papers no less than three days prior to the
Board meetings. The Directors have also abstained from voting
on the relevant resolutions if he has a material interest in any
contract and arrangement. Such Director would not be counted
for quorum for the relevant resolutions. Minutes of meetings of
the Board and Board Committee are kept by the Company
Secretary in sufficient details of the matters considered and
decision reached, including dissenting views expressed, and
are opened for inspection on reasonable notice by any
Director. The draft minutes are circulated to all Directors for
comments as soon as practicable after the meetings.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary with a view to ensuring the Board
procedures are followed.

The Board has held two Board meetings during the year since
the Company only became listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 15 January 2015. The attendance of each
Director at the Board meeting is set out below:

HESEHE
HTERYA*

No. of meetings

attended/No. of

meetings held*

HITES Executive Directors

PR Lam Tak Hing, alias Vincent Lam 2/2
FEX Yung Chung Man 2/2
FRES X So Chi Man 2/2
MRE Lam Ka Po 2/2
BYFHITES Independent Non-Executive Directors

B Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung 2/2
F5 5 #E SBS JP Ma Ho Fai SBS JP 2/2
PR B SBS JP Chan Chi Fai Andrew SBS JP 2/2

* HEED2RNERESERAHEMETE * The attendance rates are calculated by reference to the number of
EEGHRIREGTH - board meetings held during the tenure of each individual director.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee (“NC") was established on
6 December 2014. The members of the NC are as follows:

Lam Tak Hing, alias Vincent Lam
Ma Ho Fai SBS JP
Chan Chi Fai Andrew SBS JP

The principal responsibilities of the NC are as follows:

(a) Selection, Appointment and re-appointment of
Directors
Pursuant to Article 16.18 of the Articles of Association of
the Company, every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Any
Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an
additional Director shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting of the Company and shall then
be eligible for re-election at that general meeting.

Independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a term
of three years subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
in accordance with the Articles of Association of Company.
Thus, no Directors have a term of appointment longer than
three years.

The NC assesses the potential candidate(s) and makes
recommendations to the Board for the selection and approval
of new Director(s) as follows:

(@) the NC evaluates the balance of skills, knowledge and
experience of the Board and the desirable competencies
needed for a particular appointment;

(b) the NC assesses the suitability of potential candidate(s)
and to ensure that the candidate(s) are aware of the
expectations of the Company and the level of
commitment required; and

() the NC makes recommendation to the Board for
approval.

As at the date of this report, the NC held one meeting
including but not limited to review the structure, size and
composition (including skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board, to make recommendations on the retiring Directors and
to review the Board Diversity policy.

The NC determines the independence of Director annually in
accordance with the guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.
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The following table shows the records of the NC meetings held
as at the date of this report:

HESHEHE
HTERYE

No. of meetings

attended/No. of
meetings held

AR Lam Tak Hing, alias Vincent Lam 171

B 1ESBS JP Ma Ho Fai SBS JP 11

PR 58 SBS JP Chan Chi Fai Andrew SBS JP 11
EiTEE® AUDIT COMMITTEE
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B 51ESBS JP
[ 5% SBS JP
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The Audit Committee ("AC") was established on 6 December
2014. The major roles and functions of the AC are to review
and supervise the financial reporting process, financial controls,
internal control and risk management system of the Group and
to provide recommendations and advices to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of external auditor
as well as their terms of appointment. In addition, the terms of
reference of AC have been reviewed and are in line with the
CG Code and adopted by the Board of the Company.

The members of AC of the Company are as follows:

Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung
Ma Ho Fai SBS JP
Chan Chi Fai Andrew SBS JP

All the members of AC are independent non-executive
Directors. The Chairman has accounting and risk management
expertise and experience. The other members provide
expertise in legal and business issues.

The AC met one time as at the date of this report. During the
meeting, the AC reviewed the results and the financial reports
with the management, discussed the annual audit issues with
the external auditor and made recommendation to the Board
on the re-appointment of the external auditor. All members of
the AC attended the meeting.
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The following table shows the records of the AC meetings held
as at the date of this report:

HESEHE
HTERYE

No. of meetings

attended/No. of
meetings held

f5lickes Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung 1/1
B ESBS JP Ma Ho Fai SBS JP 11
PR 548 SBS JP Chan Chi Fai Andrew SBS JP 11
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The AC reviewed and discussed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
auditing, internal controls, corporate governance practices and
financial reporting matters. The audited financial statements of
the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2014 have
been reviewed by the current AC.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The AC and the Board have reviewed the Company's
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2014. The Directors acknowledge their
responsibilities for the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and the Hong Kong Accounting Standard. The Directors
confirm that suitable accounting policies have been used and
applied consistently, and reasonable and prudent judgment
and estimates have been made in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. The Board is not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may affect the business of the Company or cast doubts on its
ability to continue as a going concern.

The external auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers,
acknowledge their reporting responsibilities in the auditors’
report on the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2014.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014, the fee payable to the
external auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, in
respect of audit and non-audit services is set out below:

2014 F

2014

FE&T

HKD’000

ZERAS - Audit Service: 3,029

IERZEBRTS - Non-Audit Services: 104
MARB EWEERN Professional fees incurred in connection

BEEH: with the Company'’s listing: 9,945
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The AC has been notified of the nature and the service charges
of non-audit services performed by PricewaterhouseCoopers
and considered that such services have no adverse effect on
the independence of the external auditor.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group's internal control system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute assurance of no material
misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risk
of failure in operational systems and achievements of the
Group's objectives.

The AC reviews on the adequacy of the Company’s internal
financial controls, operational and compliance controls and
system established by the management. The system of internal
controls established by the Company is designed to manage,
rather than eliminate the risk of failure in achieving the
Company's strategic objectives. The management is involved in
regular reviews of the risks that are significant to the fulfillment
of the objectives of the business. However, it should be noted
that such systems are designed to provide reasonable
assurance, but not an absolute guarantee against material
misstatement or loss.

The chief financial officer ("CFO") of the Company reports
directly to the Board and the AC and monitors the internal
control systems of the Group. The process used by the AC to
review the effectiveness of the internal control includes:

J reviewing the significant issues arising from the external
auditors; and

*  reviewing of the implementation status of action plans
developed by the management.

Review of the Group's internal controls covering major financial,
operational and compliance controls, as well as risk
management functions of different systems has been done on
systematic basis based on the risk assessment of the operations
and controls. No major issue but areas for improvement have
been identified. The Board and the AC considered that the key
areas of the Group's internal control systems are reasonably
implemented.
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The key elements of the internal control system of the Group
which is in place are as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Operating Structure

The Company has a Document Approval Authority Matrix
which sets the authorization and approval limits for daily
transactions of different threshold limits in different
business units. Transactions which exceed the threshold
limits requires the Board's approval.

Policies and Procedures

Certain formal procedures and manuals have been
adopted by the Company. The Offices Administrative
System was used by the Group to verify payment request
and instructions approval from different departments
head.

Whistleblowing Policy

A whistleblowing policy is established by the Company to
encourage the employees to report of any suspected
fraud, corruption, and dishonest practices or other
misconduct in the matters of business activities, financial
reporting or other matters to the AC.
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The policy is communicated through email or
correspondence to secure and protect the whistleblowers.
In addition, a whistleblower is able to disclose directly to
the Company Secretary.

Investigation will vary depending on the nature and
particular circumstances of each complaint made. The
matters raised may be investigated internally or referred
to the regulatory body in Hong Kong or Mainland China.

All reporting cases will be further reviewed by the AC and
the AC will take appropriate action depending on the
seriousness of the matter.

Financial Reporting

The Board is regularly updated on the Group's financial
performance by the senior management of the Company.
These reports provide explanations in comparison of
corresponding periods in the preceding year. In addition,
the senior management also provides the Board monthly
updates on key operational activities of the Group.

Financial Management

The management reviews the performance of each
business units on monthly basis to instill financial and
operational discipline at all levels of the organization.
Each business units have been clearly communicated the
reporting requirements of the Group.

Risk Management

The management regularly reviews the Group's business,
finance, operation and compliance risks and formulates
strategies and measures to mitigate the risks identified.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee (“RC") was established on 6
December 2014. The major function of the RC is to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and
remuneration structure for the Directors.

The members of the RC are as follows:

Lam Tak Hing, alias Vincent Lam
Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung
Ma Ho Fai SBS JP

RC held one meeting to review and make recommendations on
the remuneration package, including discretionary bonus, of
the Directors and their remuneration policies.
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The following table shows the attendance records of the RC
meeting held as at the date of this report:

HESEHE
HTERYE

No. of meetings

attended/No. of
meetings held

iR Lam Tak Hing, alias Vincent Lam 11

HRREE Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung 1/1

F5ZR#E SBS JP Ma Ho Fai SBS JP 11
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The emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
employees, for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out
on pages 171 of this annual report as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION
The Board responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as follows:

. Developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and making
recommendation to the Board;

o reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

o reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and

practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

J developing reviewing and monitoring the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to the
Group’s employees and Directors; and

. reviewing the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance policies.

The Board is going to perform the abovementioned corporate
governance functions by establishing a corporate governance
committee starting from the year of 2015 as the Company only
became listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
15 January 2015.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

(a) Convening of a Special General Meeting (SGM)
Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the
Company’s paid up capital can submit a written
requisition to convene an EGM pursuant to Cayman
Companies Law.

The requisition must state the purpose of the meeting
and signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
registered office of the Company and may consist of
several documents in like form each signed by one or
more requisitionists.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the
date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to
convene a meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting, but
any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the said date.

(b) Proposing a candidate for election as a Director at an

Annual General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 16.4 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, if a shareholder wish to propose a person
other than a retiring director of the Company for election
as a director of the Company at the AGM, he/she should
give a written notice of nomination to the Company
Secretary within the 7-day period commencing the day
after the despatch of the notice of the meeting (or such
other period as may be determined and announced by
the directors of the Company from time to time). Details
for the relevant requirements and procedures can be
found on the Corporate Governance section of the
Company'’s website.

SHAREHOLDER PARTICIPATION

The Board encourages shareholders to attend the AGM and to
meet with the Board so as to stay informed of the Company’s
developments and raise issues to the Board. The Directors
including the chairman of the AC as well as external auditors
will be present at general meeting to address shareholder’s
issues.

Shareholders can vote in person or appoint a proxy to attend
and vote on behalf of the Shareholders. All resolutions at
general meeting are decided on poll and scrutinized by the
share registrars of the Company. The poll results are published
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Shareholders may raise enquires to the Board by contacting our
investor relationship team through email (email: ir@asiaray.com)
or by mail (Unit 01-03, 17/F., Kornhill Plaza — Office Tower, 1
Kornhill Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong).

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company actively promotes effective communications with
shareholders and investors. All material information including
financial reports, announcement and circular are published
regularly and on a timely and consistent manner basis via the
Company and the Stock Exchange's websites.

The Chairman and the CEO or the CFO regularly communicate
with research analysts, fund managers and institutional investors
through face-to-face meetings, email communication and
teleconference to update them the latest corporate
developments and address their queries. All discussions are
limited to explain published material and non-price sensitive
information.

During the year, the Company also arranged analyst to visit the
Group's Hong Kong office to provide them with more detailed
knowledge of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN ARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATION

During the year, there is no significant change to the
Company's Articles of Association.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Our Company believes that being socially and environmentally
responsible is essential to the long-term sustainability of our
business. By protecting the environment, caring about the
community and creating a supportive workplace for our
employees, Asiaray has been awarded the Caring Company
Logo for more than 5 consecutive years (2008-2015) by the
Hong Kong Council of Social Service. Over the years, we have
made significant and measurable progress in each area of our
corporate social responsibility efforts:

Communities and Giving

At Asiaray, giving back to the local community has always been
one of our key missions. We encourage good citizenship by
collaborating with non-profit organizations that reach out to
those in need. To address key social issues, our staff members
have participated in different initiatives such as elderly home
visits and charity sports events. We embrace our corporate
citizenship through many volunteer activities that support the
community:

. Caring for the senior citizens has always topped our
agenda. We cooperated with Helping Hand, a charity
organization, to organize elderly home visits, through
which our staff members provided the elderly residents
with support, love, and care.

o We have supported the Chile 2014 Homeless World Cup
Hong Kong Fundraising Tournament. By demonstrating
Asiaray’s unbreakable team spirit on the football field, the
Asiaray Soccer Team has won the 2nd runner-up in the
“The Cares Cup”.
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. We continued to support and participate in the éth “Sports
Day for all” volunteer activity. In the event, our staff
members were among the 3,434 participants who formed
the Longest Handshake Chain ever created in the world,
a new Guinness World Record was set for the event.

Apart from our volunteer opportunities, our commitment to the
community is also evidenced in our sponsorship and donations.
We provide certain advertising panels, both in Hong Kong and
the PRC, to charity organizations for free or at a relatively lower
cost, to enable them to promote their charity events and cause-
related marketing activities.

Spreading love and happiness is our key mission in community
initiatives. Therefore, we have launched the We Love-themed
campaign series in Hong Kong and the PRC to cheer up our
communities. We encouraged local citizens to capture their
special moments with the city in photos and share the images
via social platform. Selected pictures were showcased in our
media channels. The We Love HK campaign was a huge
success with over 1,000 pictures shared in just a month.

The We Love-themed campaign has not only engaged the
public in creating unique experiences, it has also strengthened
the sense of togetherness among members of the community.
As always, Asiaray set out to add sparkles to the everyday life
of community members, and to create special occasions out of
their everyday routines.
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People and culture

We deeply believe that our people are our most valuable
assets, thus we dedicate significant resources to attract and
retain our talented employees, and to ensure that our people
will grow alongside our business. Our company is characterized
by a vibrant people-oriented culture, as a result, a strong sense
of belonging is fostered among our team members, a fruit of
our heavy focus on staff engagement.

On training professionals, we invest heavily in staff
development and support all members to grow their careers.
We provide mandatory training to newly recruited employees
and existing members on an ongoing basis, so as to equip
them with skill sets to excel in their respective fields. In
particular, regular trainings are provided for our marketing and
sales team members, and regular safety trainings are provided
for our front-line operations staff. Through workshops and
conferences, both interdepartmental and of multiple regions,
our people in different offices are able to exchange their
experiences and knowledge.

We appreciate open communication among employees,
therefore a communication system was established to facilitate
internal communication, consultation activities, and complaint
handling etc. Apart from communicating company policies to
our employees, the communication system also ensures that
the precious opinions and complaints of our employees are
heard and acted upon. The senior management conducts
regular meetings with staff members to listen to their
feedbacks, and to discuss issues of their concern, especially in
the fields of career development and employee benefits.
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To build a strong sense of unity among various offices, we have
published an internal e-magazine called “The Rhythm of
Asiaray” (F##9), in which colleagues share moments of their lives
and offices in different locations provide updates. Inspiring
stories and other insights are also discussed in the publication.

Staff safety is our foremost concern, thus we emphasize the
knowledge of safety measures among our people. In addition
to providing safety trainings to operations employees, we have
also appointed safety officers, who have undergone relevant
safety trainings, to monitor operational works and to ensure
that all safety requirements are properly implemented. The
Group's operations are covered by insurance policies, which
cover, among others, third party liability, public liability and
employee compensation.

The achievements of our employees provide foundation for our
business development, therefore the Group places heavy focus
on talent retention. We provide competitive remuneration
packages to our staff, including discretionary bonuses and
incentives based on sales and other performance indicators.
The group also organizes various activities to boost staff morale
and team spirts, including birthday parties, annual dinner, and
sports activities etc. By organizing these staff engagement
activities, we have created a strong bond with our employees
and cultivated a loyal and dedicated workforce.
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Environmental sustainability

As a corporate citizen who cares about the earth, Asiaray is
committed to reducing its carbon footprint in every aspects of
its business. By making the best use of resources, we strive to
conserve the living environment of our planet for the sake of
our future generations. Throughout the years, we have adopted
numerous green initiatives:

J To raise the staff's awareness towards global climate
change, we have supported the World Wide Fund's Earth
Hour Campaign by inviting clients and partners to switch
off outdoor billboard lightings and building solutions. To
educate the public about the importance of energy
conservation, we have utilized EDMs and online social
networks to spread the message among employees and
members of the public.

] We have made significant efforts in exploring new
printing materials, LED lightings and other environment-
friendly applications. By researching and developing
innovative products, we strive to reduce and mitigate the
damage to the earth we live in.

. At the end of campaign display periods, we recycle
certain kinds of advertising materials, such as card boards,
to minimize wastage.

o Paper recycling policy is implemented in offices in Hong
Kong and the PRC. Staff members are encouraged to
adopt energy saving practices, such as setting their
computers to sleep mode when not in use, reducing the
energy usage in air conditioners, and reducing paper
consumption in internal communications by switching to
the use of emails.

After a year of vigorous environmental protection efforts, the
Group has successfully reduced the usage of energy, water and
paper. We will carry on our green initiatives and incorporate
environmental protection considerations into every business
decisions we make.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
The Company was incorporated in Cayman Islands. The
principal place of business of the Group is in Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is an investment holding
company. The principal activities of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries are set out in the financial statements on pages 78.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on page 74.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK6.5 cents per ordinary share, totally HKD28.6 million. The
final dividend is expected to be paid to those shareholders
whose name appear on the register of members of the
Company on 18 June 2015.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements of the share capital of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in
note 19 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group’s property, plant and
equipment during the year ended 31 December 2014 are set
out in note 6 to the financial statements.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last four financial years is set out on page
190. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2014 are set
out in note 20 to the financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
As at 31 December 2014, the Company'’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
approximately HKD250.2 million.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group's top
five largest customers accounted for 9.6% (2013: 9.0%) of our
revenues and the single largest customer accounted for 3.2%
(2013: 2.8%) of our revenues. The Group's top five suppliers,
who were the media resources owners, accounted for 52.8%
(2013: 56.8%) of our cost of revenue and the single largest
supplier accounted for 20.3% (2013: 19.4%) of our cost of
revenue.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their associates
or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has any
interest in the Group's five largest suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Lam Tak Hing,

alias Vincent Lam (appointed on 20 May 2014
Mr. Yung Chung Man (appointed on 20 May 2014
Mr. So Chi Man (appointed on 20 May 2014
Mr. Lam Ka Po (appointed on 20 May 2014

==

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung (appointed on 20 May 2014)
Mr. Ma Ho Fai (appointed on 20 May 2014)
Professor Chan Chi Fai Andrew (appointed on 20 May 2014)

Details of the Directors’ biographies have been set out on
pages 17 to 20 of the annual report. Pursuant to Article 16 of
the Company’s Articles of Association, all Directors will retire
by rotation and all of them, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’
CONFIRMATION

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rule”)
and as at the date of this report still considers that all of the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2014, none of the Directors proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument package of the Directors and senior
management of the Group is reviewed and recommended by
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme to the
eligible persons as incentives or rewards for their contribution
to the Group.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors of the Company and
the five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2014 are set out in note 26 to the financial
statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes organized by the PRC municipal and provincial
government authorities for the Group's eligible employee in
the PRC, and operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme for
the employee in Hong Kong. Particulars of these retirement
plans are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES OF THE
COMPANY (THE “SHARES"), UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at the date of this report (the Company was listed in Main
Board of Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 15 January 2015) the
interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO")) which were required (a) to be notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (b) to be recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO or (c) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code. for Securities Transactions by of Listed Issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”), were
as follows:

RERE/

HEEE

BARRED L

Approximate

percentage of

shareholding in

the Company/

Number of associated

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest Shares corporations

Name of company

WEELE YN RREFRNARAR
RREHZENES

Founder of a discretionary trust and
interest in a controlled corporation

Space Management Limited ~ EZBEAA 88,000,000 100%

Beneficial owner

330,000,000 (L) 75%

Mr. Lam Tak Hing,
alias Vincent Lam

The Company

Media Cornerstone Limited BEREAA 242,000,000 100%
Beneficial owner
Shalom Family Holding Limited 71255 E o £ 242,000,000 100%

Interest in a controlled corporation
Biet Note:

Mr. Lam is the sole shareholder of Space Management Limited
("Space Management”) which holds 88,000,000 Shares. In addition,
Mr. Lam is the founder of the Shalom Trust (a discretionary trust
established by Mr. Lam as settlor of which UBS Trustee (BVI) Limited
acts as the trustee and beneficiaries of which are Mr. Lam, certain of
his family members and other persons who may be added from time
to time) which indirectly holds the entire issued share capital of
Media Cornerstone Limited (“Media Cornerstone”) which holds
242,000,000 Shares. By virtue of the SFO, he is deemed to be
interested in the Shares in which Space Management and Media
Cornerstone are interested.

1. K% & A ¥ %588,000,000 % A% 15 &) Space 1.
Management Limited ([ Space Management])
EOME—BRER o UbSD - #RSE AR Shalom Trust (4
—HAMEEUMERTATORINEE
{Z 35 & 5% A AUBS Trustee (BVI) Limited *
ERABAMEERA  HEFTREKER
AN BF NACH) H A A ) 89 8l 9 A - Shalom
Trustfl # 3% /A Media Cornerstone Limited
([Media Cornerstone|) 2 #8 B B 1T IR A< +
Media Cornerstone # A 242,000,000 % % 15 °
RIEE S R EE GG - Mo EHR B Space
Management & Media Cornerstone # 5 14 )

M7 A R
5 Abbreviations:
(Ll REFAE “L" stands for long position
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Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, none of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company had any
interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required
(a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) to be recorded
in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the
SFO or (c) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company's share option scheme was adopted pursuant to
a resolution passed on 6 December 2014 (the “Scheme”) for
the primary purpose of providing incentives or rewards to
eligible persons as defined in the Scheme for their contribution
or potential contribution to the Group and will expire on
14 January 2025.

Under the Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, offer to any
employee of the Group, options to subscribe for shares of the
Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated in the
Scheme.

(a) Purpose of the Scheme
The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Board to
provide incentives or rewards to the eligible persons for
their contribution or potential contribution to the Group.

(b) Participants of the Scheme

Pursuant to the Scheme, the board of the Company may
at its absolute discretion grant options to any eligible
employee, contracted celebrity, advisor, consultant,
service provider, agent, customer, partner or joint-venture
partner of the Company or its subsidiaries (including any
director, whether executive or non-executive and whether
independent or not, of the Company or its subsidiaries)
who is in full-time or part-time employment with the
Company or its subsidiaries at the time when an option is
granted to such employee, or any person who, in the sole
discretion of the Board, have contributed or may
contribute to the Group.
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(e)
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(c)

(d)

(e)

Total number of shares available for issue under the
Scheme

The total number of shares available for issue under the
Scheme is 44,000,000 Shares.

The maximum number of shares of the Company which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and
any other schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30%
of the total number of shares of the Company in issue
from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant
(including those exercised, outstanding and cancelled
options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of
the total number of shares of the Company in issue,
unless approved by the shareholders of the Company in
the manner as stipulated in the Scheme.

Time of exercise of options

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee,
which period may commence on the date on which the
offer for the grant of options is made but shall end in any
event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the
option subject to the provisions for early termination
thereof. No minimum period for which the option must
be held before it can be exercised as specified in the
Scheme.
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(f

(9)

(h)

The subscription price per share

The subscription price per share in respect of an option
granted under the Scheme is such price as determined by
the Board of the Company at the time of the grant of the
options, but in any case the subscription price shall not
be lower than the higher of:

e the closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange on the date on which the options
are offered, which must be a business day;

° the price being the average closing price of the
shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the
date of offer of the options; and

e the nominal value of a share of the Company on the
date of offer.

Payment on acceptance of option

A non-refundable sum of HKD10.00 or other amount as
determined by the board of the Company by way of
consideration for the grant of an option is required to be
paid by each of the grantee upon acceptance of the
option.

Remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme will expire on 14 January 2025 and no further
options may be granted but the provisions of the Scheme
shall in all other respects remain in force and effect and
options which are granted during the life of the Scheme
may continue to exercise in accordance with their
respective terms of grant.

As at the date of this report, no option had been granted by
the Company.
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FERANBROREBEARG 2B INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES
1590 AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

WAREBE  REESEHAH UTALR As at the date of this report, so far as is known to the Directors,
ARRRAOSFAEEROEERIEESPE the following persons have an interest or short position in the
EBIZEXVELZE 2 &35 B R E ARIA R A # shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
BERIRIEBA R EE0IE 336 IFL A A be disclosed to the Company under the provision of Divisions 2
REFEZELMT 2 EEmIOAR and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and are recorded in the register

kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:
REBROREBRG ZFR Long positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares

REXFZ
510 HENEE ROBE BOREIL

Approximate

percentage of
Number of shareholding in

Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature of interest Shares the Company
Media Cornerstone Limited BEmiEA A 242,000,000(L)’ 55%
Media Cornerstone Limited Beneficial owner 242,000,000(L) 55%
Shalom Family Holding Limited RSP H A E A 242,000,000(L)! 55%
Shalom Family Holding Limited Interest in a controlled corporation 242,000,000(L)" 55%
UBS Trustee (BVI) Limited Shalom Trust £ 5E A 242,000,000(L) 55%
UBS Trustee (BVI) Limited Trustee of Shalom Trust 242,000,000(L) 55%
Space Management Limited EmiEA A 88,000,000(L)2 20%
Space Management Limited Beneficial owner 88,000,000(L)? 20%
Great World HK Media Pte. Ltd. EHEAA 25,843,000(L) 5.87%
Great World HK Media Pte. Ltd. Beneficial owner 25,843,000(L)® 5.87%
L Capital Asia 2 Pte. Ltd. REEHEE SR 25,843,000(L) 5.87%
L Capital Asia 2 Pte. Ltd. Interest in a controlled corporation 25,843,000(L) 5.87%
L Capital Asia 2 LP REEHEE SR 25,843,000(L) 5.87%
L Capital Asia 2 LP Interest in a controlled corporation 25,843,000(L) 5.87%
L Capital Asia 2 GP REEHEE SR 25,843,000(L) 5.87%
L Capital Asia 2 GP Interest in a controlled corporation 25,843,000(L) 5.87%
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Notes:

1. The 242,000,000 shares held by Media Cornerstone. Media
Cornerstone is wholly owned by Shalom Family Holding Limited
(“Shalom Family”), which is in turn wholly owned by the Shalom Trust,
discretionary trust. The Shalom Trust established by Mr. Lam as
settlor and UBS Trustees (BVI) Limited as trustee. The discretionary
beneficiaries of the Family Trust are Mr. Lam, certain of his family
members and other persons who may be added from time to time.
By virtue of the SFO, the Trustee is deemed to be interested in the
shares in which Media Cornerstone is interested in.

2. Mr. Lam is the sole shareholder of Space Management which holds
88,000,000 Shares. In addition, Mr. Lam is the founder of the Shalom
Trust, which indirectly holds the entire issued share capital of Media
Cornerstone which holds 242,000,000 Shares. By virtue of the SFO,
he is deemed to be interested in the shares in which Space
Management and Media Cornerstone are interested.

3. Great World HK Media Pte Ltd. (“Great Wealth”) is wholly owned by
L Capital Asia 2 Pte. Ltd. ("LC Pte”). LC Pte is wholly owned by L
Capital 2 LP ("L Cap"). L Cap is wholly owned by L Capital Asia 2 GP
("L Cap Asia”). By virtue of the SFO, Great Wealth, LC Pte, L Cap,
and L Cap Asia are deemed to be interested in the shares.

Abbreviations:
“L" stands for long position

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company were not
aware of any person who has an interest or short position in the
Shares, or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who was recorded
in the register kept by the Company under section 336 of SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
or the chief executives of the Company or any of their
respective spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance, to which the Company, any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
or at any time during the year, ended 31 December 2014, nor
had there been any contract of significance entered into
between the Group, and a controlling shareholder of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or for the provision of
services to the Group by a controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2014.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 15 January 2015. None of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2014.

COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2014, in so far as the Directors were aware,
none of the Directors or their respective associates had any
interest in a business that competed or was likely to compete
with the business of the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed herein, during the year ended 31 December 2014,
the Group entered into a number of transactions with entities
which will be regarded as connected parties of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As disclosed in the prospectus dated 31 December 2014, the
annual cap of the concession and/or service fee for the year
ended 31 December 2014 include:

i. the framework agreement with Yunnan Airport Group
Limited Liability Company and its associates is RMB95.9
million. The concession fee payable for the year ended 31
December 2014 was RMB87.7 million;

i.  the agreement with Henan Zhengzhou Xinzheng Airport
Management Company Limited and its associates is
RMB42.1 million and the concession fee payable for the
year ended 31 December 2014 was RMB37.5 million; and

ii.  the framework agreement with Shenzhen Airport Asiaray
Media Company Limited and its associates is RMB60.0
million and the service fee payable for the year ended 31
December 2014 was RMB37.0 million.

Asiaray Media Group Limited 2014 Annual Report 65



ST ¥ REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEQ(BRBYINTESR) CEMLER
ZEER

i BRAKEHREERBE:
i R-REEERE BN AEE RSB

FE= T RESEEHIETET &

i.  REBEAFEENAOGENRGIL - XTE
AR BPREERE R &R

RELTHRAUFE14AI G - EFSEEEAR
AR ERERZRITE T HERT -
MEBMENESZEEREHZETEFH

ARAREMENEESEERIALXSER -

) EBEEZ=aftE:

b) NEAEBEHEERRK:

K&

(d) Ti#BBE20145 12 A 31 BRHEKREZIRRT
BEZEZ2014F12A31BLEFENERA
SRR -

BB ETRAE13.51B() RESE
B2

RAFHERAE  RAREZTEHNBAR
A LT REBEEE -

BrRBERE
REARFZEMERLFAEHSEE I
AR SR BB ARME 2 16 SOR TE AR R RIAREL B A
RARRBEEINR o

HHEEREBEERAR 201458/ 66

The Board, including the independent non-executive Directors,
has reviewed and confirmed that the fees were:

i. in the ordinary course of business of the Group;

ii.  either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from
independent third party; and

iii.  in accordance with the terms of the Contract that are fair
and reasonable and in the interest of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the auditor of the Company to perform certain agreed
upon procedures in respect of the Continuous Connected
Transactions and the auditor has reported the factual findings
on these procedures to the Board committee.

The auditor of the Company has confirmed to the Board in
writing that the fees:

(@) was approved by the Board;
(b)  was in accordance with the pricing policy of the Group;

(c) was entered into in accordance with the terms of the
Lease Contract, governing the transactions; and

(d) did not exceed the relevant cap amount for the year
ended 31 December 2014 as set out on the prospectus
dated 31 December 2014.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING
RULES

As at the date of publication of this annual report, the
information of Directors of the Company remain unchanged
since the date of the listing of the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s articles of association or the laws of Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on the information that was publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the
date of this report, there was sufficient public float of not less
than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under
the Listing Rules.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(a) Annual General Meeting
The register of members of the Company will be closed
from 8 June to 10 June 2015, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In
order to determine who are eligible to attend and vote at
the annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on 10 June 2015, the shareholders’ of the Company
should ensure that all transfers, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration
with the Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716,
17/F., Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on 5 June
2015.

(b) Payment of the proposed final dividend

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from 16 June to 18 June 2015, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In
order to be qualified for the proposed final dividend, all
transfers, accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged for registration with the Company’s share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F., Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not later than
4:30 p.m. on 15 June 2015.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board is pleased to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HKé6.5 cents (2013: nil) per share, totaling
HKD28.6 million which is expected to be paid on 25 June 2015
to its shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members on 18 June 2015 subject of the final approval in the
annual general meeting to be held on 10 June 2015.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee in
compliance with the Listing Rules. The current audit committee
comprises of Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung (chairman), Mr. Ma Ho Fai
and Professor Chan Chi Fai Andrew, all of whom are
independent non-executive Directors.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control
system of the Group, and to review the Company’s annual
report and half-yearly reports and to provide advices and
comments thereon to the Board.

The audit committee has reviewed the Group's annual results
for the year ended 31 December 2014, including the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to adopt corporate governance
practices. The Company’s corporate governance practices are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on page 35 of this
annual report.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HKD1,035,000 (2013: HKD5,000) of this annual
report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. A
resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCooper as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Lam Tak Hing, alias Vincent Lam
Chairman
Hong Kong, 31 March 2015



VKR

RMER 25

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

.
pwec

BRAEEREEERQTRR
(RESHEZMK L BRLA])

AR EREN (A T T8 (3] EBZFENE
TNME18 BT HEEEBERAR (AT
BIEAR REMBAR (KB E£®])
MWEHMBRE LEHMBERREER
2014 12ANBMEHNARIEERAGER
HBEEZAILFENEHEEKEE - &0
EnEHREEHESRER URTES
AR E R E MM REE R -

ESHEHUMBRRARENSE

ERREFARERBEEESTMAGEM
B &S W ISR R R B ECR RHEDDEI
BRERHEGHVBTERE - WS AU BR
RFELEEMAFHRER - REEERRE
HE B MRA VBN EES - UES
DF T 3R AN 77 4 B 0 ARRE Sk R RR T 28 B
ERFERERL -

RBENEE
BANREEREBERMANBZLZETE G
BHRRELER - BERABERKRRRE - Bt
ZINRBERIEEM B - KT ERA R
ERARREAMEMALE ERAEEFE
fF o

BAEREEESTMIOGRMAOTEREK
ERETER - RFEUBRBMETER
MBI REIMAITES  AEEBEA G
BimEREE M EEMERBRRAL

B Fopk KB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ASIARAY MEDIA GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Asiaray Media Group Limited (the "Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 71 to
189, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

| EEnEATAEN —f2

BEh: +85222809 8888 {HHE: +852 2810 9888

22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2289 8888 Fax: +852 2810 9888
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AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the Group's profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 31 March 2015
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ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Land use rights
Investment properties
Intangible assets
Investments in associates
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Available-for-sale financial assets
Deferred income tax assets
Non-current portion of other
receivables
Other non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Short-term deposits
Restricted cash
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Share capital
Reserves
Retained earnings

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

M®12H831H
As at 31 December
2014 F

2014
TR
HKD’000

20134
2013
FET
HKD’000

6 83,518 64,008
7 16,935 -
8 786 882
9 1,061 1,052
12 36,442 66,444
10 3,735 2,697
10 8,734 8,919
14 58,232 43,379
16 18,206 -
15 - 31,816
227,649 219,197

268 373

16 353,735 305,779
17 194,136 119,473
18 80,968 11,043
18 135,630 200,548
764,737 637,216

992,386 856,413

19 33,000 -
20 (4,269) 19,349
95,343 132,968

124,074 152,317

84,697 55,047

208,771 207,364
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AiHEEEBES  CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

R12A31H
As at 31 December
20145 2013 4F
2014 2013
FET FAET
HKD’'000 HKD'000
af& Liabilities
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
BN Borrowings 21 8,557 10,258
H T IBRIIERDEAZES  Non-current portion
of other payables 22 14,228 9,819
RIEFTEREE Deferred income tax liabilities 14 75 =
22,860 20,077
REEE Current liabilities
AT BR 3R N EL A B A< 30O Trade and other payables 22 631,142 485,963
BIEAFT SR aE Current income tax liabilities 17,987 27,406
RN Borrowings 21 111,626 115,603
760,755 628,972
BeE Total liabilities 783,615 649,049
wmEZREE Total equity and liabilities 992,386 856,413
REBEEFE Net current assets 3,982 8,244
HBEERRBEE Total assets less current liabilities 231,631 227,441
FT78E 189 AMMERZEFA I EIHREM The notes on pages 78 to 189 are integral parts of these
—& 5 e consolidated financial statements.
FT1E19ANTBEHRRELEZTEN2015 The financial statements on pages 71 to 189 were approved for
FIANBHERE  WHATEEFKEE issue by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2015 and were
Z - signed on its behalf.
MERE BEX
Lam Tak Hing, alias Vincent Lam So Chi Man
BE EF
Director Director
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Lam Tak Hing, alias Vincent Lam

HENMERZEFAHMBRERDN

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investment in a subsidiary

Current assets
Other receivables

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Share capital

Reserves

Retained earnings

Total equity
Liabilities

Current liabilities
Other payables

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

signed on its behalf.

BREX
So Chi Man

Director

Asiaray Media Group Limited

13

16

19
20

22

A 2014 F
12H31H

As at

31 December

2014
TR
HKD’000

280,094

187,165

467,259

33,000
249,674
539

283,213

184,046

184,046

467,259

3,119

283,213

The notes on pages 78 to 189 are integral parts of these
consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 71 to 189 were approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2015 and were
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HZ12A3MBLEE

Year ended 31 December

20145 2013 4F
2014 2013
Kt e FET FAET
Note HKD’'000 HKD'000
WA Revenue 5 1,320,686 1,211,309
L ONDEN Cost of revenue 23 (875,313) (846,764)
EF Gross profit 445,373 364,545
HEMRTSHERERY Selling and marketing expenses 24 (82,231) (74,986)
THAX Administrative expenses 25 (145,525) (95,294)
H A g A Other income 27 10,013 8,025
Hithlas — 558 Other gains — net 28 1,934 1,530
R FE Operating profit 229,564 203,820
BEBA Finance income 29 6,844 5,792
BE KA Finance costs 29 (15,746) (8,114)
BB — 358 Finance costs — net 29 (8,902) (2,322)
DR E AR E %A Share of results of investments
in associates 12 (819) 3,122
EYRET YIRS Profit before income tax 219,843 204,620
Frisfif X Income tax expense 30 (27,531) (37,817)
FEFE Profit for the year 192,312 166,803
HitiRE W Other comprehensive income
AHEFPEEEIEMEE  Items that may be reclassified
to profit or loss
— At EeREE — Net losses from changes in fair
(BHR) A FEES value of available-for-sale
EEFE financial assets, net of tax (154) (235)
— B HEAHEESR — Less: reclassification of changes
BE(BHH) &G in fair value of available-for-sale
AEEEeREE financial assets to profit or loss
NHEZBHEHN DR upon disposal of available-for-
ZiEm sale financial assets, net of tax - (61)
— EBBREEE — Currency translation differences 2,167 1,168
— R HE—FHMREAF] — Less: reclassification of currency
BEEERE TR translation differences to profit
ENOBEERR or loss upon disposal of a
subsidiary - (382)
2,013 490
FEMREWRHAE Total comprehensive income
for the year 194,325 167,293

HAHEREBERARF  2014FH
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St SWEs3<  CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HZ12A3MBLEE

Year ended 31 December

2014 F 20134
2014 2013
THET FET
HKD'000 HKD'000

DT &AEEFE : Profit attributable to:
ViN/NEIE Z =N Owners of the Company 142,555 129,261
R Non-controlling interests 49,757 37,542
FERE Profit for the year 192,312 166,803

UTRAFEEHENEEEE : Total comprehensive income
attributable to:

RATHER A Owners of the Company 144,573 128,678
FEFEAR R RS Non-controlling interests 49,752 38,615

FEAEWRZHE Total comprehensive income
for the year 194,325 167,293

AREERQATER AEML Earnings per share attributable to
BREBEF (LAFRETYR)  owners of the Company for the
year (expressed in HKD per share)

— EAXREE — Basic and diluted 31 0.43 0.39
’RE Dividends 32 208,780 -
E78E 189 AN REZ S A MU BRKRE The notes on pages 78 to 189 are integral parts of these
—#5 - consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

ARFRA AL
Attributable to owners of the Company

Bx s RERN & FEREE AR

Non-

Share Retained controlling Total
capital  Reserves  earnings Total interests equity
TEL TATL TAT TEL TR TR

HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000 ~ HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000

R2013%E1 51 B &8 Balance at 1 January 2013 = 19,932 3,707 23,639 16,432 40,071
FelE Comprehensive income
EEHE Profit for the year - - 129261 129,261 37542 166,803
Etofra e Other comprehensive income
- T#ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ%(amﬁ) — Losses from changes in fair value of
ATHEESEE available-for-sale financial assets,
net of tax - (235) - (235) - (235)

—HEMHNELEEE — Reclassification of changes in fair value of

(BB KB HILE available-for-sale financial assets to profit

SREELTERD or loss upon disposal of available-for-sale

BN EEER financial assets, net of tax - (61) - (61) - (61)
—EBpEEE — Currency translation differences - 95 - 95 1,073 1,168

— HE—TEHBAREEEE — Reclassification of currency translation
BEEZRENEEER differences to profit or loss upon disposal

(Wiit34) of a subsidiary (Note 34) - (382) - (382) - (382)
Gehzas Total comprehensive income = (583) 129,261 128,678 38,615 167,293
R2013E12 A31 BE& Balance at 31 December 2013 - 19,349 132,968 152,317 55,047 207,364
201451 510485 Balance at 1 January 2014 - 19,349 132,968 152,317 55,047 207,364
FENE Comprehensive income
EERE Profit for the year - - 142,555 142,555 49,757 192,312
Eftiral Other comprehensive income
—AHHESREAE(BINH) — Losses from changes in fair value of

ATEEEER available-for-sale financial assets,

net of tax - (154) - (154) - (154)
—EHhEEE — Currency translation differences = 2,172 = 2,172 (5) 2,167
GaknEE Total comprehensive income - 2,018 142,555 144,573 49,752 194,325
BEEARTHRG Shares issued pursuant to the Reorganisation

(Bi19) (Note 19) 33,000 (32,900) - 100 - 100
FERERLE Capital injection by non-controlling interests - - - - 380 380
—ANBARMESERE  Changesin ownership interest in a subsidiary

?EEE@@J (I R without change of control (Note 20)

“““““ E2B) (H20) - 7,264 - 7,264 (6,726) 538
BRE g () /jﬁ #32) Dividends (Note 32) - - (180,180) (180,180)  (13,756) (193,936)
EENESEIREBALN  Total transactions with owners,

RPEE recognised directly in equity 33,000  (25,636) (180,180) (172,816)  (20,102)  (192,918)
R2014E12 A31 BEE Balance at 31 December 2014 33,000 (4,269) 95,343 124,074 84,697 208,771
B78E 189 B I A E A M ERERL The notes on pages 78 to 189 are integral parts of these
— 2R consolidated financial statements.
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SHRERE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BZE12A31BLFE

Year ended 31 December

EEEHABNRSRE

Cash flows from operating activities

2014 £

2014
FTET
HKD’000

20134
2013
FABTT

HKD’000

EIBATIS fﬁ@ Cash generated from operations 33 124,055 180,034
RN Interest paid (9,383) (7,896)
B @A 1a B Income tax paid (51,562) (32,481)
EETHMESRERH Net cash generated from operating

activities 63,110 139,657
RETHRAEHRSRE Cash flows from investing activities
EEWE - WEKEE Purchases of property, plant and

equipment (29,359) (35,565)
BN TFEYAEBZRERRD Payments for financial assets at fair

SRLEEN K value through profit or loss (586) (587)

BEAHNECMERE Purchases of available-for-sale

financial assets - (9,201)
RELE N AR E R Payments for investments in associates = (17,494)
BEETEE Purchases of intangible assets (285) (1,153)
BEETYENRK Payments for purchases of certain

properties - (965)
HERAEHESRERE Proceeds from disposal of available-

FT{S5k1A for-sale financial assets - 9,536
LEWE - BB REE Proceeds from disposal of property,

FTiS k18 plant and equipment 33 388 177
HE—TWEBARFSHIE  Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries,

(HKREERS) net of cash acquired - (151)
UL R| & Interest received 5,108 3,836
BT ESEEERSE  Dividends on available-for-sale

financial assets received 27 329 402
B HATE g A0 Increase in short-term deposits (74,663) (108,448)
BEEEH AR S S Net cash used in investing activities (99,068) (159,613)
METBRENEERE Cash flows from financing activities
& ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%’/{lﬁ Proceeds from borrowings 149,062 110,288
BiEEm Repayment of borrowings (154,162) (52,531)
SRR A Capital injection by non-controlling

interests 380 -
FafRt ETAERE R X Prepayment for listing-related

enses (10,984) =

B NG D) DIVI end paid to the then shareholder

&8 (K7 32) of the Company (Note 32) (74) =
BEEE S Y G Dividends paid to non-controlling

interests (12,374) (6,043)
BEEE (FTA) s Net cash (used in)/generated

B EAE from financing activities (28,152) 51,714
ReRELEEY Net (decrease)/increase in cash and

(R2) g g cash equivalents (64,110) 31,758
FYHReRALEFEY Cash and cash equivalents at

beginning of the year 200,548 164,099
RekASEEMNER Exchange (losses)/gains on cash

(E518),/Wzs and cash equivalents (808) 4,691

FRNRERBSEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year 18 135,630 200,548

FI8E 189 BMMFARZES

H—#8 e

BFRF 75

consolidated financial statements.

Asiaray Media Group Limited

The notes on pages 78 to 189 are integral parts of these
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1.1

1.2
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1.1

1.2

GENERAL INFORMATION, REORGANISATION
AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

General information

Asiaray Media Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 20 May 2014 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law (2013 Revision) of the Cayman Islands.
The address of the Company'’s registered office is PO Box
309, Ugland House Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman
Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries now comprising the group
(the “Group”) are principally engaged in the development
and operations of out-of-home advertising media,
including advertising in airports, metro lines, billboards
and building solutions (the “Listed Business”) in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and Hong Kong.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HKD"), unless otherwise stated, and have been
approved for issue by the Company’s board of directors
(the "Board”) on 31 March 2015.

Reorganisation

The Listed Business was controlled by Mr. Lam Tak Hing,
Vincent (“Mr. Lam”) at the beginning of the reporting
period, or since the date when the companies first came
under the common control of Mr. Lam, whichever is a
shorter period.

Prior to the incorporation of the Company and the
completion of the reorganisation as described below, the
Listed Business was controlled through the holding
company, Asiaray (Holdings) Limited (“Asiaray Holdings")
which directly held 99.99968% equity interest in Asiaray
Advertising Media Limited (“Asiaray Advertising Media”),
100% equity interest in Genesis Printing And Production
Limited ("Genesis Printing”), 100% equity interest in
Genesis Signmaker & Construction Limited (“Genesis
Signmaker”) and 100% equity interest in Asiaray Outdoor
Media Limited (“Asiaray Outdoor”), and indirectly held
99% equity interest in Hong Kong Asiaray Advertising
Limited ("Hong Kong Asiaray”) and 90% equity interest in
Asiaray Media Limited (“Asiaray Media”) through Asiaray
Advertising Media, and indirectly held 100% equity
interest in Asiaray Metro Media Limited (“Asiaray Metro”)
and 80% equity interest in Shanghai Asiaray Advertising
Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Asiaray”) (L8 #ESER A F])
through Hong Kong Asiaray.
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1.2

GENERAL INFORMATION, REORGANISATION
AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)
Reorganisation (Continued)

The remaining 0.00032% equity interest in Asiaray
Advertising Media, the remaining 1% equity interest in
Hong Kong Asiaray and the remaining 10% interest in
Asiaray Media were held by Ms. Chan Wai Mun (Mr.
Lam’s mother) in trust on behalf of Mr. Lam.

Among the remaining 20% interest in Shanghai Asiaray,
10% interest was held by Guangzhou Yunwei Advertising
Company Limited (“Guangzhou Yunwei”) (BEMTELERE
HBBRAR]) in trust on behalf of Hong Kong Asiaray, and
10% interest was held by Shanghai Kelefu Advertising
Company Limited (“Shanghai Kelefu”) ( L/8RI&EEE A
R 2 R]) in trust on behalf of Hong Kong Asiaray. On 9
May 2014, each of Guangzhou Yunwei and Shanghai
Kelefu transferred 10% interest in Shanghai Asiaray to
Hong Kong Asiaray and Shanghai Asiaray has become a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Hong Kong Asiaray since
then.

Asiaray Advertising Media, Asiaray Outdoor, Asiaray
Metro, Genesis Printing, Genesis Signmaker, Asiaray
Media and Hong Kong Asiaray are limited liability
companies established in Hong Kong, Shanghai Asiaray is
a limited liability company established in the PRC.

In preparation for the initial listing of the Company's
shares on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing”), a group reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”) was undertaken pursuant to which
Asiaray Advertising Media, Asiaray Outdoor, Asiaray
Metro, Genesis Printing, Genesis Signmaker, Asiaray
Media, Hong Kong Asiaray and Shanghai Asiaray were
transferred to the Company. The Reorganisation involved
the following:

(1)  On 20 May 2014, the Company was incorporated as
an exempted company with limited liability under
the laws of the Cayman Islands. The Company is a
direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Media
Cornerstone Limited (“Media Cornerstone”). On 20
May 2014, the Company issued 500,000 shares of
HKDO0.10 each to Media Cornerstone.
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1.2

GENERAL INFORMATION, REORGANISATION

AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)

Reorganisation (Continued)

)

On 20 May 2014, Asiaray Media Holdings Limited
(“Asiaray Media Holdings") was incorporated in the
BVI as a limited liability company. At the time of
incorporation, Asiaray Media Holdings was wholly
owned by Mr. Lam. On 20 May 2014, Asiaray Media
Holdings issued 500,000 shares of HKDO0.10 each to
Mr. Lam.

On 25 August 2014, Ms. Chan transferred eight
shares of Asiaray Advertising Media, representing
0.00032% of the total issued share capital of Asiaray
Advertising Media, to Asiaray Holdings. Upon
completion, Asiaray Advertising Media became
legally and wholly-owned by Asiaray Holdings.

On 25 August 2014, Ms. Chan transferred one share
of Hong Kong Asiaray, representing 1% of the total
issued share capital of Hong Kong Asiaray, to
Asiaray Advertising Media. Upon completion, Hong
Kong Asiaray became legally and wholly-owned by
Asiaray Advertising Media.

On 25 August 2014, Ms. Chan transferred one share
of Asiaray Media, representing 10% of the total
issued share capital of Asiaray Media, to Asiaray
Advertising Media. Upon completion, Asiaray Media
became legally and wholly-owned by Asiaray
Advertising Media.

On 25 August 2014, Asiaray Advertising Media
passed shareholder resolutions to issue 9,900 shares
of Hong Kong Asiaray to Asiaray Media Holdings at
consideration of HKD9,900. Such consideration was
determined based on the nominal value of shares in
Hong Kong Asiaray. On 25 August 2014, Hong
Kong Asiaray and Asiaray Advertising Media
entered into a share repurchase agreement,
pursuant to which, Hong Kong Asiaray repurchased
from Asiaray Advertising Media the remaining 100
shares in Hong Kong Asiaray at a consideration of
HKD100. Such consideration was determined based
on the nominal value of the shares in Hong Kong
Asiaray. Upon completion, Hong Kong Asiaray
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Asiaray Media
Holdings.
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION, REORGANISATION
AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)
1.2 Reorganisation (Continued)

7)

On 25 August 2014, Asiaray Holdings transferred
2,500,000 shares in Asiaray Advertising Media,
representing the entire issued share capital of
Asiaray Advertising Media, to Asiaray Media
Holdings at a consideration of HKD2,500,000, the
payment of which was satisfied by allotment of
25,000,000 Shares in the Company to Space
Management Limited (“Space Management”), a
company directly wholly-owned by Mr. Lam. Such
consideration was determined based on the nominal
value of shares in Asiaray Advertising Media. Upon
completion, Asiaray Advertising Media became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Asiaray Media Holdings.

On 25 August 2014, Asiaray Holdings transferred
10,000 shares of Asiaray Outdoor, representing the
entire issued share capital of Asiaray Outdoor, to
Asiaray Media Holdings at a consideration of
HKD10,000, the payment of which was satisfied by
allotment 100,000 Shares in the Company to Space
Management. Such consideration was determined
based on the nominal value of shares in Asiaray
Outdoor. Upon completion, Asiaray Outdoor
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Asiaray Media
Holdings.

On 25 August 2014, Asiaray Holdings transferred
10,000 shares of Genesis Printing, representing the
entire issued share capital of Genesis Printing, to
Asiaray Media Holdings at a consideration of
HKD10,000, the payment of which was satisfied by
allotment of 100,000 Shares in the Company to
Space Management. Such consideration was
determined based on the nominal value of shares in
Genesis Printing. Upon completion, Genesis Printing
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Asiaray Media
Holdings.

On 25 August 2014, Asiaray Holdings transferred
10,000 shares in Genesis Signmaker, representing
the entire issued share capital of Genesis Signmaker,
to Asiaray Media Holdings at a consideration of
HKD10,000, the payment of which was satisfied by
allotment of 100,000 Shares in the Company to
Space Management. Such consideration was
determined based on the nominal value of shares in
Genesis Signmaker. Upon completion, Genesis
Signmaker became a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Asiaray Media Holdings.
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1.

GENERAL INFORMATION, REORGANISATION
AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)

1.2 Reorganisation (Continued)

(11) On 25 August 2014, Hong Kong Asiaray transferred
one share in Asiaray Metro, representing the entire
issued share capital of Asiaray Metro, to Asiaray
Media Holdings at a consideration of HKD1, the
payment of which was satisfied by allotment of 10
shares in the Company to Space Management. Such
consideration was determined based on the nominal
value of shares in Asiaray Metro. Upon completion,
Asiaray Metro became a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Asiaray Media Holdings.

(12) On 25 August 2014, Mr. Lam and the Company
entered into the Reorganisation Deed, pursuant to
which Mr. Lam agreed to procure the completion of
acquisitions by Asiaray Media Holdings of Hong
Kong Asiaray, Asiaray Advertising Media, Asiaray
Outdoor, Genesis Printing, Genesis Signmaker and
Asiaray Metro, and transfer all the issued shares in
Asiaray Media Holdings to the Company. As
consideration, the Company has allotted and issued
88,000,000 Shares and 241,500,000 Shares to
Space Management and Media Cornerstone
respectively, pursuant to instructions from Mr. Lam.
Such consideration was determined with reference
to, among other things, the nominal value of the
shares in Hong Kong Asiaray, Asiaray Advertising
Media, Asiaray Outdoor, Genesis Printing, Genesis
Signmaker and Asiaray Metro.

On 4 September 2014, Mr. Lam, as the settlor,
established a family trust (“Family Trust”) with UBS
Trustees (BVI) Limited acting as the trustee (the “Trustee”)
of the Family Trust. Mr. Lam has transferred his entire
interest in Media Cornerstone to Shalom Family Holding
Limited for nil consideration for the settlement of the
Family Trust. The sole shareholder of Shalom Family
Holding Limited is UBS Nominees Limited, a company
which holds the shares in Shalom Family Holding Limited
as nominee for the Trustee. Ultimately, the Trustee holds
the entire interest in Media Cornerstone on trust for the
benefit of Mr. Lam and certain of his family members.
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2.1

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements are
set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied throughout all years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRS”) issued by the HKICPA
and are set out below. The financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, which are carried at fair value.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in
accordance with the applicable requirements of the
predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) for this
financial year and the comparative period.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgment in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements
are disclosed in Note 4 below.

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

()  The new or revised standards, amendments
and interpretations to existing standards,
which are mandatory for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2014, are either
currently not relevant to the Group or had no
material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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2.1

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(i)

New and revised standards and amendments

to existing standards that have been issued

and are relevant to the Group, but are not

effective for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2014 and have not been early
adopted.

Annual improvements 2012, which
include changes from the 2010-2012
cycle of the annual improvements
project, that affect the below standards:
HKFRS 8, ‘Operating segments’, HKAS
16, 'Property, plant and equipment’ and
HKAS 38, ‘Intangible assets’ and HKAS
24, 'Related Party Disclosures’. The
above amendments will be effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2014.

Annual improvements 2013, which
include changes from the 2011-2013
cycle of the annual improvements
project that affect the below standards:
HKFRS 3, ‘Business combinations’,
HKFRS 13, ‘Fair value measurement’,
and HKAS 40, ‘Investment property’. The
above amendments will be effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2014.
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2.1

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(Continued)

(ii)

Asiaray Media Group Limited

Annual improvements 2014, which
include changes from the 2012-2014
cycle of the annual improvements
project that affect 4 standards: HKFRS 5,
‘Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations’, HKFRS 7,
'Financial instruments: Disclosures’,
HKAS 19, ‘Employee benefits’ and HKAS
34, ‘Interim financial reporting’. These
amendments will be effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016.

Amendment to HKFRS 11 on accounting
for acquisitions of interests in joint
operations. The amendment requires an
investor to apply the principles of
business combination accounting when
it acquires an interest in a joint operation
that constitutes a ‘business’ (as defined
in HKFRS 3, Business combinations). The
amendment is applicable to both the
acquisition of the initial interest and a
further interest in a joint operation. The
previously held interest is not
remeasured when the acquisition of an
additional interest in the same joint
operation with joint control maintained.
This amendment will be effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016.
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2.1

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(Continued)

(ii)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
on clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortisation. The
amendments clarify when a method of
depreciation or amortisation based on
revenue may be appropriate. The
amendment to HKAS 16 clarifies that
depreciation of an item of property,
plant and equipment based on revenue
generated by using the asset is not
appropriate. The amendment to HKAS
38 establishes a rebuttable presumption
that amortisation of an intangible asset
based on revenue generated by using
the asset is inappropriate. The
presumption may only be rebutted in
certain limited circumstances: where the
intangible asset is expressed as a
measure of revenue; or where it can be
demonstrated that revenue and the
consumption of the economic benefits
of the intangible asset are highly
correlated. These amendments will be
effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016.
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2.1

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(Continued)

(ii)

Asiaray Media Group Limited

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
on the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or
joint venture. The amendments address
an inconsistency between HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 in the sale and contribution of
assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. A full gain or
loss is recognised when a transaction
involves a business. A partial gain or loss
is recognised when a transaction involves
assets that do not constitute a business,
even if those assets are in a subsidiary.
These amendments will be effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016.

Amendment to HKAS 27 on the equity
method in separate financial statements.
The amendment allows entities to use
equity method to account for investments
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates in their separate financial
statements. This amendment will be
effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2016.
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2.1

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(ii)

(Contmued)

HKFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’. HKFRS 15 establishes a
comprehensive framework for
determining when to recognise revenue
and how much revenue to recognise
through a 5-step approach: (1) Identify
the contract(s) with customer; (2) Identify
separate performance obligations in a
contract (3) Determine the transaction
price (4) Allocate transaction price to
performance obligations and (5)
recognise revenue when performance
obligation is satisfied. The core principle
is that a company should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to the
customer in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the company
expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. It moves away
from a revenue recognition model based
on an ‘earnings processes to an ‘asset-
liability’ approach based on transfer of
control. HKFRS 15 provides specific
guidance on capitalization of contract
cost and license arrangements. It also
includes a cohesive set of disclosure
requirements about the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and
cash flows arising from the entity’s
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
replaces the previous revenue standards:
HKAS 18 Revenue and HKAS 11
Construction Contracts, and the related
Interpretations on revenue recognition:
HKFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty
Programmes, HKFRIC 15 Agreements for
the Construction of Real Estate, HKFRIC
18 Transfers of Assets from Customers
and SIC-31 Revenue — Barter
Transactions Involving Advertising
Services. This amendment will be
effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2017.
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2.1

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(ii)

(Continued)

° HKFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’,
addresses the classification,
measurement and recognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities.
The complete version of HKFRS 9 was
issued in July 2014. It replaces the
guidance in HKAS 39 that relates to the
classification and measurement of
financial instruments. HKFRS 9 retains
but simplifies the mixed measurement
model and establishes three primary
measurement categories for financial
assets: amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income and fair
value through profit and loss. The basis
of classification depends on the entity’s
business model and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial asset.
Investments in equity instruments are
required to be measured at fair value
through profit or loss with the
irrevocable option at inception to
present changes in fair value in other
comprehensive income not recycling.
There is now a new expected credit
losses model that replaces the incurred
loss impairment model used in HKAS 39.
For financial liabilities there were no
changes to classification and
measurement except for the recognition
of changes in own credit risk in other
comprehensive income, for liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or
loss. HKFRS 9 relaxes the requirements
for hedge effectiveness by replacing the
bright line hedge effectiveness tests. It
requires an economic relationship
between the hedged item and hedging
instrument and for the ‘hedged ratio’ to
be the same as the one management
actually use for risk management
purposes. Contemporaneous
documentation is still required but is
different to that currently prepared
under HKAS 39. This new standard will
be effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018.

The Group is in the process of assessing the
impact of the above new standards and
amendments to existing standards on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.
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2.1

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(iii)

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622s)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9
“Accounts and Audit” of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into
operation as from the Company’s first financial
year commencing on or after 3 March 2014 in
accordance with section 358 of that
Ordinance. The Group is in the process of
making an assessment of expected impact of
the changes in the Companies Ordinance on
the consolidated financial statements in the
period of initial application of Part 9 of the
new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622). So far it has concluded that the impact is
unlikely to be significant and only the
presentation and the disclosure of information
in the consolidated financial statements will be
affected.

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation
Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed
to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.
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2. SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(i)

Asiaray Media Group Limited

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to
account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of
a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the
acquisition date; any gains or losses arising
from such re-measurement are recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the
fair value of the contingent consideration that
is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 either
in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
re-measured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.
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2. FEESTBEHEES) 2. SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)
(i) Business combinations (Continued)

22 MBAR )

FrEERE  wETD The excess of the consideration transferred,
E (o] JE 4% AR A 25 B RE e the amount of any non-controlling interest in
WeBE 75 (] JR A B A 25 the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
TEWEBEN A FEBBAN value of any previous equity interest in the
WEE R HF R FEEMNAF acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
B E5ET) AR9E - N net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If
BWEBRLT @ MATE the total of consideration transferred, non-
ERE - BDBBHIFER controlling interest recognised and previously
Em MR ENEAFEE held interest measured is less than the fair
e 25 B 48 BE K 70 BT WK B value of the net assets of the subsidiary
BRARFEEMNAFE " acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
ZAEBMAENEERER o the difference is recognised directly in the
profit or loss.

EFEAFZENARER Inter-company transactions, balances and
5 BRI ESR MK unrealised gains on transactions between
BIE U 2519 T AR B o & group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
B I0 BB T T AR 8 o B losses are also eliminated. When necessary
BRABIMERNSEDIZ amounts reported by subsidiaries have been
EEELHAE UFEX adjusted to conform with the Group’s
SERAHEEEE - accounting policies.

iy MBRRMNEBERER (i)  Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
) (R RIREN R without change of control
)
BEERERETHTE Transactions with non-controlling interests that
BYRAREEFENZ S A do not result in loss of control are accounted
RIMERRRR 5 A% for as equity transactions — that is, as
BARBEEAFDHETH transactions with the owners in their capacity
R5 IXIHEMRE as owners. The difference between fair value
A B B34 8 R A BT MR of any consideration paid and the relevant
WBARFEEMREE share acquired of the carrying value of net
ENEZBRAERINE- A assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity.
FERERLEELENR Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling
BTN BR o interests are also recorded in equity.
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2.

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.3

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)
(iii)  Disposals of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to
its fair value, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequent accounting for the
retained interest as an associate or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50%
of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting and
are initially recognised at cost and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s share
of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of
acquisition. The Group's investment in associates includes
goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated
impairment loss.
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2.3

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Associates (Continued)

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

The Group's share of its associates’ post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in profit or loss, and its
share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group's share of loss in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that investments in
associates are impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to
“share of profit/(loss) of investments in associates” in
profit or loss.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and its
associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor's
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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2.4

2.5

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker, who are responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments and making strategic decisions. The chief
operating decision-maker has been identified as the
executive directors of the Company.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HKD, which is the Company’s
functional currency and the Group’s presentation
currency. The Company’s Hong Kong and PRC
subsidiaries regard HKD and Renminbi (“RMB") as
their respective functional currencies.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in profit or loss within ‘finance income or
cost’. All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in profit or loss within ‘other gains/
losses — net'.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets, such
as equities classified as available for sale, are
included in other comprehensive income.
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2. SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i)  Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

(i) Income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions);
and

(i)  All resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign operations are taken to other
comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal
On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation), all of the currency translation differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate
share of accumulated currency translation
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.
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2.6

2.7

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

All Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
costs less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment charge. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Shorter of remaining
lease term or useful lives

Leasehold improvements

Motor vehicles 5 years

Furniture and office 3-5 years
equipment

Advertising fixtures 3-10 years

Buildings 20 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised within “other gains/losses — net” in profit or
loss.

Land use rights

Land use rights represents payment of land use rights to
the PRC’s land bureau. Land use rights is carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impaired losses.
Amortisation is provided to write off the cost of land use
rights on a straight-line basis over the periods of right
which is 40 years.
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2.8

2.9

2.10

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields, and
that are not occupied by the Group, are classified as
investment properties.

Investment properties are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment charge, if any.
They are depreciated using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful life of 20 years. Subsequent
expenditure is charged to the carrying amount of the
asset only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group
and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Intangible assets

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software, and are amortised over their
estimated useful lives of five years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet
available for use are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.
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2. SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.11 Financial assets

(a)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale.
The classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired, management’s
intentions and whether the assets are quoted in an
active market. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Asiaray Media Group Limited

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are those designated at fair value through
profit or loss at inception. A financial asset is
classified in this category if so designated by
the directors of the Company. Assets in this
category are classified as current assets if
expected to be settled within 12 months;
otherwise, they are classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. The
Group's loans and receivables comprise “trade
and other receivables excluding
prepayments”, “short-term deposits” and
“cash and cash equivalents” in the
consolidated balance sheet.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any other
category. They are included in non-current
assets unless investment matures or
management intends to dispose of the
investment within 12 months after the end of
the reporting period.
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2. SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(b)

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of investments are
recognised on trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are
expensed in the statement of comprehensive
income. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value.
Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss’ category are presented in the statement of
comprehensive income within ‘Other (losses)/gains
— net’ in the period in which they arise. Dividend
income from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income as part of other income
when the Group's right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available-for-sale
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are
sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in other comprehensive
income are included in profit or loss as gains or
losses from available-for-sale financial assets.

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
or realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.
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2. SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.13 Impairment of financial assets

(@)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
'loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the
asset is reduced and the amount of the impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss. If a loan has a
variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s
fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(b) Assets classified as available-for-sale financial assets
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired.

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is
removed from equity and recognised in profit or
loss. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a
debt instrument classified as available for sale
increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss.

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost
is also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any
such evidence exists the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in
profit or loss — is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognised in profit or loss on equity instruments
are not reversed through profit or loss.

2.14 Trade and other receivables

2.15

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers or
agents for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less, they are
classified as current assets. Otherwise, they are presented
as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less. Bank deposits with original maturities over three
months but less than one year are classified as short-term
deposits.
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2.

2.16

2.17

2.18

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or share
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Trade and other payables are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one
year or less. If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost. Any difference between
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over their period using
the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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2.

2.19

2.20

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case,
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or in equity, respectively.

(@)  Current income tax
The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the
countries where the Company'’s subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2. SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.20 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of goodwill or the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss is
affected. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on
taxable temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Generally the Group is unable to control the reversal
of the temporary difference for associates. Only
when there is an agreement in place that gives the
group the ability to control the reversal of the
temporary difference in the foreseeable future,
deferred tax liability in relation to taxable temporary
differences arising from the associate’s undistributed
profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and associates only to
the extent that it is probable the temporary
difference will reverse in the future and there is
sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.
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2. FESTBEME#R) 2. SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.20 ENERIEFEFRSH (22) 2.20 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
) HiH (c)  Offsetting

EAEEARFMITENEE R Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
MIBEEE S AR IEE EHEY - when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
BEEMEHREAELRBESLR current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
S RN E -t PG when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
ERNERBUWHMEN - BF relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
BHOFHEMAERR - R FHRLE authority on either the taxable entity or different
S EENRAEEHEN - taxable entities where there is an intention to settle

the balances on a net basis.

2.21 EEEA 2.21 Employee benefits

(a) BUBEL (a)  Pension obligations
TFRERAFER—AEEKRET A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
) AEBEE S EE/ER which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
TEBINER - HEZESD separate entity. The Group has no legal or
RE RGBTSR &M E constructive obligations to pay further contributions
ERRINHRERERA » K& if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
I I K T S E B AE S — employees the benefits relating to employee service
FEIEK in the current and prior periods.

AEER T R B A R KRB B The Group’s PRC subsidiaries and Hong Kong
BATD R AN ZETHEER subsidiaries contribute on a monthly basis to various
FEREENBEEATESTE defined contribution plans and the mandatory
ER R o BT HRE - K& provident fund plan in Hong Kong, respectively.
BB EEMANREE - HRRE The Group has no further payment obligations once
B2 A EEEAES o B the contributions have been paid. The contributions
B ARMGTEEERTEEH are recognised as employee benefit expense when
TP A & - mEEH they are due. Assets of the plans of the PRC
BRRIENGTENEELRTBE subsidiaries are held and managed by the relevant
BREAEEESER - ZS5H PRC government authorities; while assets of the
FEIEMEEAAREBNEED plans of the Hong Kong subsidiaries are held in
B o separate trustee-administrated funds in Hong Kong.
The assets of the plans are separated from those of
the Group.

(b) EESEZRE (b) Employee leave entitlements
EEEZAEEBRHNENNETEERES Employee entitlements to annual leave are
BZERR KREEBAHERS recognised when they accrue to employees. A
BRIFREERHEREMEEZ provision is made for the estimated liability for
FRZAEFREELRE - ER annual leave as a result of services rendered by
2R NEBNE B X BURE R employees up to the end of the reporting period.
7 THRER o Employee entitlements to sick and matemity leave

are not recognised until the time of leave.
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2.

2.22

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

The Group's revenue is primarily derived from rendering
advertising display and production, installation and
dismantling services on the Group’s media networks,
primarily in airports, metro lines and billboards and
buildings solutions. Revenue is measured at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable, and
represents amounts receivable for services rendered,
stated net of discounts and value-added taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured, it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities as described
below. The Group bases its estimates on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer, the type
of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a)  Advertising display services
Revenue from advertising display services is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
performance period for which the advertisements
are displayed.

(b)  Advertising production, installation and dismantling
services
Revenue from advertising production, installation
and dismantling services is recognised when the
related services are rendered.

(c)  Multiple element arrangements

The Group offers certain arrangements whereby a
customer can purchase advertising display services
together with the related advertising production,
installation and dismantling services. Where such
multiple element arrangements exist, the total
arrangement consideration is allocated to each
element based on their relative fair values, as
determined based on the current market price of
each of the elements when sold separately.

When the Group is unable to determine the fair
value of each of the elements in an arrangement, it
uses the residual value method. Under this method,
the Group determines the fair value of the delivered
element by deducting the fair value of the
undelivered element from the contract
consideration.

To the extent that there is a discount on the
arrangement, such discount is allocated between
the elements of the contract in such a manner as to
reflect the fair value of the elements.
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2.

2.22

2.23

2.24

2.25

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(d)  Rental income
Rental income from operating lease of properties is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.

(e)  Principal agent consideration

The Group derives certain revenue from advertising
display and production, installation and dismantling
services through agents, and pays fixed percentage
of revenue as commissions to these agents. The
Group has evaluated the roles and responsibilities
of the Group and the agents in rendering the
relevant services and concluded that the Group
takes the primary responsibilities in rendering
services and has the sole latitude in establishing
prices. Accordingly, the Group records the revenue
derived through the agents on a gross basis, and
the commissions paid to the agents are recorded as
sales commissions.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method. When a loan and receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted
at the original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest income.
Interest income on impaired loans and receivables is
recognised using the original effective interest rate.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

Government grants

Grants from government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grants will
be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.



S OtEAFEERFRMIEE  NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.26

2.27

2.28

TR BERE @)

EEERRTREET
AEBRFEEREA A (I EAARR
K5 ) IR E A K - Bt
AEBBUSHENAERRBEREEA
MESZEHEEMES  REFFELR
B REEREAARBHEAEOX
MoRBEEE - TR EEALDNT)
WRBEEHERHE

BN THREBERERANFAEEE—
REFEZFEENZERITSER L
BEBEEMRKANE D LM
(MRS ER) - BFRIENKIERER
AREBAEREIRENF T ARS
iR MALERARERELHEER -

HE

BEMARNAEY RAREEHRHHHE
AREBOEE B EAKEHER
Al e REBEKLEHENOFIAGIRA
A AME R EFAER) LELERE
EMmE AR

% B 5K
DETRROBREERSHRRKESS
(IER) SLE SRR A MR 58
RTERRAME -

2.

2.26

2.27

2.28

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Concession fee charges for advertising spaces

The Group enters into concession right agreements with
media resources owners such as metro lines and airports,
under which the Group obtains the right to use the media
resources owners’ spaces for the display of the
advertisements. The concession rights agreements under
which significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by media resources owners are
treated as operating lease arrangements.

The concession fees payable to media resources owners
were typically comprised of a minimum guaranteed
amount with yearly escalation and/or a percentage share
of the revenue earned from the operations (the
commission fees). The minimum guaranteed concession
fees with yearly escalation are charged to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the agreement periods and the
commission fees were recognised in the period in which
they are actually incurred.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by lessors are classified
as operating leases. Payments made under operating
leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

Dividends distribution

Dividends distribution to the shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the consolidated financial statement in the
period in which the dividend is approved by the
shareholders or the Board, where appropriate.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risk factors: market risk (including foreign exchange risk,
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk and price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group's financial performance. Risk
management is carried out by the senior management of
the Group and approved by the Board.

(a) Market risk

(i)

(ii)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in the PRC and Hong
Kong. The Group's foreign exchange risk
occur mainly due to the fact that the Group’s
Hong Kong subsidiaries have business
activities denominated in foreign currencies,
primarily with respect to United States dollars
("USD"). Foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions and recognised
assets and liabilities. The Group currently did
not have a foreign currency hedge policy
during the years.

As HKD has been pegged to USD, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the foreign exchange exposure between
USD and HKD is insignificant.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from
interest-bearing short-term deposits and bank
borrowings. Short-term deposits and bank
borrowings issued at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Bank
borrowings at fixed rates expose the Group to
fair value interest rate risk.

Other than interest-bearing short-term
deposits, the Group has no other significant
interest-bearing assets. The directors of the
Company do not anticipate there is any
significant impact to interest-bearing assets
resulted from the changes in interest rates,
because the interest rates of short-term
deposit are not expected to change
significantly.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)
(i)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

(Continued)
As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the
Group's interest-bearing borrowings at
variable rates and fixed rates were as follows:

R12A31H

As at 31 December
20145 20134
2014 2013
TE T FATT
HKD’000 HKD’000
Borrowings at fixed rate 76,058 114,731
Borrowings at floating rate 44,125 11,130
120,183 125,861

For the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2013, if the floating interest rate on
borrowings had been higher/lower by 50 basis
points with all other variables held constant,
the post-tax profit would have changed mainly
as a result of higher/lower interest expenses
on floating rate borrowings. Details of changes
are as follows:

M®12H831H
As at 31 December
2014 F

20134
2013
FETT
HKD’000

2014
TR
HKD’000

(Decrease)/increase
— 50 basis points higher (165) (42)
— 50 basis points lower 165 42
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3. UHERBREE@E) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 HEEBREZEE) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) THEREE (&) (a) Market risk (Continued)
iy BReERERAFEFER (i)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
% (&) (Continued)
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(Decrease)/increase

2013, if the fixed interest rate on borrowings
had been higher/lower by 50 basis points with
all other variables held constant, the fair value
of the borrowings would have changed mainly
as a result of higher/lower interest expense on
fixed rate borrowings. Details of changes are
as follows:

M®12H31H
As at 31 December
2014 &

20134
2014 2013
FHBT F& T
HKD’000 HKD'000

— 50 basis points higher (50) (86)
— 50 basis points lower 50 86
(i)  Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk because of
investments held by the Group, which are
classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss or available-for-sale
financial assets. The Group is not exposed to
commodity price risk.

The sensitivity analysis is determined based on
the exposure to price risk of the financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and
available-for-sale financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. If the fair values of the
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss held by the Group had been 5% higher/
lower, post-tax profit would be approximately,
HKD156,000 and HKD135,000 higher/lower,
for the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2013, respectively. If the fair values of the
available-for-sale financial assets held by the
Group had been 5% higher/lower, the other
comprehensive income would be
approximately HKD365,000, and HKD446,000
higher/lower, for the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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3.
3.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk

Credit risk mainly arises from short-term deposits,
restricted cash, bank balances, trade and other
receivables, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and available-for-sale financial assets.
The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated balance sheets.

The credit risk of short-term deposits, restricted
cash and bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are state-owned or reputable
commercial banks which are high-credit-quality
financial institutions in the PRC and Hong Kong.

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customers’ past history of
making payment when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer. The Group does not obtain collateral
from customers. In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the default risk is considered to be
low.

For other receivables, management makes periodic
collective assessments as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables based on historical settlement records
and past experience. The directors of the Company
believe that there is no material credit risk inherent
in the Group’s outstanding balance of other
receivables.

The credit risk on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and available-for-sale financial
assets is limited because the counterparties are
reputable and creditworthy banks.

Liquidity risk

The Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash
equivalents. Due to the dynamic nature of the
underlying businesses, the Group's finance
department maintains flexibility in funding by
maintaining adequate cash and cash equivalents.

The table below analyses the Group’'s and
Company'’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the
balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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3. UHERBREE@E) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 HEEBREZEE) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) REERER () (c)  Liquidity risk (Continued)

P E 122F 2Z5% 560L st

Less than Between Between Over

1year 1and2years 2and5 years 5 years Total
TAT THT TR TAT TAT
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000

A5E Group
20145128318 At 31 December 2014
BR(REMAE) Borrowings (principal
plus interest) 113,778 1,756 6,083 2,242 123,859

FERER TR R EL A FE AT Trade and other payables

FHE (M eEE M (excluding advances

RERAIFEREMD received from customers

EfIHIE) and other taxes payable) 480,565 14,228 - - 494,793
Mt Total 594,343 15,984 6,083 2,242 618,652

R2013F12A31H At 31 December 2013

fEsk (REMAL) Borrowings (principal
plus interest) 122,477 2,560 5,679 5,878 136,594
FEBR TR ELAt FE T Trade and other payables
R (PR (excluding advances
EPRAFEREMD received from customers
ERHIE) and other taxes payable) 325,501 9,819 - - 335,320
At Total 447,978 12,379 5,679 5,878 471,914

DRME 182F 2258 5ENE @t

Less than Between Between Over

1year 1and2years 2andS5 years 5 years Total
TR TER TR TER TR
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD'000

NG Company

12014512 A31R At 31 December 2014
Hib (508 Other payables 184,046 - - - 184,046
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3.3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns to the shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to the
shareholders, return capital to the shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (including “current and
non-current borrowings” as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet) less cash and cash equivalents.

As the Group’s cash and cash equivalents balances
exceeded its borrowings balances at the end of each
reporting period, the directors of the Company consider
the Group's capital risk is low.

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the Group's assets that are
measured at fair value at 31 December 2014:

E1%

Level 1

E28R
Level 2
THERT
HKD’000

B3R
Level 3
BT
HKD'000

st
Total
TER
HKD'000

TET
HKD’000

BN TEYABRERR Financial assets at fair value
TREE through profit or loss
—HRABASREN — Non-quoted investment
FRERE in key-man life insurance
policy - - 3,735 3,735
AHLESHEE Available-for-sale financial
assets
—ATEFEESH — Non-quoted investments
FERERE in certain bond funds = - 8,734 8,734
- - 12,469 12,469

2013512 A31H » ZREEEAF T
BAFEFENEE :

The following table presents the Group's assets that are
measured at fair value at 31 December 2013:

et
Total
FHT
HKD'000

E3IM
Level 3
FHT
HKD’000

F24%
Level 2
TET
HKD'000

F14H&
Level 1

TR
HKD'000

BN TEYABEER Financial assets at fair value
TREBE through profit or loss
—BRABASREN — Non-quoted investment
FRERE in key-man life insurance
policy = = 2,697 2,697
AHNESRHEE Available-for-sale financial
assets
—ATEFESH — Non-quoted investments
ERERE in certain bond funds = = 8,919 8,919
- - 11,616 11,616

i — IR ZIRE N A BB IFER AT
BEmSEE - MZTABAEIR -

FIREEIRAFEBEI B ZEYL
BEEACHMEESED -
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If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in
level 3.

There were no significant transfers of financial assets
between level 1 and level 3 fair value hierarchy
classifications.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the changes in level 3
instruments for the year ended 31 December 2014 and
2013:

BZ12A31BLEE

Year ended 31 December

20145 20135
2014 2013
FET TAT
HKD'000 HKD'000
ARAEBASHREWNIERE:  Investment in key-man life insurance policy:
W1A18 At 1 January 2,697 2,060
=Y Additions 586 587
NFEWE Fair value gains 452 50
R12A31H At 31 December 3,735 2,697
RmEFARR [Htplas Total gains included in profit or loss for
—FRIATAREE assets held at the end of the reporting
FFARBER AR year, under “Other gains — net” 452 50

HBZ12A3MBLEE

Year ended 31 December

2014 20134
2014 2013
THET FHIT
HKD'000 HKD'000
ETELELSHNKRE : Investment in certain bond funds:
®1B1H At 1 January 8,919 9,328
INE Additions - 9,201
HeE Disposals = (9,328)
N EEE Fair value losses (185) (282)
®12H31H At 31 December 8,734 8,919
MNBEFRTIFEETA Total losses included in the other
Hisr AR ET1E42%  comprehensive income for assets
held at the end of the reporting year (185) (282)

FEURFRIE R BN KB RE DA FE
A EREREREERREREE - AR
WENTHEENATENRRES R
T AERARARAIREMISFIREEE K
REHBEREMME  HIBNE
BARERIN - AAETEZRATE
FIANBSRASMEERAIHEESH
BEZANFENGBETAREABRS
RHIEE10 °

The carrying values less impairment provision of the
current portion of receivables and payables are a
reasonable approximation of their fair values. The fair
value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows
at the current market interest rate that is available to the
Company for similar financial instruments, unless the
effect of discounting is immaterial. Details of the valuation
technique and significant assumptions utilised in
determining the fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and available-for-sale financial
assets are set out in Note 10.
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(a)

(b)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Provision for impairment of trade and other receivables
Impairment of trade and other receivables is made based
on an assessment of the recoverability of trade and other
receivables. The identification of doubtful debts requires
management’s judgment and estimates. Provision is
made when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect the debts. Where the actual
outcome or further expectation is different from the
original estimate, such differences will impact the carrying
value of the receivables and the amount of doubtful debt
expenses or write-back of provision for impairment of
receivables in the period in which such estimate has been
changed. Based on the Group’s assessment on the
collectability of trade and other receivables, impairment
provision of approximately HKD9,312,000 and
HKD7,202,000 was provided against them as at 31
December 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Current and deferred income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. There are many transactions and events for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Significant judgment is
required from the Group in determining the provision for
income taxes in each of these jurisdictions. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

The Group recognises deferred tax assets based on
estimates that it is probable to generate sufficient taxable
profits in the foreseeable future against which the deductible
losses will be utilised. The recognition of deferred tax assets
mainly involved management’s judgments and estimations
about the timing and the amount of taxable profits of the
companies which had tax losses.

As at 31 December 2014, the retained earnings of the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries not yet remitted to the holding
companies incorporated outside PRC, for which no
deferred tax liability had been provided, were
approximately HKD169,994,000. Such earnings are
expected to be retained by the PRC subsidiaries for
reinvestment purposes and would not be remitted to their
holding companies incorporated outside PRC in the
foreseeable future based on management'’s estimation of
overseas funding requirements.
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(c)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Continued)

Consolidation of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries

The directors of the Company have assessed the level of
control on the subsidiaries with non-controlling interests
and considered that the Group has control over these
subsidiaries based on the substantive power to direct the
activities that significantly affect returns over these
subsidiaries.

SEGMENT INFORMATION — GROUP

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the executive directors of the Company. The executive
directors review the Group's internal reporting in order to
assess performance and allocate resources. Management
has determined the operating segments based on these
reports.

The executive directors considered the business from
product perspective, and determined that the Group has
the following operating segments:

—  Airport business — operation of advertising services
in airports;

— Metro lines business — operation of advertising
services in metro lines; and

— Billboards and building solutions — operation of
advertising services on billboards and building
solutions.

The chief operating decision-maker assesses the
performance of the operating segments mainly based on
revenue and gross profit of each operating segment. All
of the businesses of the Group were carried out in the
PRC and Hong Kong during the year. Selling and
marketing expenses and administrative expenses are
common costs incurred for the operating segments as a
whole and therefore they are not included in the measure
of the segments’ performance which is used by the chief
operating decision-maker as a basis for the purpose of
resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance. Other income, other gains — net, finance
costs — net and income tax expense are also not
allocated to individual operating segment.
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5. 7HER —FEE @) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION — GROUP (Continued)
BMERFTESERARERBEITEER There were no segment assets and liabilities information
BEER - provided to the chief operating decision maker.
EBAEES TN HERET ¢ The segment information for the operating segments is as

follows:
BEER
EE KERIE
Him 7 55 s
Billboards
Metro and
Airport lines building
business business  solutions Others Total
FERT FE T FET FET FET
HKD’000 HKD’'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD’'000
BZ20145F Year ended
12A31HILEE 31 December 2014
WA Revenue 693,527 344,119 174,117 108,923 1,320,686
WA Cost of revenue (390,546) (268,791) (123,276)  (92,700) (875,313)
EF Gross profit 302,981 75,328 50,841 16,223 445,373
HE RS HRE Selling and marketing
X expenses (82,231)
THRX Administrative expenses (145,525)
E U A Other income 10,013
Efhzs — F58 Other gains — net 1,934
£ R Operating profit 229,564
BERA Finance income 6,844
BhE K AR Finance costs (15,746)
BENAR — FEE Finance costs — net (8,902)
DEREEE A TR Share of results of
HEEE investments in
associates (819) - - - (819)
KR BT 5% 51 A Profit before income tax 219,843
PS5 52 Income tax expense (27,531)
FERH Profit for the year 192,312
WAREEREBMERIA 2014F® 120
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5.

DEER — FEE @)

BZ2013F
12A31HLEE
WA

W AR AR

EE

HERMSHER
53
TTHRX
EAUA
Hitles — %8R

REFE
BMERA
BEKA
BMEKA — FH8

KD NG
KERR

BR T 155t AT R B
FrSBR <

FEFE

Year ended

31 December 2013
Revenue
Cost of revenue

Gross profit

Selling and marketing
expenses

Administrative expenses

Other income

Other gains — net

Operating profit
Finance income
Finance costs

Finance costs — net

Share of results of
investments in
associates

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

SEGMENT INFORMATION — GROUP (Continued)

S3E S

Airport
business
T
HKD’000

738,770
(489,955)

Hh A4S
E/

Metro
lines
business
FHTT
HKD'000

275,267
(207,059)

BEEBRR
KERIE

BE

Billboards

and
building
solutions
T
HKD’000

Others
FBT
HKD’000

Total
FHET
HKD’000

155,534
(113,048)

41,738
(36,702)

1,211,309
(846,764)

248,815

68,208

42,486 5,036 364,545

3,122

Asiaray Media Group Limited

(74,986)
(95,294)
8,025
1,530

203,820
5,792
(8,114)

(2,322)

3,122

204,620
(37.817)

166,803
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5. 7HER—FXKE#®)
WA BIEAT & :

SEGMENT INFORMATION — GROUP (Continued)

Revenue consisted of the following:

BZ12A31MBLEE

Year ended 31 December

2014 5 2013 F
2014 2013
FEx TET
HKD’000 HKD'000
BRI B D BADHT Analysis of revenue by category:
R L N Advertising display revenue 1,216,834 1,115,380
BERME - 2R RIFHKA  Advertising production, installation
and dismantling revenue 103,852 95,929

REBBARNMESMHIAT :

1,320,686 1,211,309

The geographical distribution of the Group's revenue was
as follows:

BE12A3MBLEFE

Year ended 31 December
2014 & 20134

2014 2013
FET TAT
HKD’000 HKD’000

REMEBEF WA :
i N Mainland China
EHE Hong Kong

AEBHREBRERFE  REZ2014F
2013512 A31 BILFE  ETq
EEFBERIASEEWRAR 10% A L -

AREEERDEE(SRIAREBLT
FEMAERI LR PERES A
B

Revenue from external customers:

1,017,727 935,650
302,959 275,659
1,320,686 1,211,309

The Group has a large number of customers, none of
whom contributed 10% or more of the Group’s revenue
during years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

The Group’s non-current assets other than financial
instruments and deferred income tax assets were located
in the PRC and Hong Kong as follows:

A B K BE Mainland China
E Hong Kong

HEHEEREBERARF 20145H 122

M12H831H

As at 31 December
2014 & 20134
2014 2013
F#&xT FETT
HKD’'000 HKD'000
153,274 162,235
3,674 1,967
156,948 164,202
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6. ME- WMERRE—F&H

BZ2013512A31R
LEE

BRI HE

AE

e
HE-RMBAR
&

EMAEEE

HRERFE

R2013%12A31H
A
ZitihE

REFE

HZ2014512831A
LLEE

HREFE

BREMERDEE
(Bt15)

HAE

il

hE

ERREES

PREEFE
R2014512A31H
A

ZitinE

REHE

At 1 January 2013
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended

31 December 2013
Opening net book amount
Additions
Depreciation
Disposal of a subsidiary
Disposals
Currency translation differences

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2013
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended
31 December 2014
Opening net book amount
Transfer from other non-current
assets (Note 15)
Other additions
Depreciation
Disposals
Currency translation differences

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2014
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT — GROUP

BEN

Buildings
THL
HKD'000

RERIE

Advertising
fixtures
TEL
HKD'000

L
ES

Leasehold
improvements
TER
HKD'000

HE

Motor
vehicles
T
HKD'000

BRR
WARE
Furniture
and office
equipment
T
HKD'000

@3t

Total
THL
HKD'000

- 96,472 2,809 9,166 12342 120789
- 6T03) (2,048) (5,804) 8592 (63,147)

- 49,769 761 3,362 3,750 57,642

- 49,769 761 3,362 3,750 57,642

- 30,735 702 692 3,436 35,565

- ) (487) (1,230) (1913 (31,003

= = = = (64) (64)

= = = = (6) (6)

- 1,606 15 75 178 1,874

- 54,737 991 2,899 5,381 64,008

- 130682 3,581 10,128 16,108 160499

- (7594 (2,5%) 7229 (10721 (96,491)

- 54,737 991 2,899 5,381 64,008

= 54,737 991 2,899 5,381 64,008
14,524 = = = = 14,524
4,521 15,155 1,352 972 11,870 33,870
(462)  (24,049) (619) (1,187) (253) (28,853
= = = (4) (99) (103)

82 (38) 1 (6) 33 72
18,665 45,805 1,725 2,674 14,649 83,518
19129 1450648 4925 10930 26702 207,334
(464)  (99,843) (3,200) (8,256) (12,053 (123,816
18,665 45,805 1,725 2,674 14,649 83,518
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6. MEX BMERRE —F&5H 6.
(%)
FEXHRAHEARERTETIIE
BIFERX :

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT — GROUP
(Continued)

Depreciation charges were expensed in the following
categories in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income:

BZ128318LEE

Year ended 31 December

2014 F 20134

2014 2013

THET FHIT

HKD'000 HKD'000

PN Cost of revenue 23,827 27,751
TR Administrative expenses 4,772 2,950
$H 6 N T 5 HE B X Selling and marketing expenses 254 302
28,853 31,003

2014128318 - E4E##114,234,000
7 TR SEYI1E A9,825,000/8 7T (2013
& ) ERITIEFRAOEIR (FFaE21) »

7. TERAE—FEE 7.

As at 31 December 2014, buildings of HKD14,234,000
was pledged as security for bank borrowings of
HKD9,825,000 (2013: nil) (Note 21).

LAND USE RIGHTS — GROUP

HZ12A3MBLEE

Year ended 31 December
2014

20134
2013
TAT
HKD’000

2014
FET
HKD’000

VIR H*E Opening net book amount - -
EREMIERBEE Transfer from other non-current assets

(B1a%15) (Note 15) 17,039 =
B Amortisation (178) =
BEEmEEE Currency translation differences 74 =
AR AREDFAE Closing net book amount 16,935 =

M®12H31H

As at 31 December

2014 F 20134
2014 2013
F#BT FETT
HKD’'000 HKD'000
PR Cost 17,114 =
RETH#EE Accumulated amortisation (179) =
BRTEFE Net book amount 16,935 -

BHRAS TR R FIERIE ©

THFEAEMRTR WEBA - ©
2014412 A31H - B4 16,935,0007%8
JUHY 1 FAE(E 59,825,000/ 70(2013
F )RR TIE AR (FIEE21) -

HOEEEEEBRAG 20148/ 124

Amortisation charges were expensed in administrative
expenses.

Land use rights are located in the PRC and for self-use. As
at 31 December 2014, land use rights of HKD 16,935,000
was pledged as security for bank borrowings of
HKD9,825,000 (2013: nil) (Note 21).
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REYE —FEH 8. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES — GROUP

WMABN
Office units

TET

HKD’000

At 1 January 2013

(DN Cost 1,919
Kt E Accumulated depreciation (972)
BRTEFE Net book amount 947
BZE2013F12A31HILEE Year ended 31 December 2013

HAYBRTEDFHE Opening net book amount 947
e Depreciation (93)
HERBREEE Currency translation differences 28
HAR AR ED A Closing net book amount 882
R2013512H31H At 31 December 2013

AR Cost 1,979
ZEHITE Accumulated depreciation (1,097)
R FE Net book amount 882
BZE2014F12831BLLEE Year ended 31 December 2014

H ¥ AR HE Opening net book amount 882
e Depreciation (93)
EBBREEE Currency translation differences (3)
BRCREBREDSHE Closing net book amount 786
M2014512A318 At 31 December 2014

(DN Cost 1,973
2 E Accumulated depreciation (1,187)
BRTHEFE Net book amount 786

H E20144F K 2013412318 1L F
o ESTHRITRAZFRIIERS -

Depreciation charges were expensed in administrative
expenses during the year ended 31 December 2014 and
2013.

R2014412 A31 8 2 #4#786,000
7T (2013 4 : 882,00078 7T ) HII& &Y
¥ {E 526,620,000 JT(2013%F :
26,711,000 % 7T) FY R 1T & SR HE 3 (B
$21) o

As at 31 December 2014, investment properties of
HKD786,000 (2013: HKD882,000) were pledged as
security for bank borrowings of HKD26,620,000 (2013:
HKD26,711,000) (Note 21).
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8. REWE—FKEH®B) 8. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES — GROUP (Continued)
(a) REZTEINREVXELEE (a) Amounts recognised in profit or loss for investment
properties

BZ128318LEE

Year ended 31 December
2014 & 20134

2014 2013
TR THAT
HKD’000 HKD’000

REMENHS WA (BF£27) Rental income from investment

properties (Note 27) 171 170

EEHSBANIREMEESES Direct operating expenses arising
BERERAX from investment properties
that generate rental income (93) (93)
78 77

M20144F K 2013F12A318 - A% As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group had no
B B R E R EMAEA R un-provided contractual obligations for future repairs and
BHAHMEE - maintenance.
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(b)

(c)

RENE — X8 #®)
BEZH
REMERIARE - 5 RIRE BN
ESEOREROHMAETES  HeA
BASH - RANERTRBELRE
BT ERSERSMT :

(b)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES — GROUP (Continued)
Leasing arrangements

The investment properties are located in the PRC and
leased to tenants under operating leases of approximately
1 to 5 years with rental payable monthly. Minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases of
investment properties are receivable as follows:

®12A31H
As at 31 December
2014 F 20134
2014 2013
FHET FETT
HKD’000 HKD’'000
1FA Within one year 183 107
HRiE 1 EFERHRA 5 F Later than one year but not later
than 5 years 106 -
289 107
BREYENATFE (c) Fair value of investment properties

R2014F K2013F 128310 A&
ERNRENERNFEIINAEARE
5,346,000 T & A R # 4,883,0007T * Ty
HAAREELRE VA EREEME
Bt R REEET G AREE A TE
THHESTE - HERAEELELE
17+ WRERZ Y IR RIE A AT A
HEmApXEREATREHE - URE2R
ERAMS LA AN L HERS - £E
MENRNFEFETEBARFERBR
FRE3A

The fair value of the Group's investment properties was
approximately RMB5,346,000 and RMB4,883,000 as at 31
December 2014 and 2013, respectively, as determined by
the directors of the Company with reference to the
valuation performed by Beijing Zhong Tian Hua Asset
Appraisal Company Limited (3t R RELEFHEERE
fEA7]), an independent qualified professional valuer.
Valuation was performed using the direct comparison
method on the assumption that the property can be sold
in its existing state subject to existing tenancies or
otherwise with the benefit of vacant possession and
making references to comparable sales transactions as
available in the relevant market. The fair value
measurement of the investment properties is categorised
within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
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9. mEEE—AEE

R2013F181H
DN
RETHH

FREHE

BZ2013F12A31MHLEE

HRREFE
NE
ERHnE

HIRIREFE
M2013F12A31H
XA

Rt i

FREDHE

HE2014F12H831BLLFEE

HRREFE
NE
EBmE T

BIRBRMEFE
MA2014%12H31H
(BN

BT 8

fREFE

B BN THRA R IIMERS

HAHEREBERARF  2014FH
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9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS — GROUP

At 1 January 2013
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2013

Opening net book amount
Additions

Amortisation

Currency translation differences

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2013
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2014

Opening net book amount
Additions

Amortisation

Currency translation differences

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2014
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount

Amortisation charges were

expenses.

L A

Computer
software

TAT
HKD’000

753
(715)

38

38
1,153
(155)
16

1,052

1,946
(894)

1,052

1,052
285
(276)

1,061

2,231
(1,170)

1,061

expensed in administrative
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10. BAFEIAEHZENEME 10.
ERTHEESREE — 5%
BOVEFIARBENSREE (a)

(a)

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS AND AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
FINANCIAL ASSETS — GROUP

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

BZ12A31MBLEE

Year ended 31 December

20145 20134

2014 2013

THERT FHET

HKD’000 HKD’000

RED At beginning of the year 2,697 2,060

NE Additions 586 587

MBS ERH A FEMK Fair value gains recognised in

(Kt:£28) profit or loss (Note 28) 452 50
REK YAFRBEFLT At end of the year, all non-current

and unlisted 3,735 2,697

BATEINABRRRNSREESMO
BRABABRE - ARBEARENT
BmA - REEERTRITIERRAAEE
REETRERER - BARABASRK
BmREBIEE/RATFEIIARSE
FRNEREE - BATEIIABERN
ERMEEATENEDH AR KER
E [Efblas — FHE] -

EEREMBABASRENKRENR
FEFRBUHRERSRE ((MRALR
BDEA - BRREMEREAEANE
REBRRBAENT

ST -
CEE

Mortality rate:
Discount rate:

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
represented two key-man life insurance policies. The
Group is the beneficiary of the insurance policies. The
insurance policies were pledged to the bank as securities
for certain facilities granted to the Group. The investments
in key-man life insurance policies were designated as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss at
inception. Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are recorded in ‘other gains —
net’ in the statement of comprehensive income.

Discounted cash flow (“DCF”) model was applied to
determine the fair value of the investments in key-man life
insurance policies. The significant assumptions and inputs
used in the DCF model were as follows:

M12H831H
As at 31 December
2014 & 20134
2014 2013
66% 66%
3.50% 3.53%%3.78%

3.53% to 3.78%
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10. A FEHIABZENERE 10. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
ERTMHEBELSREE — K& PROFIT OR LOSS AND AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
(%) FINANCIAL ASSETS — GROUP (Continued)

(b) FAIHESLREE (b) Available-for-sale financial assets

BZ12A31HILEE
Year ended 31 December

20145 20134
2014 2013
F#&T FHTT

HKD'000 HKD’'000
RED At beginning of the year 8,919 9,328
NE Additions = 9,201
HE Disposals = (9,328)
N EEE Fair value losses (185) (282)

REL  IRFRBRFELT

At end of the year, all non-current
and unlisted 8,734 8,919

AR ESREERE TIHRERSE
& - ZEXHURENRAFETDERR
TARENEE - EHFESECEATR
TERAASBERHETRENER -
ARBEERR  ERRITREZEER
B ATEBSE  ARNEE B R&
BEMGE -

BATEINABRRROS R EE R A #
HESREEDABITTIIE °

RS BB A RN R ERERRAZ
AFEFIABRENSREER A HH
EERMEENREE -

HEHEEREBERARF 20145#H 130

The available-for-sale financial assets represented certain
unquoted bond funds. The fair values of these traded
investments are based on the statements provided by the
bank. The bond funds were pledged to the bank as
securities for certain facilities granted to the Group. The
directors of the Company believe that the estimated fair
values based on the statements provided by the bank are
reasonable, and that they are the most appropriate values
at the balance sheet date.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in
HKD.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying value of the financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and available-for-sale financial
assets.
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1. BEHEPHWEMTIA — &E 1.

M2014512831H
JRE M B R e LA M 5K
(T REEMFEMN
HipFalrtzoE)
BN TEYABRERR

CREE
AN ESRHEE
XRHHEE
RHETER
AeRHEEED

2013512 A31H
JEURBR 3% & EL A B M 3R
(T REBEMEEMN
H A FERAFIE)
BAEEN A BRIEA

SREE
AHLESHEE
XRHRE
REER
BeRREEED

— GROUP

At 31 December 2014
Trade and other receivables
excluding prepaid taxes
and other prepayments
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Available-for-sale financial assets
Restricted cash
Short-term deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

At 31 December 2013

Trade and other receivables
excluding prepaid taxes and
other prepayments

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Available-for-sale financial assets

Restricted cash

Short-term deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Loans and
receivables
THET
HKD'000

BATETIA
BN
CHEE
Financial

assets

at fair value
through
profit or loss
THET
HKD'000

AHHE
LREE

Available-
for-sale
financial
assets
TET
HKD'000

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Total
FHT
HKD’000

323,463 - - 323,463

- 3,735 - 3,735

- - 8,734 8,734
80,968 - - 80,968
194,136 - - 194,136
135,630 - - 135,630
734,197 3,735 8,734 746,666
280,335 - - 280,335

- 2,697 - 2,697

- - 8,919 8,919
11,043 - - 11,043
119,473 - - 119,473
200,548 - - 200,548
611,399 2,697 8,919 623,015
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1. REREINEMI A — XK 11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(%) — GROUP (Continued)
R 8 R AN
ABRMEE
Liabilities at
amortised cost
FETT
HKD’'000
EEABERTHARE Liabilities per balance sheet
2014 12H318 At 31 December 2014
N Borrowings 120,183
JEAS BR R B LAt A5 5K IR Trade and other payables excluding
(TMEEEREFPBNRER advance received from customers
H b ESFEIE) and other taxes payable 494,793
614,976
M2013F12831H At 31 December 2013
EEN Borrowings 125,861
JE A< BR R e LA B A5 IR Trade and other payables excluding
(TMEREREFENRIER advance received from customers
HAth e TRIE) and other taxes payable 335,320
461,181
12. REEEQATINRE — FAKHE 12. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES — GROUP

BZ12A31MBLEE

Year ended 31 December

2014 F 20134

2014 2013

FERT FATT

HKD'000 HKD’000

F4) At beginning of the year 66,444 44,249
AE Capital injections 514 17,494
R 2EE Share of results (819) 3,122
o s — & A A Partial disposal of an associate (12,013) =
e Dividend (19,248) =
EBBREEE Currency translation differences 1,564 1,579
FIR At end of the year 36,442 66,444
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12.

REBEATNRE — FKH

mjj

R2014F 108 » BEHAHEBEMH
¥EEAERAR(EMAED BT —
P IEX RS ek — D EEmH R
Z((ZEmz)) - BEZSHE - L8
T4 AR E AR % 10,857,000 7T H
EENEEKIHTEBHSESERA
AR I T4 1) 89 19% PR 72 #2
HTEMPE  LEREHINMERS
18 KGR il N E BIFAT - ABRE TS
AR IR A FE A 47X 201455 6 A
30EMRBAFNAI% TR LiltH
BRI AL 4 19% IX A AE 2572 2014
F7AVAEEBLEFE KRB
kML BEREMPE - blHE
EECOA2014F 12 A31 B, @ WE
AU EE#91,743,00078 7T (FfzE28) » 7
Pk it B E =188 - LB ER
IR AL 4 30% AR ANAE RS o

BEZSEHE BELIARTER
201446 A 30 B 49% th 1% 28 & | (B
#919,248,00078 L) (MizE16() EER
REEIRT LSHLCHE - WEERAEH
HERITHEAERLHERTER
KA - EARBEERNESD -
ZABEAEERERE - BHIAF -
BIEZE R - BRI I
AREKIEESER AR ([BEKIPE

&) e

LA AAREERN 2014412 A 31 B B9
BNaE > NMIBERARRAEEHEER
A HaMKZBRITABEEBEEH
2o

12.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES — GROUP
(Continued)

In October 2014, Shanghai Asiaray entered into a formal
equity transfer agreement and a related supplemental
agreement with Xiamen Iport Group Co., Ltd. (EFIFIZE
E B AR (“Xiamen Iport”) (the “Agreements”).
Pursuant to the Agreements, Shanghai Asiaray disposed
of 19% equity interest in Fujian Zhaoxiang Asiaray
Advertising Company Limited (f@ K AT RS B SR
fR 2 R]) (“Fujian Zhaoxiang Asiaray”) to Xiamen lport at a
consideration of RMB10,857,000 and Shanghai Asiaray
was to receive 49% of the retained earnings of Fujian
Zhaoxiang Asiaray as at 30 June 2014 as dividends upon
declaration and before the completion of the above
disposal; in addition, the profit or loss relating to the
above 19% equity interest in Fujian Zhaoxiang Asiaray for
the period from 1 July 2014 to the completion date of the
above disposal was attributable to Xiamen Iport. The
above disposal had been completed as at 31 December
2014 and resulted in a gain of approximately
HKD1,743,000 (Note 28). After the completion of the
above disposal, Shanghai Asiaray holds 30% equity
interest in Fujian Zhaoxiang Asiaray.

Pursuant to the Agreements, approximately
HKD19,248,000 (Note 16(f)) representing 49% of the
retained earnings of Fujian Zhaoxiang Asiaray as at 30
June 2014 was declared as dividends to Shanghai Asiaray,
which was immediately loaned to Fujian Zhaoxiang
Asiaray through entrusted loan arrangement with
commercial banks for funding its business expansion. This
loan is interest-free, unsecured and has a term of six
years. Pursuant to the Agreements, Fujian Zhaoxiang
Asiaray was also renamed as Fujian Zhaoxiang Advertising
Company Limited ({8 2 KA ESFBR A A]) (“Fujian
Zhaoxiang Advertising”).

Set out below were the associates of the Group as at 31
December 2014. The associates as listed below were held
directly by the Group, their country of incorporation is
also their principal place of business.
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12. ABZEATINIKRE — &X&E 12. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES — GROUP

(%) (Continued)

-2t v
BEiEsH AL A AL E R FEREERLS  XBME
Place of business/
Date of country of % of ownership

Name of entity incorporation incorporation interest Nature of business

REKARE 20064 A29H R 30% FE LR EPINEE R

Fujian Zhaoxiang Advertising 29 April 2006 The PRC 30% Development and operations

of out-of-home advertising
media

BREREZEEERAF 2012566 H20H P 40% FE LR EPINES R
(EAEER])

Guangxi Top Source Media 20 June 2012 The PRC 40% Development and operations
Company Limited of out-of-home advertising
(BEREREHEEERAF) media
(“Guangxi Top Source”)

RYBSHCEEHEBERDA 201359 A29H e 49% REREZPINREEHRE
(RIS R4 1)

Shenzhen Airport Asiaray 29 September 2013 The PRC 49% Development and operations
Media Company Limited of out-of-home advertising
(RIS EERARAR) media
("Shenzhen Airport Asiaray”)

ZEBMERRRAEBENRIE S ER These associates are strategic partners of the Group,
- SRR BN RS TR P R providing access to new customers and markets in
LEgE - different cities in PRC.

BE AR 2MAR/LARRE » BRI EA] All of the associates are private companies and there are
ShE - BEBBEAEEREE AR no market values available for the associates. There are
BamNERNIABE  BHEQAEE no significant contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s
BENBNERNEEINESAMRS interests in the associates and there are no significant

restrictions on the transfer of assets or earnings from the
associates to the Group.

SR R e B A B3 I E R XX The English names of the above associates referred to

W HAXEWIHARRIERERD above represented the best efforts by management of

MR A TSR 2K o the Company in translating their Chinese names, as they
do not have official English names.

ARBEERR  REIRAERS R In the opinion of the directors of the Company, Fujian

HISTECREAEEMSEER - ME Zhaoxiang Advertising and Shenzhen Airport Asiaray are

FTRREREBAL TEX o material to the Group, while Guangxi Top Source is

immaterial to the Group.
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12 REEAANERR — AEH
(%)
(a) WREIEEHHBEIE

() BEREXHEE

B

BE

B

"B (BE) EEFER
FERE

BE

BE

FRBEEFEAT
EERE

(i) HEUBXEE

YA
FEFE R AR A W 8RR

12.

(a)

Current
Assets
Liabilities

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES — GROUP
(Continued)

Summarised financial information for Fujian Zhaoxiang
Advertising:

(i) Summarised balance sheet

M®12H31H
As at 31 December
2014 F

20134
2013
T
HKD’000

2014
TR
HKD’000

Total net current

(liabilities)/assets

Non-current
Assets
Liabilities

Total net non-current assets

Net assets

Revenue

107,106 131,402
(107,919) (79.199)
(813) 52,203
61,069 47,476
(9,930) (10,960)
51,139 36,516
50,326 88,719

(ii)

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

BZ12A31MBLEE

Year ended 31 December

Profit and total comprehensive

income for the year

2014 F 2013
2014 2013
FET T
HKD'000 HKD'000
207,955 139,483
1,289 12,948
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12 REMEQRFANRE — XKHE
(#)
(a) BWERAMEEHHBEHME : (4)

(i)  BIBERBEE R
BT 251 81 7% & HgE 2 R R 5L B 0
BEKDESNESRAELYRER
s

12.

(a)

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES — GROUP
(Continued)

Summarised financial information for Fujian Zhaoxiang
Advertising : (Continued)

(iii)

Reconciliation of summarised financial information
Reconciliation of the summarised financial
information presented to the carrying amount of the
Group's interest in Fujian Zhaoxiang Advertising is
as follows:

BZ12H8318LEE

Mm12A31H
Year ended/As at 31 December
2014 F 20134
2014 2013
TERT FETT
HKD’000 HKD’'000
FHNEERE Net assets at beginning of the year 88,719 73,286
FEFE Profit for the year 1,289 12,948
B (39,281) =
B R Currency translation differences (401) 2,485
FREEFE Closing net assets 50,326 88,719
REEE AR E RS Interest in the associate
(30%,49%) (30%/49%) 15,098 43,472
kS Goodwill 4,523 7,411
BREE Carrying value 19,621 50,883
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12.

(b)

RBEQATNEE — FKH
(#)
RY 8 A A O BT R ¢

BEEREXME

(i)

B

BE

B
RBEEFEAT
FERE

BE

BE
FRBEEFEAT
EERE

(i) HEUBXEE

WA
FEAE(BR) ke
Was(BHR) @8

12. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES — GROUP
(Continued)

(b) Summarised financial information for Shenzhen Airport
Asiaray:

Summarised balance sheet

(i)

M®12H31H
As at 31 December
2014 20134
2014 2013
THET TABTT
HKD'000 HKD’000
Current
Assets 131,981 70,998
Liabilities (110,879) (41,516)
Total net current assets 21,102 29,482
Non-current
Assets 13,227 3,371
Liabilities - -
Total net non-current assets 13,227 3,371
Net assets 34,329 32,853

(ii)

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

BZE12A3MBLEE
Year ended 31 December

2014 20134

2014 2013

FHExT FHIT

HKD'000 HKD’000

Revenue 307,377 15,277
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive

income/(loss) for the year 423 (4,188)
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12 RBELQFANRE — XK 12. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES — GROUP
(%) (Continued)
(b) FYHSHAENNBERME(Z) : (b) Summarised financial information for Shenzhen Airport
Asiaray: (Continued)
(i) BIE R ES AR (iii)  Reconciliation of summarised financial information
27 E R BEEAREBR Reconciliation of the summarised financial
RIS T 4 R S BR TE(E information presented to the carrying amount of the
BROOE : Group’s interest in Shenzhen Airport Asiaray is as
follows:

BZ12H831ALEE

R12A31H
Year ended/As at 31 December
2014 2013 F
2014 2013
THERT THBT
HKD'000 HKD’000
FHNEEFE Net assets at beginning of the year 32,853 =
FEFB,/ (&) Profit/(loss)for the year 423 (4,188)
AE Capital injection 1,046 36,791
BEmE = Currency translation differences 7 250
FREEFRE Closing net assets 34,329 32,853
B &R R AR (49%) Interest in the associate (49%) 16,821 15,561
REE Carrying value 16,821 15,561
() EARERNIHBERBZENT (c) Summarised financial information for Guangxi Top

Source is as follows:

BZ12B831HLEE/
M12H31H
Year ended/As at 31 December
2014 F 2013

2014 2013
TR TAT
HKD’000 HKD’000

AP IR 2 BREE Carrying amount in the consolidation
financial statements = =
WA Revenue 36,878 24,320

FE(E BB ARG BB s Share of loss and total comprehensive loss = (1,171)
20144 2013124318 R E The carrying amount of the investment in Guangxi Top
BAIERNKRERAEBERSES  BAK Source was reduced to nil as at 31 December 2014 and
SEEEBEDBLENEATDRNE 2013 as the Group's share of loss had exceeded its
= o (G &5 185,391,000 % JT I R A & interest in Guangxi Top Source. Share of loss
2014612 A31 A L FE R (2013 HKD5,391,000 was not recognised for the year ended 31
£ : 5,606,000787T) ° December 2014 (2013: HKD5,606,000).
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13. R—EMBARIZRE — &2 13. INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY
A
R—ENEARZRE Investments in a subsidiary
R12A31R
As at 31 December
2014 F 20134
2014 2013
THET THET
HKD’000 HKD'000
& - IR Investments, at cost:
JE LTS Unlisted shares 280,094 -
T ARR2014F12 A3 BZEZME The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31
RE] e December 2014.
BRF F2R
ML/ BRTRES ERREN  AREEAN RENAN TEXHA
RIYBHRAH HERRED RA/amEs  EBERLA (%) EBREAC  EERLA) EXLBE
Proportion
Issuedand  Proportionof  Proportion of of ordinary  Principal
Place and date of paid-in capital/  ordinary shares  ordinary shares  sharesheldby activities and
incorporation/ Kind of registered directly held held by the  non-controlling place of
Company Name establishment legal entity capital by parent (%) Group (%) interests (%)  operation
KRAEREE
Directly held by the Company:
TR BHER HERAEE BRELRH 50,000/ 7 100% - - RESR
2014557208 ERRAES
Asiaray Media Holdings BVI, 20 May 2014 Limited liability HKD50,000 100% - - Investment holding,
company BVI
FAAMERE
Indirectly held by the Company:
Asiaray Metro A% 01051088 BREAAA 18T - 100% - PHEERERE
Asiaray Metro Hong Kong, Limited liability HKD1 - 100% - Out-ohome advertising
8 October 2010 company media services,
Hong Kong
FERERE BE 1935850 AREMAA 25000007 - 100% - PHRSHERE:
Asiaray Advertising Media Hong Kong, Limited liability HKD2,500,000 - 100% - Out-ofhome advertising
5 August 1993 company media services,
Hong Kong
Asiaray Outdoor A% 001E10A88  BREAAA 10,0007 - 100% - PHEERERE
Asiaray Outdoor Hong Kong, Limited liability HKD10,000 - 100% - Out-ohome advertising
8 October 2007 company media services,
Hong Kong
Genesis Signmarker B 007510A88  BREAAA 10,000 %7 - 100% - R BMEI
RERY Bk
Genesis Signmarker Hong Kong, Limited liability HKD10,000 - 100% - Design, consultancy,
8 October 2007 company construction and
maintenance services,
Hong Kong

Asiaray Media Group Limited 2014 Annual Report 139



ESOtEAFRERZRMIEE  NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A (&)

Company Name

Genesis Printing

Genesis Printing

BERESERAT
Asiaray Advertising Limited

BRR(E
Hong Kong Asiaray

Teithie

Asiaray Media

Lt

Shanghai Asiaray

13. R—ENEBLARZRE — &2

L/
HIBHR AH

Place and date of
incorporation/
establishment

&5 2007410588

Hong Kong,
8 October 2007

B 2004597 28A
Hong Kong,

28 September 2004
B8 1995104318
Hong Kong,

31 October 1995
i 200263768
Hong Kong,

6 March 2002
FE 199544278

The PRC, 27 April 1999

FERNEREERERAT  RE 200659425
Shanghai Meidisi Advertising The PRC,
Media Company Limited 25 September 2006
(EEXNEREERERAR)
MIRCRRERRAT & 2010%8A31H
Zhejiang Asiaray Advertising The PRC, 31 August 2010
Company Limited
(ITRERRERRAR)
REEREERAT hE - 201056 A9H
Shenzhen Yatie Advertising The PRC, 9 June 2010
Company Limited
(RIRAEREERAA)
LERERREERERAT  FE 20065 11A29A
Shanghai Advertising Media The PRC,
Company Limited 29 November 2006
(LEREAREBEARAR)
MEEEREEFRAR  2014F35H 140

EERERE

Kind of
legal entity

Limited liability
company

BREEAR
Limited liability
company
BREEAH
Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company
BRELRA
Limited liability
company
EEGIN
Limited liability
company
BRELRH
Limited liability
company
EEGIN
Limited liability
company
BRELRA

Limited liability
company

13.

(Continued)

BRTRES
RA/RES
Issued and
paid-in capital/

registered
capital

10,0007

HKD10,000

10,0007

HKD10,000

990077
HKD9,900

0%

HKD10

AR 50,000,000

RMB50,000,000

ARH2365,5307

RMB2,365,530

AR S5,0000007T

RMBS5,000,000

ARH1,0000007T

RMB1,000,000

AR 40,000,000

RMB40,000,000

B1F
ERBAN
EZERLA (%)

Proportion of
ordinary shares
directly held
by parent (%)

AREEEN
EERELA %)
Proportion of
ordinary shares

held by the
Group (%)

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

2R
RiiAN
EERELA %)
Proportion

of ordinary
shares held by
non-controlling
interests (%)

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY

EREHA
XA

Principal
activities and
place of
operation

EE - EE - REA
bl A

Advertising, production,
installation and
dismantling services,
Hong Kong

EEEX BR
Inactive, Hong Kong

Investment holding,
Hong Kong

FONEERERE -
&

Out-of-home advertising
media services,
Hong Kong

PSR
4

Out-of-home advertising
media services,
the PRC

EANEERBIRE -
h

Out-of-home advertising
media services,
the PRC

PONEEBRRE -
4

Out-of-home advertising
media services,
the PRC

EONEEREIRE -
h

Out-of-home advertising
media services,
the PRC

POEEBRRE -
G

Out-of-home advertising
media services,
the PRC
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A (&)

Company Name

BN ESERAF

Guangzhou Asiaray Advertising
Company Limited
(ENELRESRRAR)

EREAMAESER
ERAR(ZRERELE])
Yunnan Airport Asiaray
Information Media
Company Limited
("Yunnan Airport Asiaray”)
(ERERERITARSER
BRAT)

AHERSERAF

Shenzhen Asiaray Advertising
Company Limited
(A REBRAA)

AR REERAA

Hainan Asiaray Advertising
Company Limited
(BERHARSARAR)

AEHABRAR

Shenzhen Yashi Metro Company
Limited
(RELHEERLR)

RARCRRERRAA
(Rt )

Chengdu Asiaray Advertising
Company Limited
("Chengdu Asiaray")

(R RRERRAR)

IRt & REARAT
Beijing Asiaray Advertising
Co. Ltd.
(ERELREERRAR)
BRRCRREERAA
Xi'an Asiaray Advertising

Company Limited
(B REBRAA)

13. R—ENEBLARZRE — &2

EMRIL/
ISR EH

Place and date of
incorporation/
establishment

FE 200249728
The PRC,

26 September 2002
FE 200246 A26A

The PRC, 26 June 2002

FE - 2004F3A178

The PRC, 17 March 2004

S E 2008417108
The PRC,

10 January 2008
FE 201111430
The PRC,

3 November 2011
FE 2002497208

The PRC,
20 September 2002

BE 199847 A98

The PRC, 9 July 1998

FE 20036 A25H

The PRC, 25 June 2003

EERERE

Kind of
legal entity

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

BRALAH
Limited liability
company
LGN
Limited liability
company
BRALRH

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

13.

(Continued)

BRTRES
Ba/fmER
Issued and
paid-in capital/

registered
capital

AE#1,030,0007C

RMB1,030,000

AR%10,000,0007C

RMB10,000,000

ARH1,000,0007C

RMB?1,000,000

AR#%2,000,0007C

RMB2,000,000

ARH1,000,0007C

RMB?1,000,000

ARH1,200,0007

RMB1,200,000

AR 10,500,007

RMB10,500,000

ARH1,0000007

RMB1,000,000

BAF
EREAN
EERLA (%)

Proportion of
ordinary shares
directly held
by parent (%)

AEEEEN
EERELA %)
Proportion of
ordinary shares

held by the
Group (%)

100%

100%

51%

51%

100%

100%

100%

100%

72%

72%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Asiaray Media Group Limited

2R
RiiFAN
EBRELA %)
Proportion

of ordinary
shares held by
non-controlling
interests (%)

49%

49%

28%

28%

2014 Annual Report

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY

EREEA
XA

Principal
activities and
place of
operation

FONBEFER -
il

Out-of-home advertising
media services,
the PRC

FONEERERE -
h

Out-of-home advertising
media services,
the PRC

PORESRRS
G

Out-of-home advertising
media services,
the PRC

FONEERERE -
h

Out-of-home advertising
media services,
the PRC

PORESRRTS
G

Out-of-home advertising
media services,
the PRC

FONEERERE -
i

Out-of-home advertising
media services,
the PRC

EANEERER -
h

Out-of-home advertising
media services,
the PRC

PONEERER -
i

Out-of-home advertising
media services,
the PRC
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13.

A HEEREBERAF

R—ENBARZERE — &2
A (&)

HERRL/
RIBHRAH
Place and date of
incorporation/
Company Name establishment
ERRLARSERAA FE8 201357728
Qingdao Asiaray Advertising The PRC, 2 July 2013
Company Limited
(BREHEESARAR)
MEZARLAERARAR  BE 200757 A13H
Henan Airport Asiaray Information  The PRC, 13 July 2007
Media Company Limited
(TAZARLLBEARAR)
LERERREERERAT  BE 01U4ETATH

Shanghai Asiaray Media The PRC, 7 July 2014

Communication Company

Limited

(LERECAREERARAA)
AIESERERRAT hE 201249 A3
Shenzhen Baimoshi Advertising ~ The PRC,

Company Limited 3 September 2012

(MERLEEERAR)
ESRCMNABRERLA R 2014F2A25H
Wuxi Asiaray Metro Media The PRC,

Company Limited 25 February 2014

(ESRBLEERERAT)

PR KB A RIIDMA S B - REERHT
JB& R R A RO IR SR HE LG (I B AT B A AR
RSP — B

R2014F12 A318 1 3 4 & # 5
89,683,000 7T (20134 : 61,932,000
P TT ) B A 22 e 2 S T 4 O SR 1R AR A
=AM - R20145F 12 A 31 BRIEEEME
HE %542,00078 7T (20134« E AL 6458
6,885,000 %8 7T ) £2)0] 7Y 22 B FEAT 4 A IE
RSB -

AR A SR BB AR ) st A el T 2 )
MPBREERR  HREHBARRE
ERAEBZMBRRINE -

REBEEMIFREME A RH I
SHAEELFEE -

20143 142

EERERE

Kind of
legal entity

G

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

BREERA
Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY

(Continued)
82 FER
BETREH ERBEN AEEEEN BEEEN IEEEA
RE/amEs  BERLA (%) EEREAC  EERA) EELE
Proportion
Issuedand  Proportionof  Proportion of of ordinary  Principal
paid-in capital/ ~ ordinary shares ordinary shares  sharesheldby activities and
registered directly held held by the  non-controlling place of
capital by parent (%) Group (%) interests (%)  operation
AR10,000,0007T - 100% - PHEERERS
h
RMB10,000,000 - 100% - Out-of-home advertising
media services,
the PRC
ARH5,0000007T - 51% 9% PHEESERRE
h
RMB5,000,000 - 51% 49%  Out-of-home advertising
media services,
the PRC
AR1,000,00070 - 100% - PHEERERS
h
RMB1,000,000 - 100% - Out-of-home advertising
media services,
the PRC
ARH1,0000007T - 100% - BERE - HE
RMB1,000,000 - 100% - Advertising services,
the PRC
ARH3,0000007 - 90% 10%  PHEEERRSE
h
RMB3,000,000 - 90% 10%  Out-of-home advertising
media services,
the PRC

All subsidiaries are included in the consolidation. The
proportion of the voting rights in the subsidiaries held by
the Group does not differ from the proportion of equity
interests held.

The non-controlling interest of HKD89,683,000 as at 31
December 2014 (2013: HKD61,932,000) was relating to
the non-controlling interest in Yunnan Airport Asiaray.
The non-controlling interest of HKD42,000 as at 31
December 2014 (2013: deficit balance of HKDé,885,000)
was relating to the non-controlling interest in Henan
Airport Asiaray.

As the Group had the power to control the financial and
operating policies of the above two subsidiaries, they had
been accounted for as subsidiaries of the Group.

The non-controlling interests of the Group’s other non-
wholly owned subsidiaries are not material to the Group.
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13. R—ENEBLARZRE — &2

Al (&)

BARRH

R 20144 K2013F 128318 + £+
BRiiFEaNEe RNEBHTERS BB
234,312,000/ 7T % 172,571,000 7T
WAR EHINE B BIERATHR - 25
T Hb I B A AR PR 3 38 IE AR B
IIFABESELRE -

BEEERFZERERWHE DTS
(a) EFEETEMAEL I TEEHE
4

() BEREXRBE

13. INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY
(Continued)
Significant restrictions
Cash and short-term deposits of HKD234,312,000 and
HKD172,571,000 were held in Mainland China as at 31
December 2014 and 2013, respectively, and are subject
to local exchange control regulations. These local
exchange control regulations provide for restrictions on
exporting capital from the country, other than through
normal dividends.

Summarised financial information for subsidiaries with
material non-controlling interests
(@)  Summarised financial information of Yunnan Airport
Asiaray:
(i) Summarised balance sheet

hE

BE

aff
RBEEFEAT
e

aR
FERBEEFERE

BEEFE

MN12H31H
As at 31 December
2014 20134
2014 2013
FHET FATT
HKD’000 HKD'000

Current
Assets 262,872 215,678
Liabilities (120,579) (118,044)
Total net current assets 142,293 97,634

Non-current

Assets 40,733 28,758
Liabilities - -
Total net non-current assets 40,733 28,758
Net assets 183,026 126,392
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13. R—ENBARZRE — &2
&) (#)
BAEAFERERSQHED DMK
HERBE (F)

() ZREBMMNOFENE
Z:(#)

(i) #HFEWRERME

YA
BR P15 Bt A1 A1 7B
PSR 2

FRSEXBNE
Hitiza (BR), e

mE AR

B8 D40 IFIT AR Y
fRe W R

A SR A 2 R A B BB

(il RERERME

13. INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY
(Continued)
Summarised financial information for subsidiaries with
material non-controlling interests (Continued)
(a) Summarised financial information of Yunnan Airport
Asiaray: (Continued)
(i)  Summarised statement of comprehensive
income

HZ12A3MBLEE

Year ended 31 December

2014 F 20134
2014 2013
FAET FHETT
HKD'000 HKD’000
Revenue 267,929 262,641
Profit before income tax 96,529 86,477
Income tax expense (14,476) (13,170)
Profit from continuing operations 82,053 73,307
Other comprehensive (loss)/income (1,070) 2,669
Total comprehensive income 80,983 75,976
Total comprehensive income
allocated to non-controlling
interest 39,682 37,228
Dividend paid to non-controlling
interest 12,374 -

(i)  Summarised statement of cash flows

BZ12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December

2014 %

2014
FET

20134
2013

TR

EEREHHREN
RERg

REMBRS

ERATEHR

BEEHMSREFH

BERESM MRS
BMERDMAE L FE

RERBREEEY
(M), /18 E 28
FNNRELBEEFEY

R MREZEBYMER
(&8, Was

FRORERREEEY
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HKD’000 HKD’000

Cash flows from operating
activities

Cash generated from operations 106,637 82,684
Income tax paid (24,757) (1,166)
Net cash generated from

operating activities 81,880 81,518
Net cash used in investing activities (195,616) (7,655)
Net cash used in financing activities (25,873) (12,079)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash

and cash equivalents (139,609) 61,784
Cash and cash equivalents at

beginning of the year 161,376 93,393
Exchange (losses)/gains on cash

and cash equivalents (1,172) 6,199
Cash and cash equivalents at

end of the year 20,595 161,376
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13. R—ENBLARZRE — &4
&) (#)
AABAFERAESOHEQ ANTE
EREE ()

(b) 55 B AT 4 1) A 35 Y

i)

BEABRME

B

BE

=N

RBREFEAT
FERE

BE

afE
FRBEEFEAT
BEERE(EEZEBA)

(i) #HEWERHR

WA
BR FT1S Bt AT A1 7B
PSR

FRSEXBNRE
Hip#R A B8

maBEAE
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QEEYe: FgRl:es,

13. INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY
(Continued)

Summarised financial information for subsidiaries with
material non-controlling interests (Continued)

(b)  Summarised financial information of Henan Airport
Asiaray:

(i) Summarised balance sheet

M®12H31H
As at 31 December
2014 20134
2014 2013
THET FABTT
HKD’000 HKD'000
Current
Assets 57,209 16,215
Liabilities (90,893) (68,127)
Total net current liabilities (33,684) (51,912)
Non-current
Assets 42,326 47,718
Liabilities (8,557) (9,858)
Total net non-current assets 33,769 37,860
Net assets/(deficit on net assets) 85 (14,052)

(ii)

Summarised statement of comprehensive
income

BZ12A3MBLEE

Year ended 31 December

2014 F 20134
2014 2013
FHET THET
HKD’000 HKD’'000
Revenue 116,024 102,132
Profit before income tax 18,800 4,580
Income tax expense (4,773) (1,271)
Profit from continuing operations 14,027 3,309
Other comprehensive loss (109) 479)
Total comprehensive income 13,918 2,830
Total comprehensive income
allocated to non-controlling
interest 6,820 1,387
Dividend paid to non-controlling
interest = =
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13. R—ENBRARAZRE — &1 13. INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY
gl (&) (Continued)
BEEEARFIEREZNVME D T Summarised financial information for subsidiaries with
ERBE(E) material non-controlling interests (Continued)
(b) A EZEE AR B E A (b)  Summarised financial information of Henan Airport
Z: (&) Asiaray: (Continued)
iy RERERME (i)  Summarised statement of cash flows

BZEZ128318LLEE

Year ended 31 December
2014 & 20134

2014 2013
TR THAT
HKD’000 HKD’000

BETEFBMNESMRE Cash flows from operating

activities
KEFRFRE Cash generated from operations 10,063 4,271
BERFE Interest paid (1,038) (882)
Y GIEEY Income tax paid (1,087) (466)

EEEBMSH T Net cash generated from

operating activities 7,938 2,923
B EEATARE F5E Net cash used in investing activities (922) (4,608)
B REPTRIRS 558 Net cash used in financing activities (1,268) (1,208)

HERBELLEYIEM, Netincrease/(decrease) in cash

() F5 and cash equivalents 5,748 (2,893)
FYMBRERHEELEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year 11,195 13,810
Re RS EEYWMIEH,  Exchange gains on cash and
Yegs cash equivalents 57 278

FRNEESRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year 17,000 11,195
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14. EEFRBH — XA&H 14. DEFERRED INCOME TAX — GROUP
BIEFEREERBBHONTT The analysis of deferred income tax assets and liabilities is
as follows:
M®12H31H
As at 31 December
2014 20134
2014 2013
TExT TABTT
HKD’'000 HKD’'000
EEFTISTEE ¢ Deferred income tax assets:
— R 1218 A muke — to be recovered within 12 months 49,895 41,623
— R 12@ A &= — to be recovered after 12 months 8,337 1,756
58,232 43,379
EEFTISTAE Deferred income tax liabilities:
— R 12 REE — to be settled within 12 months (75) -
58,157 43,379
EEFTISTRER B R F T - The net movement on the deferred income tax account is
as follows:

HZ12A3MBLEE

Year ended 31 December

2014 £ 20134

2014 2013

FH&xT FHT

HKD'000 HKD'000

F4) Beginning of the year 43,379 38,935
RIBmRPER (M5E30) Recognised in profit or loss (Note 30) 14,612 3,324
REMERE WP A Credited to other comprehensive income 31 47
HE—FfME R R (Mfit34) Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 34) - (185)
B E =R Currency translation differences 135 1,258
FR At end of the year 58,157 43,379
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14. ELEFRBH — AEEH (@) 14. DEFERRED INCOME TAX — GROUP (Continued)
BEFEREEMBENED (KK Movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
ER—MRB R EEREBIENESR)NT without taking into consideration the offsetting of

balances within the same tax jurisdiction is as follows:

IEEFA ST EE ¢ Deferred income tax assets:

At E

tREE ERFA
FEWRE HATE HELFN
BERE 28  EEYE

Fair value

change on

Provision for available-  Discounting

impairment for-sale effect of

of Depreciation financial  loans to an
Accruals  receivables  Taxlosses  allowance assets associate Total
TARL ThRL ThRL TARL TAL TAR TARL
HKD'000  HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000  HKD'000

HZ 20145128318 Year ended

LLEE 31 December 2014

E2) Atbeginning of the year 39,886 1,633 1,756 6 98 - 43,379
PEZEA/(F1B)  Credited/(Charged) to

profit or loss 6,271 529 6,350 (6) - 1,543 14,687
sTAR MRS W Credited to other

comprehensive income - - - - 31 - 31
EBREEE Currency translation

differences (99) (3) 231 - - 6 135
FR At end of the year 46,058 2,159 8,337 - 129 1,549 58,232

AHHE
ERAEN

Fair value
change on

available-
Provision for for-sale

impairment Depreciation financial
Accruals of receivables  Tax losses allowance assets Total
FEL THL T T FEL FEL
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000

HZ2013%128318 Year ended 31 December 2013

LEE
) At beginning of the year 34,095 1,142 3,626 21 71 38,955
REBZEFREA/ (M) Credited/(charged) to profit or loss 4,651 449 (1,761) (15) = 3,324
SAR AR Credited to other comprehensive income - - - - 27 27
HE—HHBAR Disposal of a subsidiary = = (185) = = (185)
ERREER Currency translation differences 1,140 42 76 = = 1,258
4 Atend ofthe year P88 163 1% 6 %8 w39
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14. SEEFREH — K@ (#)
EEFGBALE

14. DEFERRED INCOME TAX — GROUP (Continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities:

AHtHE
TREEMN
DN EWE

Fair
value gains

on available-
for-sale
financial
assets
FHIT
HKD'000

BRAFEIIA
BaRiRNSHE
EEQATFEKSE
Fair

value gains
on financial
assets at fair
value through
profit or loss
FAT
HKD'000

Total
FETT
HKD’000

BZ2014%12H31H
IEEE

F4)

RIBaF Rk

FiR

BZ2013412831H
IEEE

1)

REMERE WP R

FiR

Year ended

31 December 2014
At beginning of the year
Charged to profit or loss

At end of the year

Year ended

31 December 2013
At beginning of the year
Charged to other

comprehensive income

At end of the year

R2014%F K2013F12A318 A&
(] 7 5 Bl 3t 7Y A58 LAS N R TR AR AR
I A #921,978,0007% JT 5 70,823,000
BIREGERRECHNSHEE
4,715,00078 7T M 16,368,000 7T °

- (75) (75)

= (75) (75)
(20) = (20)
20 - 20

The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets
of HKD4,715,000 and HKD16,368,000 in respect of tax
losses amounting to HKD21,978,000 and HKD70,823,000
that can be carried forward against future taxable income
as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.

Asiaray Media Group Limited 2014 Annual Report 149



ESOtEAFRERZRMIEE  NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. SEEFREH — K@ (#) 14. DEFERRED INCOME TAX — GROUP (Continued)
AR IBEENIABIEEmA The expiry date of the tax losses for which deferred tax
HRan R assets were not recognised is as follows:

R12A31H
As at 31 December
20145 20134
2014 2013
THERT TH&TT
HKD’000 HKD'000
1 FARER Expire within 1 year 1,863 981
RI1ZE2FREMm Expire in 1 to 2 years 664 3,450
R2E3FRNEm Expire in 2 to 3 years 2,609 8,010
RIZ4FREMm Expire in 3 to 4 years 2,260 27,040
RAZESFEREm Expire in 4 to 5 years 1,215 14,491
S5FEU ERIXERTE Over 5 years and not subject to expiration 13,367 16,851
21,978 70,823
20144 K2013F 1283180 » K& The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets
& 17 48 55 Bl 5t AT 4582 LA $0 5K 2R FE AR A of HKD94,000 and HKD12,898,000 in respect of other
W A #9 377,000 7% 7T % 51,592,000 % 7T deductible temporary differences amounting to
E o] HUR SR =R EREEERE HKD377,000 and HKD51,592,000 that can be carried
/94,0007 7T &% 12,898,000 7 7T ° forward against future taxable income as at 31 December

2014 and 2013, respectively.

15. HERBEE — xKH 15. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS — GROUP

M12H831H
As at 31 December
2014 & 20134

2014 2013
FERT TAT
HKD’000 HKD’000

BEETYWHENTENFKIE@) Prepayments for purchase of

certain properties (a) - 31,816

(a) IEUEEBELERBZBERE (@) It represented the prepayments for the purchase of
ZHEEETHABMIEERN certain office units under mortgage financing
B ERIE - ZER N B R R arrangement by Henan Airport Asiaray for self-use,
B IR E AR IR 1B (8 A K the ownership title of these office units have been
B ZEEREEN2014F12 pledged as security for the related mortgage
A31H 49,825,000/% JT(2013 borrowings of HKD9,825,000 as at 31 December
4 111,130,000 7T ) (FizE21) ° 2014 (2013: HKD11,130,000) (Note 21). These office
R2014F8H » ZEMREMR units were delivered to the Group in August 2014
FAREER - MEBEMFED and the related prepayments were transferred to
MEmEREYE  BE RRE property, plant and equipment and land use rights
VA i f5 FR #E (B st 6 )2 7) © (Notes 6 and 7) accordingly.
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. BWERF R HbEEWRRIE — K 16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — GROUP
EBRAATR AND COMPANY
TEE KAT
Group Company
2014 F 20134 2014 20134
2014 2013 2014 2013
TERT FHT FEx FHT
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FFARBEE Included in current assets
FEWBERFX (a) Trade receivables (a) 229,626 178,195 = =
— R —BRIE S FIE — Due from a related party
(Bt 36(b)) (Note 36(b)) 12,733 187 - =
—ERE=FRE — Due from third parties 216,893 178,008 - =
R EAERFURE Less: allowance for impairment
45 (b) of trade receivables (b) (8,027) 6,172) = =
FEUERER  FEE Trade receivables, net 221,599 172,023 = -
H b e U FRIE (o) Other receivables (c) 81,251 107,386 187,165 =
— RS R — Due from related parties
(3% 36(b)) (Note 36(b)) 737 61,862 = -
— EWHBATIZE  — Due from subsidiaries = = 187,165 =
—ERE=FFIA — Due from third parties 80,514 45,524 - -
R B Al TR IE Less: allowance for impairment
TRE R () of other receivables (d) (1,285) (1,030) = =
HhEWRFIE - JF5  Other receivables, net 79,966 106,356 = =
FEU RS Interest receivable 3,692 1,956 - -
B #IE Prepaid taxes 3,507 3,118 - =
HAb AN FIE (e) Other prepayments (e) 44,971 22,326 = -
— A TEER — Paid to related parties
(B15£36(b) (Note 36(b)) 1,051 1,319 - =
—XNFE=R — Paid to third parties 43,920 21,007 - -
353,735 305,779 187,165 -
STAERBEE Included in non-current assets
m— I E AR E () Loans to an associate (f) 18,206 = = -
st Total 371,941 305,779 187,165 -
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16. BUYRMR EAMEERRE — &
KEREQT (&)

(a) AEEWERTFEFIREGES - NS (a)
EHRIRBI AR B BRI T
BORRANTMT -

16.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — GROUP
AND COMPANY (Continued)

The Group has no specified credit terms for its customers.
Ageing analysis of the gross trade receivables based on
revenue recognition date at the respective balance sheet
dates is as follows:

R12A31H
As at 31 December

2014 F 20134
2014 2013
THERT TH&TT
HKD’000 HKD'000
TiEBB 6 fE A Up to 6 months 184,483 153,756
6E A= 1218 A 6 months to 12months 28,143 8,454
1FE2F 1 year to 2 years 8,025 11,439
2FFE3IF 2 years to 3 years 4,990 557
3FU L Over 3 years 3,985 3,989
229,626 178,195

720144 2013128318 & @
HEXRBRENRERKERD B QA
184,483,000/ 7T % 153,756,000 7T °
IS FRIBE B I E A B R &
MBLEFHE  BIRBAKLR B
SEAI AR o X EREUBR AR ER D
W

T8 618 A Up to 6 months
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As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, trade receivables past
due but not impaired were approximately
HKD184,483,000 and HKD153,756,000 respectively.
These mainly relate to a number of independent
customers for whom there were no significant financial
difficulties and based on the past experience, the overdue
amount can be recovered. The ageing analysis of these
trade receivables was as follows:

M12H831H
As at 31 December
2014 F

2013
2013
FHEIT
HKD'000

2014
FERT
HKD’000

184,483 153,756
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16. BRI R HAnEWFRIE — &
EERAQATE)

(@) (&) (a)
7K20144F k20136128318 © E K
R 345,143,000 7T K& 24,439,000 %8
TTEERERIE - )R 2014F £ 2013 F
12A318 - BESEH 578,027,000
7B IT 5 6,172,000 7T © 5% 55 FE GRIE

16.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — GROUP
AND COMPANY (Continued)

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, trade receivables of
HKD45,143,000 and HKD24,439,000 were impaired. The
amount of the provision were HKD8,027,000 and
HKD6,172,000 as of 31 December 2014 and 2013. The
ageing of these receivables is as follows:

RYBRERIN T ¢
R12A31R
As at 31 December
20145 20134
2014 2013
FHET T
HKD’000 HKD’000
6 A= 1218 A 6 months to 12months 28,143 8,454
1FE2F 1 year to 2 years 8,025 11,439
2FF3IF 2 years to 3 years 4,990 557
3FNU L Over 3 years 3,985 3,989
45,143 24,439
(b) REEBBENRSOREREEHNZSH N (b)  Movements on the Group's provision for impairment of
TS trade receivables are as follows:

HZ12A3MBLEE

Year ended 31 December

2014 £ 20134

2014 2013

F#ET FHT

HKD'000 HKD’'000

FH At beginning of the year 6,172 3,792
B Provision for impairment 2,942 2,311
B S B 4 Provision written off (1,075) =
EBBmEEE Currency translation differences (12) 69
FR At end of the year 8,027 6,172

ERERKFENBEED T AGHEE
WHRAK [THAX ]  ERHTE
WEEZREH  NMeEREMENE
BT AMH -

The provision for impaired receivables had been included
in “administrative expenses” in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income. Amounts charged
to the allowance account are generally written off, when
there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.
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16. EWRAR R HAAEKFRIE — K
EERAQTE (&)

() EABEUGIEEZRATRIEEERE
EAXMOERRES REYKE T#@E
7 FIE o R 20144 2013412 A 31
B - B@HE R ENE b EREIED
Bl 49 %737,0007% T K 61,862,000
Lo WERBFERETWEEAUHG
REMAENRIRE - RIBRTLER -
BERS R DA o XS H A FEIRFRIE
RIERER DATAAT

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — GROUP
AND COMPANY (Continued)

(c)  Other receivables mainly represent guaranteed deposits
paid to various media resources owners and amounts due
from certain related parties. As at 31 December 2014 and
2013, other receivables past due but not impaired were
approximately HKD737,000 and HKDé61,862,000,
respectively. These mainly relate to certain related
companies for whom there were no significant financial
difficulties and based on the past experience, the overdue
amount can be recovered. The ageing analysis of these
other receivables was as follows:

180 HE LA

MR2014% K% 2013412 A318 - HibfE
U 3k 1816,193,0007% JT K& 15,748,000
BITEERBEERE - #22014F &
201312 A31H BELE DR B
1,285,000 7% 7T } 1,030,000 7 7T © %55
FEURF BRI RN ¢

180 days or less
180 B A E Over 180 days

M®12H31H

As at 31 December
2014 20134
2014 2013
TExT TATT
HKD’000 HKD'000
402 34,033
335 27,829
737 61,862

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, other receivables of
HKD16,193,000 and HKD15,748,000 were impaired. The
amount of the provision were HKD1,285,000 and
HKD1,030,000 as of 31 December 2014 and 2013. The
ageing of these receivables is as follows:

180 HEAR
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180 days or less
180 H A E Over 180 days

M12H831H

As at 31 December
2014 & 20134
2014 2013
F#&xT TFETT
HKD’'000 HKD'000
14,508 4,773
1,685 10,975
16,193 15,748
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16. BYIRR R HEWRRIE — & 16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — GROUP
EBENRADNT (&) AND COMPANY (Continued)
(d) AEEGRHEMWEWZOEREEERE (d)  Movements on the Group's provision for impairment of
BT - other receivables are as follows:
®12A31H
As at 31 December
2014 20134
2014 2013
THET TABTT
HKD’000 HKD’'000
FH4] At beginning of the year 1,030 997
BERE Provision for impairment 257 2
EEHmE R Currency translation differences (2) 31
Fa At end of the year 1,285 1,030

B EE A B R B R B AR
Bt AGH A WERAR[1THE
X]  EEMTEROELRER 1
BERPHRN S —RT AN -

(e) EAFANFIBEIFTMOT (e)

BEEEHEFEEE LN

The provision and reversal of provision for impaired other
receivables have been included in “administrative
expenses” in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income. Amounts charged to the
allowance account are generally written off, when there is
no expectation of recovering additional cash.

Analysis of other prepayments is as follows:

M12H831H
As at 31 December
2014 F

2013
2013
FAETT
HKD'000

2014
FET
HKD’000

Prepayments for concession fee charges

TEfFRIE for advertising spaces 31,179 19,601
TEfT EmARERAZ (%) Prepaid listing-related expenses (*) 10,984 636
Hith Others 2,808 2,089

44,971 22,326
*) BeEH LTS TEEERI N 2R *) It represented the payments made to certain professional

B BADRRIBITHREREER
- WER2015F 1 A 158 EmERE
NaBRETER -

parties for the preparation of the Listing, which were
incremental and directly attributable to the issue of new shares
of the Company and were capitalised into the share premium
account upon the Listing which occurred on 15 January 2015.
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16.

()

(9)

17.

A HEEREBERAF

EWERR R H A e FRIE — &K
EERAQTE (&)

Bl BB RE M #EmEE Ik E S IR A
He BB - B —I1819,248,0007%
T ANFEHER(HZEI2) R — 18
5,129,000 B TTHI R EHIE K - MIEE
KT RFED RIER AR B AR
TRHEIIRITEEFIZE6.55% & 6.15%
FTEReREMRAMEE - 1P AFE
HWEEXNAS Z2HENZERE
6,662,000 TTEETA [BEKA] (H
5T29) °

7K 8 [ MR 3 L A IO O FE D
SEATEMHE -

AR RMB
BT HKD

EHENR — XEE

HZE2014%F 2013612 A318 1IE 4
B AEEVNSFHANT6EAENF
R HATF S BER A E 5 R £3.15% &
3.17% °

REBHNEHTERAAREE -
RETF B ES A - ERE - KA
ZEERA MN20144F K2013F12 8

318 ST RNEAEHEEAFE
HE -

20143 156

16.

()

(9)

17.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — GROUP
AND COMPANY (Continued)

It represented two interest-free loans from Shanghai
Asiaray to Fujian Zhaoxiang Advertising, including a loan
of HKD 19,248,000 (Note 12) which had a term of 6 years
and a loan of HKD5,129,000 which had a term of 2 years.
The initial fair values of the two loans were based on cash
flows discounted using interest rates based on the
prevailing borrowing rates of 6.55% and 6.15%,
respectively, promulgated by the People’s Bank of China.
The HKD6,662,000 of differences between the initial fair
value and the principals of the two loans were recorded in
finance costs’ (Note 29).

The carrying amount of the Group’s trade and other
receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

M®12H31H

As at 31 December
2014 % 20134
2014 2013
TExT T T
HKD’000 HKD'000
283,850 201,876
88,091 103,903
371,941 305,779

SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS — GROUP

The effective interest rate for the short-term deposits of
the Group with initial terms ranging from 6 months to 1
year for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013
was 3.15% and 3.17% respectively.

The Group's short-term deposits were denominated in
RMB.

Short-term deposits were neither past due nor impaired.
The directors of the Company considered that the
carrying amount of the short-term deposits approximated
their fair value as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.
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18.

(a)

(b)

HENBEEEEY — AEE 18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — GROUP
R12H31H
As at 31 December
2014 £ 20134
2014 2013
THET T
HKD'000 HKD'000
RIOTEREFHEES Cash at bank and on hand 216,598 211,591
B R IR (b) Less: Restricted cash (b) (80,968) (11,043)
BeRBESEEY () Cash and cash equivalents (a) 135,630 200,548
BB e RRCEEMUATIEEE (a) Cash and cash equivalents were denominated in the
18 : following currencies:
M®12H831H
As at 31 December
2014 20134
2014 2013
FET FHT
HKD’000 HKD'000
AR RMB 128,350 176,681
BT HKD 7,280 23,867
135,630 200,548
ZIRHIE L UARKIHE - FREES (b)  Restricted cash was denominated in RMB. An analysis of
AT restricted cash is as follows:

M®12H831H
As at 31 December
2014 F 20134

2014 2013
FTExT TAT
HKD’000 HKD’000

A TIRITATE L REKAEIR  Guaranteed deposits for letter of

REE guarantee issued by certain banks 80,968 11,043
481N RS Y S B B HR A HNEE T 46 The conversion of RMB denominated balances into
h B 2 AN S HE Y SR T A A R TR foreign currencies and the remittance of such foreign
%+ JEE <P B BT A M B O N E 420 S currencies denominated bank balances and cash out of
15| T 35181 o the PRC are subject to relevant rules and regulations of

foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.
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19. BAE — REFBR A AT 19. SHARE CAPITAL — GROUP AND COMPANY

EERHE HEREE
Number Nominal value
of ordinary of ordinary

shares shares
(FR%) (F#T)
(thousand) (HKD'000)

ERE Authorised:

A AR B ARE(EO0.1078 7T Ordinary shares of HKD0.10 each upon

EOREREL incorporation 500 50
AN (*) Increase (*) 999,500 99,950
M2014F12831H At 31 December 2014 1,000,000 100,000
28T Issued:

A& BARE(E 0.10 7T Ordinary shares of HKDO0.10 each upon
B E R incorporation 500 50
RIRSEAET (Mt 1.2) Issued pursuant to the Reorganisation
(Note 1.2) 329,500 32,950
"®2014F12831H At 31 December 2014 330,000 33,000
(*  R2014F8A25H  ARAIEBILR (*)  On 25 August 2014, the authorised share capital of the
999,500,000 % & 2 # /% & B A~ Company was increased from HKD50,000 divided into 500,000
50,0007 7T 9 /4 500,000 % A% 15 1% &= shares to HKD100,000,000 divided into 1,000,000,000 shares
100,000,0003% Jt % 4 1,000,000,000 A% by the creation of an additional 999,500,000 shares.
B& 15 o
RRBER 201551 A 15 HFEAK £ » The Company completed the Listing on 15 January 2015.
ARA AR £ % %17 110,000,000 f% & Upon the Listing, the Company issued 110,000,000 new
BEECI10E T EBA SRS ordinary shares at par value of HKDO.10 per share for cash
REB6OB L EEFMBERBERE consideration of HKD6.0 each, and raised gross proceeds of
660,000,000 7T © HKD660,000,000.
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20. f#E —AEERADQT 20. RESERVES — GROUP AND COMPANY

rEH Group
B¥  AHHEE
Available-
Currency for-sale
translation financial Other
differences assets reserves Total
FHT FHAT FHT THAT
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
®2013F181A At 1 January 2013 7,144 58 12,730 19,932
AEHESREENATE  Losses from changes in fair value
BE(EMNH) of available-for- sale financial
assets, net of tax - (235) - (235)
HERHNESMEEER  Reclassification of changes in
NTEEHETHEE fair value of available-for-sale
B (BHB) financial assets to profit or loss
upon disposal net of tax - (61 - (61
ERHmE= Currency translation differences 95 = = 95
HE—FINBARRKEER  Reclassification of currency
MEZREN I RERS translation differences to profit
(st 34) or loss upon disposal of
a subsidiary (Note 34) (382) - - (382)
R2013£12 8318 At 31 December 2013 6,857 (238) 12730 19,349
R20145181H At 1 January 2014 6,857 (238) 12,730 19,349
—FNBARKEE##E:  Change in ownership interest of a
A S (IR R subsidiary without change of
BEEE))(a) control (a) - - 7,264 7,264
RIESEHETRGD (b) Shares issued pursuant
to the Reorganisation (b) - - (32,900) (32,900)
AEHESREE(EMF)  Losses from changes in fair value
REEEFEE of available-for- sale
financial assets, net of tax - (154) - (154)
BHEBREEE Currency translation differences 2,172 - - 2,172
R2014%12 8310 At 31 December 2014 9,029 (392)  (12,906)  (4,269)
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20. fi#fe — AKEREAT (#)
LN

MR2014FE1H81H
RIEE BTG ()

R2014512831H

(a)

(b)

(c)

A HEEREBERAF

R2014E3 148 - +F
e EEEN R RS S
PR A =] ([ 388 ]) 89 55% RR AR
Em(RB LERLCESEESR)
F AN £ B A B R BRI IS T
T4 EREMRIIES LA
KB D IFE - B EBRALER
B8 17 I 3 O B TS IR AR I
RN - WSS EEIES
AEBHBATALR  MAKRE
B EE LSRR ER AR
WATFEREEEZHNERE
7,264,000 T JhEt AE M ©

e T £ 4 {5 1 428 1% A9 % 2K 50,000
VS TTHB AR A AR IR E AR E KA
BHhEBmBETHRDEE
32,950,000/ 7T &) Z= 8 ( T
1.2) e

B GEEZERKREN B AR
MEHEEFEBOARRRE
ERR G ETHROEE
MZEE (FTEE1.2) -
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20. RESERVES — GROUP AND COMPANY (Continued)
Company

At 1 January 2014
Shares issued pursuant to the Reorganisation (c)

At 31 December 2014

(a)

Hitof# &

Other reserves

TAT
HKD’000

249,674

249,674

On 14 March 2014, Shanghai Asiaray completed the
transfer of its 55% equity interest in Shenzhen Yashi
Metro Co., Ltd. (“Yashi Metro”), which was
previously wholly-owned by Shanghai Asiaray, to
Shenzhen Airport Asiaray, an associate of the
Group, as part of its capital injection into Shenzhen
Airport Asiaray. As Shanghai Asiaray retains the
power to control the financial and operating policies
of Yashi Metro, Yashi Metro continues to be
accounted for as a subsidiary of the Group and the
difference of HKD7,264,000 between the fair value
and carrying amount of the equity interest in Yashi
Metro disposed of at the Group level was recorded
in other reserves.

It represented the difference between the
HKD50,000 share capital of Asiaray Media Holdings
over the HKD32,950,000 nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued as a result of the share
swap pursuant to the Reorganisation (Note 1.2).

It represented the difference between the
consolidated net assets value of Asiaray Media
Holdings and its subsidiaries over the nominal value
of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
therefore, pursuant to the Reorganisation (Note 1.2).
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21.

B — REE 21. BORROWINGS — GROUP
R12A31H
As at 31 December
20145 20134
2014 2013
FHET FHET
HKD’000 HKD'000
JEENHASR 1T RX Non-current bank borrowings
— B (a) — secured (a) 10,125 11,130
B FERNEREFREVENERRL S Less: current portion of non-current
borrowings (1,568) (1,272)
— BEEIR(a) — guaranteed (a) = 2,800
B FERNEREREVENEARL S Less: current portion of non-current
borrowings - (2,400
8,557 10,258
BB AT AR Current bank borrowings
— B (a) — secured (a) 110,058 111,931
— FERNEAME RV BNER &R — current portion of non-current borrowings 1,568 3,672
111,626 115,603
RITIB AT Total bank borrowings 120,183 125,861
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21. BER—XEH#E)
(a) HEAREREROEBOT

BHEFE

PACIRARSE A 42 0 RS 2
REREERAR (MEEREK )
ETETHRERER

PAIRARSE AR 42 0 RS 2
BT EBRERAR
([FEEEPRER]D HETHE
K LB ENRENEER
BIR (Ha8)

VAR m e B FE T S T3
VERIEIR (Bfat6 ~ 75 15)

PARARH B A AR A FESIA
BakNeREERAIHEE
EREE  —HMBARNRT
TR ME AR RE QR
FREEERAFR
BLERSHBREARAR
ETHETHRERER  Yh
MRIEAE RS A P I OB A F)
Hett# (RE) =R
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21. BORROWINGS — GROUP (Continued)

(a) The details of the secured and guaranteed borrowings

are as follows:

Secured borrowings:

Secured by the pledge of certain
properties of Billion China
International Limited (“Billion China
International”) ((EZERIR G RAF]), a
related company controlled by
Mr. Lam

Secured by the pledge of certain
properties of Asiaray China Media
Limited (“Asiaray China Media”), a
related company controlled by
Mr. Lam, and investment properties
of Shanghai Asiaray (Note 8)

Secured by the pledge of certain
properties of Henan Airport Asiaray
(Notes 6, 7 and 15)

Secured by the pledge of financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss and available-for-sale financial
assets of subsidiaries, bank deposits
of a subsidiary, certain properties of
Universal Glory Holdings Limited and
Postar Advertising Media Investment
Limited, related companies controlled
by Mr. Lam and guaranteed by
Mr. Lam and Asiaray Holdings, a
related company controlled by
Mr. Lam

M®12A31H
As at 31 December
20144

2014
TART

HKD'000

20134
2013
TET
HKD'000

49,438 85,220
26,620 26,711
9,825 11,130
34,300 -
120,183 123,061




ESOtEAFRERZRMIEE  NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21.

(a)

(b)

B — REE &)
BERREREROFEOT  (F)

BRERE

21.

(a)

BORROWINGS — GROUP (Continued)

The details of the secured and guaranteed borrowings
are as follows: (Continued)

Guaranteed borrowings:

M®12H31H
As at 31 December
2014 20134

2014 2013
FTERT THETT
HKD’000 HKD’000

RAEBEFRITHEBTEMAELE  Guaranteed by the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative

Region and Mr. Lam - 2,800

RAER

bt RS A I BE R R AT ERO Y
SR Nl AR ST A B AR AR I RO B SE X )
REMERVILEE I HEHRE B HL
[Eh:

REBEBOINEFSERMEDT -

(b)

- 2,800

The above pledge of properties of the related companies
controlled by Mr. Lam and guarantee provided by Mr.
Lam and a related company controlled by him have been
discharged as of the date of these consolidated financial
statements.

The weighted average effective interest rates at each
balance sheet date were as follows:

M12H831H

As at 31 December
2014 F 2013 4F
2014 2013
FET FAT
HKD’000 HKD’'000
FERNEAtE X Non-current borrowings 7.86% 7.70%
BVERfE K Current borrowings 5.51% 6.54%
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21. R —FAEE#@) 21. BORROWINGS — GROUP (Continued)
() AEBEEEERNOT : () The Group's borrowings were repayable as follows:
R12A31H
As at 31 December
2014 F 20134
2014 2013
FE T TH&TT
HKD’000 HKD’000
1F R Within 1 year 111,626 115,603
1FEE26F Between 1 and 2 years 1,268 1,672
2FFE54F Between 2 and 5 years 5,071 3,816
S5FLE Over 5 years 2,218 4,770
120,183 125,861
M®12H831H
As at 31 December
2014 F 20134
2014 2013
FTHERT THBT
HKD’'000 HKD'000
AR5 EREIER Wholly repayable within 5 years 111,626 116,003
AR5 F IR EEE Wholly repayable after 5 years 8,557 9,858
120,183 125,861
(d) REL AEBEFEBROHFREFH L (d) The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate
ARNEHTERBNOT changes and the contractual repricing dates at the end of

the year are as follows:

618 A AR
6EAZ121EA
15=54
5 F

HAHEREBERAF

2014 F 3

164

®12H31H
As at 31 December

2014 2013 4F
2014 2013
FET FATT
HKD'000 HKD'000
6 months or less 99,542 113,767
6-12 months 12,084 1,836
1-5 years 6,339 5,488
over 5 years 2,218 4,770
120,183 125,861
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21.
(e)

B — REE &)
BIHERM A FEEEREERS
REROTETRK -

FERHE R REER A HERT

21. BORROWINGS — GROUP (Continued)

(e) The fair value of current borrowings approximated their
carrying amount as the impact of discounting was not
significant.

The carrying amount and fair value of the non-current
borrowings are as follows:

®12A31H

As at 31 December
2014 20134
2014 2013
THET TATT
HKD’000 HKD’'000
BREE Carrying amount 8,557 10,258
NFEE Fair value 8,481 10,256

FEBEFRNRFENERARTEER
MEAENRESREMRRMAE - A5
ARHEBBRPHEIR -

AEBEFOEASEAUTESE
1 :

AR RMB
BT HKD

The fair values of non-current borrowings were based on
the cash flows discounted using a rate based on the
prevailing borrowings rate and were categorised within
level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings are
denominated in the following currencies:

R12H31H

As at 31 December
2014 F 20134
2014 2013
TExT FET
HKD’000 HKD'000
85,883 123,061
34,300 2,800
120,183 125,861
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22. ERNBEERREMENTIE — K 22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES — GROUP AND
EENAAT COMPANY
iy 3] KA
Group Company
2014 F 20134 2014 F 20134
2014 2013 2014 2013
THERT FET THERT FET
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
JESEBRF (a) Trade payables (a) 46,236 59,809 = -
— ERREL KRR — Due to related parties
(1t 36(b) (Note 36(b)) 21,275 903 - -
—ERE=F%E — Due to third parties 24,961 58,906 - -
et E S = RRAT Accrued concession fee
REBEXH(b) charges for advertising
spaces (b) 254,489 199,914 - =
— RERRAET R — Due to related parties
(Kt 36(b)) (Note 36(b)) 108,863 62,487 - -
—ERE=ARE — Due to third parties 145,626 137,427 - =
BWEFEMNFIE Advances received from
customers 144,896 155,161 - -
Hip 1A Other taxes payable 5,681 5,301 - =
ENFEMETHRF  Salary and staff welfare
payables 24,291 18,528 - -
FERTRAE 7 iR Dividends payable to related
(ffa7 36(b)) parties (Note 36(b)) 149,562 - 148,180 —
Hib R FRIE (o) Other payables (c) 20,215 56,770 35,866 =
— ERREL KRR — Due to related parties
(H7#36(b)) (Note 36(b)) 633 34,697 - -
— KB ARFIE  — Due to subsidiaries - = 35,866 =
— ERNE=75ER — Due to third parties 19,582 22,073 - =
AT B FX Accrued interest expense - 299 - =
645,370 495,782 184,046 -
Bt R EE R Less: non-current portion of
REBX AN accrued concession
FEENEAER fee charges for
advertising spaces (14,228) (9,819) - -
631,142 485,963 184,046 -
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22. BABRAREMEMSRE — &K 22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES — GROUP AND
EBENRADNT (&) COMPANY (Continued)
(a) ENBZEQ I EEERER S0 (a) The ageing analysis of the trade payables based on
T invoice date was as follows:
R12H31H
As at 31 December
2014 F 2013 4
2014 2013
FHERT TR
HKD’000 HKD'000
BB 6EA Up to 6 months 40,815 36,814
6ERE121EA 6 months to 12 months 2,575 7,039
1FE2F 1 year to 2 years 2,060 6,094
2FE3F 2 years to 3 years 529 8,401
3FLAE Over 3 years 257 1,461
46,236 59,809
(b) FEIEIRZHEBUELENIBERER (b)  This mainly represented the differences between the
B R (R B S aa & e - Y B AR i 4 minimum guaranteed concession fee charges recognised
B S O R RN RERBE R in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the beneficial
e Y e HEEE o periods and the minimum guaranteed concession fee
charges paid payable according to the concession rights
agreements.
(¢) EHEMENZEXEEDEWESERRSE (c) Other payables mainly represented guarantee deposits

ERETRNBEETHA -

received from customers and certain amounts due to
related parties.
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23. WA A 23.

BAMWAKANFEZ AT

EEERFFREEXH

COST OF REVENUE
Expenses included in cost of revenue are analysed as
follows:

BZ12A31MBLLEE
Year ended 31 December

2014

20134
2013
F&T
HKD'000

2014
TET
HKD’000

Concession fee charges for

advertising spaces 746,087 699,879
18 B 2R AR ERA Project installation and dismantling
costs 50,565 53,980
EEN KA INE (a) Business tax and the related
surcharges (a) 23,721 41,544
W% - BELREITE Depreciation of property, plant and
(Ktat6) equipment (Note 6) 23,827 27,751
BEEXH Utilities 12,728 12,831
HAth Others 18,385 10,779
875,313 846,764
(a) EARANEEREED KIEEKW (a) Business tax and the related surcharges that are
MmEMT : applicable to the Group are as follows:
5l BRE HEEE
Category Tax rate Basis of levis
BER(TEEDD 5% (*)  RHEESREHEA
Business tax (“BT") 5% (*) Revenue from rendering advertising services
W R ER IR 7%  BRBMANEER
City construction tax 7% Actual BT payment
HEMINE 3%  BRBMEER
Educational surcharges 3% Actual BT payment
B INE 2%  BREBMANEER
Local educational surcharges 2% Actual BT payment

HAHEREBERAF

(*) RENBIRERRELBHE
A RO EN B < & SRR Biufhig
BERABTR>MBN) (FH
[2011] 110%% ) A BE AA £ 2 B
BRBEHEMIB RISELFE
THEBUE AR H BB M BUR AR
A1) (B154[2013] 375%) » ©2012
F1A1AR  NEEBMLRPE
EEMME A R ARRILET
MBE2013F8A1H#E  A&EH
B H R B B A B I B AR 18
BF - EREEFHRER 6 -

*)
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Pursuant to the Circular on the Pilot Plan for Levying
VAT in place of Business Tax (Caishui No.110, 2011)
and the Circular on Launch of Levying VAT in place of
Business Tax for the Transportation Industry and Some
Modern Service Industries (Caishui No.37, 2013) jointly
issued by the Ministry of Finance and the State
Administration of Taxation, the Group's subsidiaries
located in Shanghai, the PRC are subject to value-
added tax from 1 January 2012, while the Group's other
PRC subsidiaries are subject to value-added tax from 1
August 2013. The applicable value-added tax rate is
6%.
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24. SHERTHBHERX 24. SELLING AND MARKETING EXPENSES

EANE RIS HER TR Expenses included in selling and marketing expenses are
T - analysed as follows:

HZ12A3MBLEE

Year ended 31 December

20145 20134

2014 2013

THERT FHET

HKD’000 HKD’000

EERAMAEX Employee benefit expenses 65,384 57,699

72 Ik N SR EERA 52 Travelling and entertainment expenses 8,546 7,398

5T Marketing research expense 4,818 4,633

EEN Office expenses 1,435 1,610

MAEEERAX Office rental expense 883 785

SHEMSE (7L 36(a) Sales commissions (Note 36(a)) 475 619
M - BB MRETE Depreciation of property,

(HizF6) plant and equipment (Note 6) 254 302

HAth Others 436 1,940

82,231 74,986

25. {THBEX
BATBRAXHOBRIANT

25. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Expenses included in administrative expenses are
analysed as follows:

HBZ12A3MBLEE

Year ended 31 December

20145 20134
2014 2013
FERT FHET
HKD'000 HKD'000
EERAFEX Employee benefit expenses 55,483 44,693
EIRRIREE A Travelling and entertainment expenses 14,278 13,873
HASHESHE Office rental expense 11,085 11,604
PR Office expenses 8,809 9,513
ZE RN BN & Auditors’ remunerations 3,029 1,940
HihBHREE Other professional service fees 6,477 2,633
M - BE NEREITE (Hit6)  Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (Note 6) 4,772 2,950
&S R IR R B B Impairment provision for receivables 3,199 2,313
AR X Listing-related expenses 31,139 1,880
RITFEE Bank charges 3,146 1,750
FRIB K NE Taxes and surcharges 1,611 1,622
AR (FE9) Amortisation of intangible assets
(Note 9) 276 155
T PR 8E (et 7) Amortisation of land use rights (Note 7) 178 =
REMEIRE (A2 8) Depreciation of investment properties
(Note 8) 93 93
HA Others 1,950 275
145,525 95,294
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26. BERAFX  BREESHE

(@) EEBERBAX

26. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES, INCLUDING

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Employee benefit expenses

BZ128318LLEE

Year ended 31 December

2014 F 20134

2014 2013

TERT FETT

HKD’'000 HKD’'000

I& - #Ha MEA Wages, salaries and bonuses 101,653 86,311

Ba - BEREMm Welfare, medical and others 3,566 3,745
BRIREHRA — FREEIGHE Pension costs — defined contribution

15,648 12,336

120,867 102,392

BRERMRAINAHFESKRARTET
FIFR R RF0RR -

Employee benefit expenses were charged in the following
categories in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income:

BZ12B31BLLEE
Year ended 31 December

2014 F 20134

2014 2013

F#&T T

HKD'000 HKD’'000

HEMMIGHEERY Selling and marketing expenses 65,384 57,699
TR Administrative expenses 55,483 44,693
120,867 102,392

AEEFEKHEARNIES B2 ERi
FHERITE RN 0 E R ETURK S
sHE) o NEBILR T BT RTENE
ELEH(NFREEFHFSHIZE21% -
RAEETR) 5 ST EER 4k
BEBHNEBREFREES -

REBREE MK B QR EE
—HEBRHENGE REE-RINEAX
RABENBIESANFE - ZE5ME
NERRE B 2 5% 80 EE th fl Mz
EREHE BB EEES -
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Employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
required to participate in a defined contribution
retirement scheme administered and operated by the
local municipal governments. The Group contributes
funds which are calculated on fixed percentage ranging
from 13% to 21% of the employees’ salary (subject to a
floor and cap) as set by local municipal governments to
each scheme locally to fund the retirement benefits of the
employees.

The Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong
operate a defined contribution plan, the assets of which
are generally held in a separate trustee-administered fund.
These subsidiaries pay fixed contribution into such defined
contribution plan on a fixed percentage of 5% of the
employee’s salary.
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26. EERAMAX  BEESEME 26. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES, INCLUDING
(&) DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(b) EZES (b) Directors’ emoluments
BUESREE2014F 12 A31 AIESF The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31
ERMeEH5|mT December 2014 is set out as below:
e 2ER EXHENRS
ne &Rl FETEA SRR AR
Employer's
Salaries, contribution to
allowance and  Discretionary pension
Name of director Fees benefits bonuses scheme Total
TER TER TER TER TET
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
ML Mr. Lam - 120 48 7 175
SRXEE Mr. Yung Chung Man - 2,013 252 - 2,265
BEXEE Mr. So Chi Man - 1,666 320 17 2,003
HRERE Mr. Lam Ka Po. - 1,698 320 17 2,035
SRERE Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung 134 - - - 134
SRERLE Mr. Ma Ho Fai 134 - - - 134
BREE%LE M. Chan ChiFai 134 - - - 134
BNEZEREZ2013F 12 A31BIEF The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31
EWNBEeEmT December 2013 is set out as below:
5o 2R EXHEARE
&l [l STEI R
Employer's
Salaries, contribution to
allowance and  Discretionary pension
Name of director Fees benefits bonuses scheme Total
THT THT THT THT THT
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
i Mr. Lam - 144 24 9 177
SENEE Mr. Yung Chung Man = 1,806 188 - 1,994
HENEE Mr. So Chi Man - 1,220 105 15 1,340
MRELE M. LlamKa Po. - 1,302 84 15 1,401

SRELE Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung - = - - _
SRERLE Mr. Ma Ho Fai - - - - _
BREEEE Mr. Chan Chi Fai = = - - _

MEERAEBNEFNTE - L= Mr. Lam is the Chief Executive Officer of the Group. The
EN2014F5 A0 EZERA R A above directors were appointed as the directors of the
B LXHWENREHE2014FR Company on 20 May 2014, and their emoluments as
2013412 A 31 B IEFEHME 245K disclosed above for the years ended 31 December 2014
SRZEREZANHIMER and 2013 included the remunerations prior to their

appointment as directors.
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26. EREREFNMX BEEEM
(&)

() HEEBBRSFMAL
HZE2014F 12 A31HILEE - A&EE
hEEERTMALTEE=R(20134F :
—HEF FEOMeBE ST
FORIRMEE - #ZE2014F12 83181k
FE EHMA(013F: MB) AL
BB & eREEHS AT ¢

26.

(c)

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES, INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Five highest paid individuals

The 5 individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014
included 3 (2013: 3) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The aggregate
amounts of emoluments for the remaining 2 (2013: 2)
individuals for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set
out below:

BZ128318LLEE

Year ended 31 December

2014 & 20134

2014 2013

FET FETT

HKD’'000 HKD'000

TENFS® Wages and salaries 2,929 2,753

TE4L Bonuses 136 153
RIS KA — TREAERETE Pension cost — defined contribution

34 30

3,099 2,936

A £2014F K2013F12A318 It F
ERRZEATIZNHME BN THIE
H

The emoluments payable to these individuals for the
years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 fell within the
following bands:

HBZ12A3MBLEE

Year ended 31 December
20134

2014 &
2014 2013

[ Emoluments band
1,000,001 7 7T & 1,500,000  HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1 1
1,500,001 7 7T & 2,000,000 HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1 1

REZE2014F k2013F 12 A31 8 1k
FEAN AEEHEREAESEHTSL
RRHFMA T NEMME - (ERINE
AR SR B AN R 1% 1O 22 B K A R BRI AV
& BEEHREREREXRAENES
AT B

HOEEEEERRAG  2014F8H 172

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office, no directors waived or
have agreed to waive any emoluments.
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27.

Hl A

27. OTHER INCOME

BZ12A31MBLEE

Year ended 31 December

2014 F 20134
2014 2013
FHBT F& T
HKD’000 HKD'000
ISR ON Government subsidy income 4,521 4,755
& & AR A Advertising consulting service income 2,731 1,346
RIHITERRGE Compensation from counter parties
for breach of contracts 1,770 1,352
REWMERNESEA Rental income on investment properties 171 170
AfHESREEMREKRA Dividend income on available-for-sale
(K17£33) financial assets (Note 33) 329 402
BERT—MBERARMNFEUA  Interest income on loans to
(Haz 16(0) an associate (Note 16(f) 491 -
10,013 8,025

B BE M A FE A BRI T = B AP PIR
BB RBIRT ©

28. HfttlWa — FHE

Government subsidy income represented various tax
refund granted by the relevant government authorities.

28. OTHER GAINS — NET

BZ12B3MBLLEE
Year ended 31 December
2014 20134

2014 2013
TR TAT
HKD’000 HKD’000

WAFEIABRZERENESREE  Fair value gains on financial assets at
NHENES (AR 10(a)) fair value through profit or loss

(Note 10(a)) 452 50
PE X (E518), W 588 Net exchange (losses)/gains (1,001) 45
HEWE - BB MREN YR Gains on disposal of property,
(et 33) plant and equipment (Note 33) 285 171
HERMEEESREEN N Gains on disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets - 281
HE BB QR YR Gains on disposal of a subsidiary
(K7t 34) (Note 34) = 175
o & — e R R e RE Gains on partial disposal of
(KiaE12) an associate (Note 12) 1,743 =
Hpb Others 455 808

1,934 1,530
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29. BIERAK — FHEE 29. FINANCE COSTS — NET

BZ128318LLEE

Year ended 31 December

2014 F 20134
2014 2013
TE T FAT
HKD’'000 HKD’000
REWRA Finance income
HRITERFEWA Interest income on bank deposits (6,844) (5,792)
& A Finance costs
RITEFRAF B Interest expense on bank borrowings 9,084 8,114
ERT ML A a/EhIRE 2  Discounting effects of loans to
(BaF 16() an associate (Note 16(f) 6,662 -
15,746 8114
BE WA — FEE Finance costs — net 8,902 2,322
30. FREHiRI 30. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
HE2014F %2013 12 A31H £ The income tax expense of the Group for the years ended
B AEBRHMEHRES DI 31 December 2014 and 2013 is analysed as follows:

BZ12A31MBLEE

Year ended 31 December

2014 F 2013

2014 2013

FET T

HKD'000 HKD’'000

BNERFT1S AR Current income tax

— R ERERH — PRC corporate income tax 35,459 30,760
— BEFEH — Hong Kong profits tax 6,684 10,381
42,143 41,141
EIEFRIE (KY5E14) Deferred tax (Note 14) (14,612) (3,324)
27,531 37,817
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30.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

FriS BB (4)

FERBAEHN
ARAIRERSHSRAAZNASHE
MR AR ERAR - Eit e
FIS BB TSR -

EBANEH
HRAEERER ERANE ST EHNE
BEE  MERBBFERFTREE -
AEBEBREHZE2014F K% 2013F 12
A31 B I & FER b ERB A BEIZ
16.5% BT K AT IR o

B RSN ([EEAEHR D)
AEBDRBRITEN 2B ERIE
It E AP BRI FE AR A ERBF
BIR25% M RFHE S BB E - R
FEERNBEN AR

AEEMBERRER =B REECHER P E
ERMEK - FEERN T B ARR %
ENEEVKRBRER  MEH15%
MEBMEHRE -

hE RN ([FEH )
REBERTBEBREER - NP BRI
A BEF20084F 1 B 1 H 2 & 4 & F1E
ASNEREEDIRHORE  —REAR
10% R BMAAEH - HNBEBEMAK
VHSNEREENA PR RT BTN
BOEBERBTHIRTERRE B
FEMBAR E K B 10% [EARZES5% °

30.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Cayman Island income tax

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of Cayman Islands and accordingly, is
exempted from Cayman Islands income tax.

Hong Kong profits tax

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for as there was
business operation that is subject to Hong Kong profits
tax. It had been provided for at the rate of 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits for each of the years ended
31 December 2014 and 2013.

PRC Corporate Income Tax (“CIT")

The income tax provision of the Group in respect of
operations in the PRC has been calculated at the tax rate
of 25% on the estimated assessable profits for each of the
Relevant Periods, based on the existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof, unless
preferential tax rates were applicable.

Yunnan Airport Asiaray, a subsidiary of the Group, was
established in Yunnan Province, PRC. It was eligible for
preferential tax policies applicable for the development
of western regions in the PRC, and was entitled to a
preferential income tax rate of 15%.

PRC withholding tax (“"WHT")

According to the applicable PRC tax regulations,
dividends distributed by a company established in the
PRC to a foreign investor with respect to profits derived
after 1 January 2008 are generally subject to a 10%
withholding income tax. If a foreign investor incorporated
in Hong Kong meets the conditions and requirements
under the double taxation treaty arrangement entered
into between the PRC and Hong Kong, the relevant
withholding tax rate will be reduced from 10% to 5%.
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30. S (#2) 30. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
N EE B[4 PSR AT F S A T8 B B PR i The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs
ARUTAHEREEBREZERATE from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
FEMIEFE SR EEHNIBHRSET weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of
[ : consolidated entities in the respective jurisdictions as
follows:

BZE12A31MHLEE
Year ended 31 December

2014 F 20134
2014 2013
FET FHIT
HKD'000 HKD'000
4 FT 1583 31 R Profit before income tax 219,843 204,620
W P RRREEE A EH Less: Share of results of investments
WEHEE in associates 819 (3,122)
220,662 201,498
BRI E 25% 5T E IR Tax calculated at a tax rate of 25% 55,166 50,375
HERRAE BT RN A Effect of different tax rates applicable
TRABEN 2 to different subsidiaries of
the Group (10,183) (11,915)
AR A A Income not subject to tax (161) (735)
AT X Expenses not deductible for tax
purposes 6,304 940
RIEHIAE ERRERIIAETE  Tax losses not recognised for
deferred tax assets 414 3,638
RIERIELETIHE E R B R % Temporary differences not
=5 recognised for deferred tax assets 15 13
HABEFEREROIARIE  Utlisation of tax losses previously
not recognised in prior years (12,309) (152)
B OBRAFEARERE R Reversal of temporary differences
=28 not recognised in prior years (13,164) (9,306)
FhE 2K A% B SN B TR 0 PRC withholding income tax on
FRS distributed dividends 1,449 4,959
FriS it 2 Income tax expense 27,531 37,817
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31. SREFN 31. EARNINGS PER SHARE
GREEARZR TIRIBAATES AEMSL Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
FE - BRAFERB BT LB INETY profit attributable to owners of the Company by the
HETE - weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

during the year.

BZ12A31MBLEE

Year ended 31 December

2014 F 20134
2014 2013
THET FAT
HKD’000 HKD'000
biN/NEIE ¥ =N plbE Profit attributable to owners of the
Company 142,555 129,261
B 21T E AR I T 2 Weighted average number of ordinary
(AT RET) shares in issue (thousands) 330,000 330,000
FRRER (AFIAEITHR) Earnings per share (HKD per share) 0.43 0.39
RRAR BF AL BB T E As the Company did not have any potential dilutive
B (2013F : ) - SRBEFERFE ordinary shares during the year (2013: nil), diluted
ENEREARRN - earnings per share equaled to basic earnings per share.
32. BRE 32. DIVIDENDS

HBZ12A3MBLEE

Year ended 31 December

20145 20134

2014 2013

FET FET

HKD’000 HKD'000

2013 FR 8 (FAR0.546787T) (a) 2013 dividend (HKD0.546 per share) (a) 180,180 -
HEE 2014 FRERE Proposed 2014 final dividend

(0% 0.065%7T) (b) (HKDO0.065 per share) (b) 28,600 -

208,780 -
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32. RE

(a)

(b)

A HEEREBERAF

BEEEEN2014F1286BEBIBZ
SRERZE ¢

() EZBFSHATKIREHZ20134F
12 A 318 Ik % Z & £.180,180,000
% (8 1805468 T ) Media
Cornerstone & Space Management
o Bl % k132,130,000 T K
48,050,000 % 7T :

(iy AREHEAEESETHBRRE
SARERIEREEE B ML
EREEHEETRER H AR
ME A RMEEMTREEBELE R F
8 #931,926,0007%8 JT ([ F % B
BNEESEEAQE &

(i) {ERERIBEFEMEE 2 2K AH
LR EEENSBELEE RN
2014512 A6 AR MIRE
74,0008 7T °

R2015F3A31HEITZAE® L &
EEERRMTARKHAREFRR0.065%
JC ' #8%8 428,600,000/ 7T ° Bl e
BREEREBE RS R -
EE B TSR R R R BRI RS AR

o

= oA

c

20143 178

32. DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Pursuant to the resolutions passed by the Board on 6
December 2014:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

the Board approved to declare and distribute a
dividend in the amount of HKD180,180,000
(HKDO.546 per share), including HKD 132,130,000
and HKD48,050,000 to Media Cornerstone and
Space Management, respectively, for the year
ended 31 December 2013;

the Company entered into an assignment of current
accounts with certain subsidiaries of the Group,
pursuant to which the outstanding current accounts
repayable by Mr. Lam and certain related parties
controlled by Mr. Lam to those subsidiaries with the
net balance of approximately HKD31,926,000 (the
“Current Accounts”) were assigned to the Company;

and

the Current Accounts were settled with the same
amount of the above dividend at the request of Mr.
Lam and HKD74,000 of dividend was paid in cash
on 6 December 2014.

At the meeting held on 31 March 2015, the Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HKDO0.065 per share, amounting to a total of
HKD28,600,000. Such dividends are to be approved by
the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General

Meeting. These financial statements do not reflect this as

dividend payable.
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33. 2EMBRS 33. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

HZ12A31HILEE
Year ended 31 December

2014 20134
2014 2013
FE T FAT
HKD'000 HKD’000
R P15 %5 A A B Profit before income tax 219,843 204,620
FE Adjustments for:
JFEW SR IE R B B (7% 25) Impairment provision for receivables
(Note 25) 3,199 2,313
F B (HiE29) Interest expenses (Note 29) 9,084 8,114
SRITEFHHA BN (FrE29) Interest income on bank deposits
(Note 29) (6,844) (5,792)
ERT L R EH Discounting effect of loans to
BRIRS 2 (HfaF 29) an associate (Note 29) 6,662 -
BT MBS R F8 Interest income on loans to
BN (BtaE27) an associate (Note 27) (491) =
AEHESREEN Dividend income on available-for-sale
AR B A (Btat27) financial assets (Note 27) (329) (402)
ME - WEMRENINE Depreciation of property, plant and
(Htate) equipment (Note é) 28,853 31,003
T fE AR B SE (MaE 7) Amortisation of land use rights
(Note 7) 178 =
REMERE (HZ8) Depreciation of Investment
properties (Note 8) 93 93
B EERE (Mt 9) Amortisation of intangible
assets (Note 9) 276 155
HEYE - BFE MREOE Gains on disposal of property, plant
(K1:t28) and equipment (Note 28) (285) 171)
HE—RNE QAR Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
(Kta£28) (Note 28) - (175)
HEITHEESRHEED Gains on disposal of available-for-sale
Wezs (M52 28) financial assets (Note 28) - (281)
BAFEYABEERD Fair value gains on financial assets
TREENTFEWRS at fair value through profit or loss
(KizE28) (Note 28) (452) (50)
DIREEE N E R E EE Share of results of investments in
(Htat12) associates (Note 12) 819 (3,122)
260,606 236,305
LEELEH (TR Changes in working capital (excluding
RIFAEAERRELEN the effects of currency translation
BEEBEZEREE differences on consolidation and
—MBNBRRRFE) disposal of a subsidiary):
—FE — Inventories 105 (255)
— FEURBR F N EoAh e W SR8 — Trade and other receivables (36,945) (65,744)
— FEfTBR N N EL b B~ R IE — Trade and other payables (29,786) 6,311)
— XRFIHREe — Restricted cash (69,925) 16,039
LIEMTSRE Cash generated from operations 124,055 180,034
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33. BEFBRE#)

EAHRERERT  HEVE B
KBRESFRRRE

33. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(Continued)

In the consolidated statements of cash flows, proceeds
from disposals of property, plant and equipment
comprise:

BZEZ12831HLLEE

Year ended 31 December

2014 F 20134

2014 2013

TERT FETT

HKD'000 HKD’'000

BRTEFE (M 7E6) Net book amount (Note 6) 103 6

HE W (Ka+28) Gains on disposals (Note 28) 285 171

&SRS RIE Proceeds from disposals 388 177
BRERH Non-cash transactions

REANTEFRERHEIHE :

@ RBEKIESHEEKKE
19,248,000 78 L8 A R f&@ i IK
EERENE 8RR (HizE12);

(b) EBHEHRIRINGS ML EE
AR HEA I EE A 55% A A M 2R - 1F
REHRYIS LN DT
& (F43£20) : &

(0 ABERERIEAER S 31,926,000
BT (MIE32) ©

MEHEEREBERARF 20145#H 180

The major non-cash transactions during the year included:

(@) the transfer of HKD19,248,000 of dividend
receivable from Fujian Zhaoxiang Advertising to an
interest-free loan to Fujian Zhaoxiang Advertising
(Note 12);

(b)  the transfer of 55% equity interest in Yashi Metro by
Shanghai Asiaray to Shenzhen Airport Asiaray as
part of its capital injection into Shenzhen Airport
Asiaray (Note 20); and

(c) the settlement of HKD31,926,000 of dividend with
the Current Accounts (Note 32).
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34. HE—BEHEQAE
R2013411 298 - REFEMEA
THEBEAREZAR ARG —H
W WHER| BT HESRKROE
FRAR([E &AL " 100% I AH
# - R1856,606,0008 T - HEEL
MRS HENT

34. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 29 November 2013, the Group entered into an
agreement with Main Element Profits Limited, a related
company controlled by Mr. Lam, to sell its 100% equity
interest in Taiwan Asiaray Advertising Company Limited
("Taiwan Asiaray”) (B BT HEERNHDBMRAF) at a
consideration of HKD6,606,000, the cash flows from the
disposal were as follows:

TET

EUWHRE

—RaNE

W BERAERENRS
RREEED

EHERSFHE

BTN E S B AR FEN
T

HKD’000

Consideration received

— Cash consideration 6,606
Less: cash and cash equivalents held by

Taiwan Asiaray (6,757)
Net cash disposed of (151)

Net assets of Taiwan Asiaray as at the date of the disposal
were as follows:

Re

LB R LA FE M OB
EEFEREE

JE A5 BR SR B B A 5OR

HE S EREEEN KT E AT

EUHKE

B AEEAENHE RSN EERE

e HEELFEEN SO EE RS
(Kt 20)

FHTT

HKD’000

Cash 6,757
Trade and other receivables 182
Property, plant and equipment 64
Deferred income tax assets 185
Trade and other payables (375)
6,813

The gain on disposal of Taiwan Asiaray was calculated as

follows:

FET
HKD’000
Consideration received 6,606
Less: net assets of Taiwan Asiaray on disposal date (6,813)

Add: reclassification of the related translation
reserve to profit or loss (Note 20) 382
175
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35. ADQBER ABERE

HZE2014912 A31 BILEE - KAF
WA AEMLAEF 8 180,719,000% T
BRARRMISHRERTERE

36. EXEBAIRS

(a) BABARB
NEBRES AR ABI100%EK K K
Media Cornerstone #5 il o 7S 55 B Ay &
AR BRSEAE ©

B EXCEADPIEATIREEE SN - ANEE R
HEAM A NEE 2014412 A31 B IS
EREITTIERRS - RARESR
B SR ARSTINEEEKRAR
AR ¥z BR 7N S B B % R B O Tk e D MR R
1T o

() EERETRELA

i F/NT
— YIS He T
— BEIAES

(i) EERERFUA

35.

36.

(a)

Associate:

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The profit attributable to owners of the Company for the
period ended 31 December 2014 was dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company to the extent of
HKD180,719,000.

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Transactions with related parties

The Group is controlled by Media Cornerstone, which
owns 100% of the Company’s shares. The ultimate
controlling party of the Group is Mr. Lam.

Save as disclosed in other notes above, the following
significant transactions were carried out between the
Group and its related parties during the year ended 31
December 2014. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the related party transactions were carried out
in the normal course of business and at terms negotiated
between the Group and the respective related parties.

(i) Advertising display service income

BZEZ128318LLEE

Year ended 31 December
2014 F

20134
2014 2013
FHT F& T
HKD’000 HKD'000

— Shenzhen Airport Asiaray 2,866 -
— Fujian Zhaoxiang Advertising 5,264 6,925
8,130 6,925

(i) Advertising production service income

HBZ12A3MBLEE

Year ended 31 December

20145 20134
2014 2013
FHET TET
HKD’000 HKD’000
BELQT Associate:
— YIS HE 4 — Shenzhen Airport Asiaray 595 184
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36. EXBHAIRS (&) 36. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(a) BEARZ (&) (a) Transactions with related parties (Continued)
(i)  BEEEEFAAES ST (i)~ Concession fee charges for advertising spaces

BZ12A31MBLEE

Year ended 31 December

2014 F 20134
2014 2013
FET FHETT
HKD’000 HKD'000

A PNCE Associates:
— BEKAESE — Fujian Zhaoxiang Advertising 2,731 8,769
— BAETER — Guangxi Top Source 2,323 2,124
— R M35 A — Shenzhen Airport Asiaray 46,691 586

N B ATIKNIEERESZ ©  Non-controlling interests in
subsidiaries:
— EERIGEERRETZA  — Yunnan Airport Group Company

AIMEF AR ([ ZE#ES Limited and its subsidiaries
KEFRA]]) (EEsEEBREERAAR
HF27]) (“Yunnan Airport and
its subsidiaries”) 110,637 106,709

— B EMNFE BRI  — Henan Zhengzhou Xinzheng
EEAR AR (RS ]) Airport Management Company
Limited (7] & B 57 20 [ % 1%

HEBRBRAR)
(“Henan Airport”) 47,367 47,048
209,749 165,236
(iv) Eff TEMIEERHE (iv)  Sales commissions paid/payable

HBZ12A3MBLEE

Year ended 31 December

20145 20134
2014 2013
T THBT
HKD’000 HKD’000
BE AT Associate:
— BEIAES — Fujian Zhaoxiang Advertising 475 619
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36. EXBEHAIRS (&) 36. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(a) BEAREZ (&) (a) Transactions with related parties (Continued)
v) HREHEeHEZ (v)  Office rental expenses

BZ12A31MBLLEE
Year ended 31 December
2014 & 20134

2014 2013
TR THAT
HKD’000 HKD’000

A — BB A TR IEE R EZS (Non-controlling interest in
a subsidiary:

— EEMIE N E T AT — Yunnan Airport and its subsidiaries 1,010 1,065

Bk E S Controlled by Mr. Lam:

— RIEFRAR] — Peaky Limited 588 588
1,598 1,653

FERLCHERNE £2014F & Shanghai Asiaray leased office premises from

2013412 A 31 A I F = ML Asiaray China Media Limited, a related company

A 2 ) Y A58 X B A 4 R B controlled by Mr. Lam, free of charges during the

BERAREBHEERQAIGH o year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013. The

HE WA N RS IR RE leasing agreements are renewable at the end of the

FHERRESER - leasing period at the rate negotiated by both

parties.
(vi) Bt TENEESZHEAR (vi)  Utilities cost paid/payable

BZ12B31BLLEE
Year ended 31 December
2014 20134

2014 2013
TR TAT
HKD’000 HKD’000

R BATMIEEREZ ©  Non-controlling interest in

subsidiaries:
— EMEERET AR — Yunnan Airport and its subsidiaries 3,251 4,062
— S — Henan Airport 617 910

3,868 4,972
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36. EXEBAERS ) 36.

BEHAERS (&) (a)

(i) FEEFEAEFH
HEERBEMNKEMNEEZER
AB(BHEES THAHKE
HERITHAR) KR T

(a)

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Transactions with related parties (Continued)

(vii) Key management compensation
The compensations paid or payable to key
management personnel (including directors, CEO
and other senior executives) for employee services
are shown as below:

BZ12A31MBLEE

Year ended 31 December

2014 20134
2014 2013
THET TABTT
HKD’000 HKD’'000
TERF® Wages and salaries 7.825 6,669
TEAT Bonuses 940 401
RIREHEIH R Retirement scheme contributions 245 234
Bt Total 9,010 7,304
(b) EEBAESMILX (b) Balances with related parties

() BRRREYERK :

B NT -
— RIS M

Associate:

(i) SRRFERTEREK

— Shenzhen Airport Asiaray

(i) Included in trade receivables:

M®12H831H
As at 31 December
2014 & 20134
2014 2013
THExT TFETT
HKD'000 HKD'000

12,733 187

(i) Included in trade payables:

R12A31H
As at 31 December
20145 20134
2014 2013
FE T FATT
HKD'000 HKD'000
4NN Associates:
— RBEIAES — Fujian Zhaoxiang Advertising - 153
— RIS — Shenzhen Airport Asiaray — 750
REBATMIEZERELR ©  Non-controlling interests in
subsidiaries:
— EEMIERET AR — Yunnan Airport and its subsidiaries 1,518 =
— A 5 — Henan Airport 19,757 —
21,275 903
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36. EREBMAERS () 36. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(b) EERAELMGERX(EZ) (b) Balances with related parties (Continued)
(i) BRREMIENFUE (iii)  Included in other prepayments:
R12A31H
As at 31 December
2014 F 20134
2014 2013
FHET FHIT
HKD’'000 HKD'000
& AT - Associates:
— BEKAESE — Fujian Zhaoxiang Advertising 840 1,019
— BAETER — Guangxi Top Source 211 300
1,051 1,319
(iv) BREGTESTEEBFEEES (iv) Included in accrued concession fee charges for
H advertising spaces:
MW12A31H
As at 31 December
2014 F 20134
2014 2013
FH&xT T4
HKD'000 HKD’'000
B AT - Associates:
— BEIAES — Fujian Zhaoxiang Advertising 1,201 5577
— RIS — Shenzhen Airport Asiaray 31,943 =
RHBATMIEERER ©  Non-controlling interests in
subsidiaries:
— EEBSNETFRA] — Yunnan Airport and its subsidiaries 52,759 32,633
— A a5 — Henan Airport 22,960 29,297

108,863 62,487
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36. EREBMAERS () 36. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(b) EERAELMGEX(EZ) (b) Balances with related parties (Continued)
(v)  BREMpEE : (v)  Included in other receivables:
R12A31H
As at 31 December
2014 F 20134
2014 2013
FHET FHIT
HKD'000 HKD'000
A PNCE Associate:
— BAETER — Guangxi Top Source 127 =
— R M35 A — Shenzhen Airport Asiaray 259 498
MRS Controlled by Mr. Lam:
— EMNEA — Guangzhou Yunwei - 5,812
— WP REEBR2AT  — Asiaray China Media Limited - 5,961
— EE=BRAH — Main Element Profits Limited - 4,280
— REFRAT] — Peaky Limited - 2,200
—FaEEERAR — Universal Glory Holdings Limited - 2,015
—EBHEREEEBRE — Postar Advertising Media
BRATA Investment Limited - 601
— EGO Star Limited (BVI) — EGO Star Limited (BVI) - 705
— [BERR — Billion China International - 84
— Wiseford Investments — Wiseford Investments Limited (BVI)
Limited (BVI) - 60
— Saneford Company — Saneford Company Limited (BVI)
Limited (BVI) - 66

— kR BHTEEEBRAT  — Beijing Wiseford Advertising
Company Limited (3t R HTTE

BEBRAR) - 1,283
R — R B 2 T Y FE IR IR 2 - Non-controlling interest in
a subsidiary:
— EEBIEREF AR — Yunnan Airport and its subsidiaries 351 2,186
RAAERT : Ultimate controlling party:
—MEE — Mr. Lam - 36,111
737 61,862
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36. EXBEHAIRS (&) 36. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(b) EERAERMERX () (b) Balances with related parties (Continued)
vi) BREMRKRE : (v Included in dividends payable:
R12H31H
As at 31 December
2014 £ 20134
2014 2013
FHET FET
HKD’'000 HKD’000
MM EEE Controlled by Mr. Lam:
— Media Cornerstone (*) — Media Cornerstone (*) 108,664 -
— Space Management (*) — Space Management (*) 39,516 =
&N Associates:
— RYI IS 4 — Shenzhen Airport Asiaray 1,382 -
149,562 =
(*)  JEfI Media Comerstone % Space *) The amounts due to Media Cornerstone and Space
Management i) 2 I8 B 78 28 B 7 Management have been fully settled as at the date of
H®EBAREEEE - these financial statements.
(vii) SRR EAR R FOR - (vii) Included in other payables:
R12H31H
As at 31 December
2014 F 20134
2014 2013
FET FAET
HKD’'000 HKD’000
MRS Controlled by Mr. Lam:
— FERARAF] — Main Element Profits Limited = 3,933
— B ARAR] — Times New Limited - 6,141
— ML (RE) BRAF — Asiaray (Holdings) Limited - 15,256

A — BB A TR IEIEIREZ (Non-controlling interest in

a subsidiary: = _

— SA M35 — Henan Airport 314 -
i3 =B/ Associates:
— R e — Shenzhen Airport Asiaray 319 -
BRERA : Ultimate controlling party:
— ML — Mr. Lam - 9,367
633 34,697
ol BR R E 5 B A R D AR R R The above balances with related parties were
B 2RRRERER - unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
EXREMETREAEIER The English names of certain related parties referred
EXEE - REXEBHIAAR to above represented the best efforts by management
RIERERNNF X EEEEN of the Company in translating their Chinese names, as
o o they do not have official English names.
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37.

38.

REHERE

AEERBETAHHSCERE R LR
ETRFEBREETREER - BFEN
MR FEABATF1E10F - K
BERMEBEFERBANTFIEI0
F o MAEDME e 7 R B RS
BMgEXREE -

AT RAKERET A RERLHEER
AEHZAEEE AR

37.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group leases certain office buildings and certain
media resources under non-cancellable operating lease
agreements. The lease terms for office buildings are
negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 10 years, and
those for media resources are negotiated for terms
ranging from 1 to 10 years, and majority of lease
agreements are renewable at the end of the lease period
at market rate.

The Group's future aggregate minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

®12A31H
As at 31 December
2014 F 20134
2014 2013
TERT FE7T
HKD’'000 HKD’'000
E NS Not later than 1 year 513,823 448,778
L1 FBRTZN5F Later than 1 year and not later than
1,072,788 854,249
%5 F Later than 5 years 416,881 1,789
2,003,492 1,304,816
NEEIE 38. CONTINGENCIES

ANEER2014F X 2013F 12 A31H
MECFAEENERKAALE -

The Group had no material contingent liabilities
outstanding as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.
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4 YEARS SUMMARY

E RESULTS

HE12A3MHLEE
Year ended 31 December
2014 2013 4F 2012 4F 2011 4F

2014 2013 2012 2011
TEx TAT TAET TAT
HKD’'000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000

RATEE AENE Profit/(loss) attributable to

FE, (E518) owners of the Company 142,555 129,261 59,625 (18,051)
EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
R12A31H
As at 31 December

2014 20134 20124 2011

2014 2013 2012 2011

THEx FABT FABT FAT

HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD’000

EEE Total assets 992,386 856,413 627,069 497,872
Ry Total liabilities (783,615) (649,049) (586,998) (488,114)

FEE Net assets 208,771 207,364 40,071 9,758
BB A EHEA2014F 12831 B The results and summary of assets and liabilities for the years
BRERAEZE20119F - 20124 %2013 ended 31 December 2011, 2012 and 2013 which were
F12ANBUEFECEEUNREERE extracted from the Company's prospectus dated 31 December
BERMEDNRBEEHEERE  LBTRLAE 2014 have been prepared on a combined basis to indicate the
BIZEE  BOARARGOPBRTERE results of the Group as if the Group structure, at the time the
MR AEERERNZEFE —HFE ° Company'’s shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock

Exchange, had been in existence throughout those years.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

EEg
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BITES

Executive Directors

WEE(EFEREFHITE)

Lam Tak Hing, alias Vincent Lam (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)

HEX(BEFZER)
Yung Chung Man (Chief Operations Officer)

BEX(BRMBEE)
So Chi Man (Chief Financial Officer)

MEXE(BERHHE)
Lam Ka Po (Chief Marketing Officer)

BYFHTES

Independent non-executive Directors

Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung

B 58 SBS JP
Ma Ho Fai SBS JP

PR SBS JP

Chan Chi Fai Andrew SBS JP
NEME

COMPANY SECRETARY

BEX
So Chi Man

REAER
AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVE

aNE
Lam Tak Hing, alias Vincent Lam

BEX
So Chi Man

#HEAR
AUDIT COMMITTEE

HRREE (EFE)
Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung (Chairman)

B 58 SBS JP
Ma Ho Fai SBS JP

PR SBS JP
Chan Chi Fai Andrew SBS JP

REZRESY
NOMINATION COMMITTEE

MIBEL(E/F)

Lam Tak Hing, alias Vincent Lam (Chairman)

PR SBS JP
Chan Chi Fai Andrew SBS JP

58 SBS JP

Ma Ho Fai SBS JP

FMEES

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

B8 SBS JP (£/%)
Ma Ho Fai SBS JP (Chairman)

aNE
Lam Tak Hing, alias Vincent Lam

SRR
Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung
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B BRET
AUDITOR

R E G TR E AT
X GEHRD
PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

R
LEGAL ADVISER

FF T ERRADTT

BATIREITE105%
RFREN16-19%

Mayer Brown JSM

16th-19th Floors, Prince’s Building,
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

BHRER
COMPLIANCE ADVISER

ABREBRAR
Messis Capital Limited

ERAERRT
PRINCIPAL BANKERS

EELSEERITERAR
FERRERRT LEMFL T
PEIERTT LB REK LT
EQRTT(PEDERAT]

The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank, Shanghai Jing'an

Sub-branch

Bank of China, Shanghai Changning Road Sub-branch

HSBC Bank (China) Company Limited

AfREE
REGISTERED OFFICE

Maples Corporate Services Limited
P.O. Box 309 Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104

Cayman Islands

HOEHEEEERRAG  2014F8H 192

BRTEERMBH
PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

BEAHER

BB —5%
ERBESHAKNE
17170121703 F

Unit 01-03, 17/F.

Kornhill Plaza — Office Tower
1 Kornhill Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

BERESFELE
HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

BRERRBLELBRAF

AT

ERRBER 1835

AL

171171251716 =

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17/F.

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Ak

WEBSITE
http://www.asiaray.com
IR AR R 5%

STOCK CODE

1993
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SisflifmisRLE &
MIGRIEMAXIR17i801-03
UNIT 01-03, 17/F, KORNHILL PLAZA — OFFICE TOWER,
1 KORNHILL ROAD, QUARRY BAY, HONG KONG

B TEL: (852) 2539 3939
RN FAX:(852) 2127 4187
#ht WEB: WWW.ASIARAY.COM
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